(a)

(b)

A meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL will be
held in the CIVIC SUITE, PATHFINDER HOUSE, ST MARY'S
STREET, HUNTINGDON, PE29 3TN on MONDAY, 16 APRIL 2012 at
7:00 PM and you are requested to attend for the transaction of the
following business:-

APOLOGIES
MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the
Panel held on 19th March 2012.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

To receive from Members, declarations as to personal and/or
prejudicial interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any
Agenda Item. Please see Notes 1 and 2 below.

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (Pages 7 - 12)
To consider a report by the Head of Planning Services.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATION (Pages
13 - 44)

Hemingford Grey

Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to
provide 72 bedroom care home, together with associated landscaping
and parking with access from London Road — St. lves Motel, London
Road.

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

APPLICATIONS REQUIRING REFERENCE TO DEVELOPMENT
MANAGEMENT PANEL

Houghton and Wyton (Pages 45 - 54)

Retrospective approval for siting of greenhouse, container and small
touring caravan — Two Hoots Farm, Sawtry Way, Wyton.

Huntingdon (Pages 55 - 68)

Variation of condition 2.1 of planning permission 0901530FUL to retain
existing access on a permanent basis. Variation of Condition 10 of
planning permission 1000720REP to provide alternative access via
adjacent temporary car park — Redundant Hinchingbrooke Water
Tower, Brampton Road.



(c)

(d)

(f)

(9

(h)

(i)

1)

(k)

()

Ramsey (Pages 69 - 82)

Replacement dwelling — Sherwood House, Chapel Drove, Ramsey
Heights.

Ramsey (Pages 83 - 102)

New single storey dwelling, land opposite 11 to 17 Tower Close.
Sawtry (Pages 103 -112)

Variation of condition 1 of planning permission 11001875S73 to
extend the expiry of temporary use until 28th February 2014 -
Spicelands, Old Great North Road.

Sawtry (Pages 113 - 124)

Erection of Primary Healthcare facility as required by unilateral
undertaking which formed part of outline planning permission — land
west of 21 Windsor Road.

Sibson-cum-Stibbington (Pages 125 - 142)

Erection of dwelling and double garage and car port with room above
and construction of new access — land at 95 Elton Road, Stibbington.

Somersham (Pages 143 - 156)

Erection of replacement dwelling and associated works — Greenacres,
St. Ives Road.

Spaldwick (Pages 157 - 166)

Erection of replacement electrical sub-station and associated works —
land adjacent 11 Stow Road.

St. Neots (Pages 167 - 186)

Erection of dwelling with detached double garage and alteration to
existing property to include porch link and single garage — land at and
including 116 St. Neots Road, Eaton Ford.

Abbotsley (Pages 187 - 196)

Change of use of land to form camping and touring caravan site — land
north of Club House, Abbotsley Golf and Squash Club Ltd, Potton
Road.

Fenstanton (Pages 197 - 212)

Change of use from A1 (retail) to A1 (retail) and A5 (take away) — 28
High Street.



Notes

To consider reports by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

APPEAL DECISIONS (Pages 213 - 216)

To consider a report by the Planning Service Manager (Development
Management).

SECTION 106 AGREEMENT/CIL UPDATE

Chairman of the Advisory Group, Councillor R G Tuplin and Head of
Planning Services to report.

LATE REPRESENTATIONS

To be published on the website — www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk on
13th April 2012.

Dated this 4th day of April 2012

Head of Paid Service

A personal interest exists where a decision on a matter would affect to a
greater extent than other people in the District —

(a) the well-being, financial position, employment or business of the
Councillor, their family or any person with whom they had a close
association;

(b)  a body employing those persons, any firm in which they are a partner
and any company of which they are directors;

(c) any corporate body in which those persons have a beneficial interest
in a class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or

(d) the Councillor’s registerable financial and other interests.

A personal interest becomes a prejudicial interest where a member of the
public (who has knowledge of the circumstances) would reasonably regard
the Member’s personal interest as being so significant that it is likely to
prejudice the Councillor’s judgement of the public interest.

Please contact Ms C Deller, Democratic Services Manager, Tel No. 01480
388007/e-mail: Christine.Deller@huntsdc.gov.uk. If you have a general




query on any Agenda Item, wish to tender your apologies for absence
from the meeting, or would like information on any decision taken by the
Panel. However, if you wish to speak at the Panel's meeting regarding a
particular Agenda Item please contact Jackie Holland - Tel No. 01480
388418 before 4.30pm on the Friday preceding this meeting.

Specific enquiries with regard to items on the Agenda should be
directed towards the Contact Officer.

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers
except during consideration of confidential or exempt items of business.

Agenda and enclosures can be viewed on the District Council’s website —
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk (under Councils and Democracy).

If you would like a translation of
Agenda/Minutes/Reports or would like a
large text version or an audio version
please contact the Democratic Services Manager and
we will try to accommodate your needs.

Emergency Procedure

In the event of the fire alarm being sounded and on the instruction of the Meeting
Administrator, all attendees are requested to vacate the building via the closest
emergency exit.




62.

63.

64.

Agenda ltem 1

HUNTINGDONSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

MINUTES of the meeting of the DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT
PANEL held in the Civic Suite, Pathfinder House, St. Mary's Street,
Huntingdon, PE29 3TN on Monday, 19 March 2012.

PRESENT: Councillor D B Dew — Chairman.
Councillors Mrs B E Boddington,
P L E Bucknell, G J Bull, E R Buitler,
W T Clough, J J Dutton, N J Guyatt,

R B Howe, Mrs P J Longford, P D Reeve,
R G Tuplin, P R Ward and R J West.

APOLOGIES: Apologies for absence from the meeting were
submitted on behalf of Councillors
P A Swales and P K Ursell.

IN ATTENDANCE: Councillors B S Chapman, | J Curtis, J W
Davies, R S Farrer and A H Williams. .

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 27th February 2012
were approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor D Dew declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
Minute No. 64(a) by virtue of his close acquaintance with the
applicants and left the room during discussion and voting thereon.

Councillor N J Guyatt declared a personal and prejudicial interest in
Minute No. 64(a) by virtue of his close acquaintance with the
applicants and addressed the Panel on the application before leaving
the room during discussion and voting thereon.

Councillor P L E Bucknell declared a personal interest in Minute No.
64(a) by virtue of an acquaintance with the applicants.

Councillors J J Dutton and R J West declared a personal interest in
Minute No. 64(a) by virtue of their acquaintance with one of the
applicants as colleague Members of Cambridgeshire County Council.

Councillor P D Reeve declared a personal interest in Minute No. 64(g)
by virtue of his membership of Ramsey Town Council.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT

The Planning Service Manager (Development Management)
submitted reports (copies of which are appended in the Minute Book)
on applications for development to be determined by the Panel and
advised Members of further representations (details of which also are
appended in the Minute Book) which had been received in connection



therewith since the reports had been prepared. Whereupon, it was

RESOLVED

in the light of the personal and prejudicial interests declared by
the Chairman, Councillor D B Dew, Councillor P L E Bucknell,
Vice-Chairman acted as Chairman of the Panel for the
ensuing application.

(a)

Councillor P L E Bucknell in the Chair.

Erection of 2 proposed “Eco-Homes”, to be
constructed to level 5, land north of Hillside View,
Somersham Road, St. lves — 12/00210/FUL

(See Minute No. 63 for Members’ interests.)

(Councillor K Reynolds, applicant addressed the Panel
on the application.)

that the application be refused for the following
reasons:-

there is no essential functional rural need to justify the
provision of the proposed dwellings within this
countryside location. The sustainability credentials of
the design of the proposed dwellings combined with
the cessation of the existing storage use of the site
would fail to outweigh the inherently unsustainable
location of the site for housing where opportunities to
make necessary journeys by foot, cycle or public
transport are severely limited and where future
occupiers would be wholly reliant on private transport
to access nearly all services, employment and
facilities. As such the proposal would constitute an
unsustainable form of residential development and
would lead to an unjustifiable increase in new housing
development within the countryside which would be
incongruous in this location and detrimental to the rural
character and appearance of the countryside which
should be preserved for its own sake. For these
reasons, the proposal would be contrary to Planning
Policy Statement Nos 1, 3, and 7 and policies ENV7
and SS1 of the East of England Plan — Revision to the
Regional Spatial Strategy, May 2008, policies En25,
H23 and En17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan,
1995, policies CS1 and CS3 of the adopted
Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework Core
Strategy 2009 and policies E1, E8 and P7 of the
Proposed Submission 2010.

Councillor D B Dew in the Chair

Demolition of existing entrance and proposed
extension to include new entrance, party room,
office, restaurant and fitness suite for St. lves
Leisure Centre, St. Ivo Recreation Centre,



(c)

Westwood Road, St. Ives — 12/00019/FUL

(Councillor J J Dutton declared a personal interest in
the application as a Member of the District Council’s
Leisure Forum.)

(Mr T Smith, objector and Mr S Bell, applicant
addressed the Panel on the application.)

that the recommendation be approved subject to
conditions to be determined by the Head of Planning
Services to include those listed in paragraph 8 of the
report now submitted to include time limit (3 years),
material samples and hard and soft landscaping.

Residential development with access road, open
space and balancing pond, including demolition of
existing buildings, Houghton Grange, Houghton
Hill, Houghton, Huntingdon — 11/01937/0UT

(Councillor Mrs H Merryweather, Houghton and Wyton
Parish Council, Councillor A Williams, Ward Councillor
and Mr M Page, agent addressed the Panel on the
application.)

(i) that, having been advised of the views of the
Section 106 Agreement Advisory Group, the
Head of Legal and Democratic Services be
authorised to enter into an Agreement under
Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 to secure the contributions detailed in
paragraphs 7.56 — 7.82 of the report now
submitted;

(i)  that, subject to the completion of the Agreement
referred to in resolution (i) above, the application
be approved subject to the conditions to be
determined by the Head of Planning Services as
listed in paragraph 9 of the report now submitted.

Hybrid application for outline planning permission
(with all matters reserved for subsequent approval)
for 110 houses and full planning permission for a
foodstore, 6 retail units to provide A1, A2, A3 and
A5 uses, a service yard, associated car parking and
access, land north of Cambridge Road, St. Neots —
11/01368/0UT

(Councillor B S Chapman, Ward Councillor, Councillor
R S Farrer, adjacent Ward Councillor and Mr C Jones,
objector addressed the Panel on the application.)

(i) that, having been advised of the views of the
Section 106 Agreement Advisory Group and
variations in the contributions negotiated towards
primary health care, education and wheelie bins
which now amount to £36,375, £485,800 and
£4 290 respectively, the Head of Legal and



(e)

(f)

Democratic Services be authorised to enter into
an Agreement under Section 106 of the Town
and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the
contributions detailed in paragraph 7.20 — 7.24 of
the report now submitted;

(i)  that, subject to the completion of the Agreement
referred to in resolution (i) above, the application
be approved subject to conditions to be
determined by the Head of Planning Services as
listed in paragraph 8 of the report now submitted;

Change of paddock land to residential curtilage,
land east of Newlands, Huntingdon Road, Wyton —
12/00121/FUL

(Councillor A Williams, Ward Councillor and Mr J
Runchman, applicant addressed the Panel on the
application.)

that the application be refused for the following
reason:-

the proposed development is considered to fail to
comply with relevant national and local planning policy
and is unacceptable in principle, being unjustified
development in the countryside which would by the
domestication of the site and the associated activity
harm the character and appearance of the countryside
contrary to policies ENV7 of the East of England Plan -
Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy, May 2008,
En17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan, 1995, policies
CS1 and CS3 of the Huntingdonshire Core Strategy,
2009 and policies E1, E2 and P7 of the
Huntingdonshire Development Management DPD:
Proposed Submission 2010 and Planning Policy
Statement Nos. 1 and 7.

Removal of Condition 1 of Planning Permission
08/02744/FUL to make permission permanent.
Variation of Condition 3 of planning permission
08/02744/FUL to allow a caravan and mobile home
on-site for retention of use of land as a caravan site
for gypsy and traveller residential purposes,
pumping station, Paxton Road, Offord D’Arcy -
12/00062S73

(Councillor R Bartlett, The Offords Parish Council
addressed the Panel on the application.)

that, on the understanding that no new material
considerations are submitted prior to the expiry of the
neighbour consultation period, the Head of Planning
Services be authorised to determine the application
subject to conditions to include those listed in
paragraph 8 of the report now submitted and
additionally to prevent the occupation of the touring

4



(h)

(i)

@)

caravan whilst it is on-site.

Erection of two-storey detached dwelling and
creation of new vehicular access, land at 10 Hollow
Road, Ramsey Forty Foot — 12/00085/FUL

(Councillor | J Curtis, Ramsey Town Council,
addressed the Panel on the application.)

that the application be refused for the following
reason:-

this undeveloped site provides a transition from the
settlement to the open countryside to the east. The
proposed dwelling would extend the existing built form
of the village and, as the site is considered to relate
more to the countryside than the built-up area of the
settlement, constitutes a new dwelling in the
countryside without justification of a rural need. As
such the proposal would be contrary to Planning Policy
Statement Nos. 1 and 7, policy CS3 of the Adopted
Core Strategy 2009 and policies E1, E2 and P7 of the
Development Management DPD Proposed Submission
2010.

Change of use from office and storage/distribution
to B1 (light industrial) and/or B2 (general industrial)
and/or B8 (storage and warehousing), Unit 26,
Stephenson Road, St. lves — 11/02066/FUL

(Councillor J W Davies, Ward Councillor, Mr P
Wadsworth, objector and Mr M Page, agent addressed
the Panel on the application.)

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning Services to
include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted and in addition to restrict opening hours to
07.00 — 20.00 Monday to Friday and 07.00 — 18.00 on
Saturday.

Erection of multi-use community centre with
associated hard and soft landscaping and cycle
parking, land south of Rowley Park, Kester Way, St.
Neots — 11/01021/FUL

(Councillor B S Chapman, Ward Councillor and
Councillor R S Farrer, adjacent Ward Councillor
addressed the Panel on the application.)

that the application be approved subject to conditions
to be determined by the Head of Planning Services to
include those listed in paragraph 8 of the report now
submitted.

Change of use from amenity land to domestic
garden land, 55 School Road, Warboys -



65.

11/02129/FUL

that, contrary to the recommendation of the Head of
Planning Services, the application be refused for the
following reason —

the proposed development would detract from the open
character and appearance of the area contrary to
policies E1 and E7 of the Development Management
DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

APPEAL DECISIONS

By reference to a report by the Planning Service Manager
(Development Management), the Panel noted the outcome of nine
appeals against refusal of planning permission by the District Council
and the reasons for refusal in respect of two of the more notable
cases.

Members were pleased to note that the Inspector had dismissed the
appeal against the Council’s decision to refuse an application for four
wind turbines on land west of Bicton Industrial Park, near Kimbolton
but that the outcome of the appeal against the application for four
wind turbines at Woolley Hill north of Ellington still was awaited.

Chairman



Agenda ltem 3

COMT 26" March 2012
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY (Environmental Wellbeing) 10" April 2012
DM PANEL 16™ April 2012
CABINET 19" April 2012

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
(Report by Head of Planning Services)

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report recommends that a new Statement of Community Involvement
(SCI) is approved to replace the existing 2006 SCIl. A draft new SCI has
been prepared and was consulted on between 3 February and 16 March
2012. Some 23 comments from 13 organisations and individuals have been
received. Taking into account comments received, and any additional
comments from the Overview and Scrutiny (Environmental Wellbeing) Panel,
and the Development Management Panel, the document can be approved
with any necessary amendments.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Preparation of a Statement of Community Involvement is a requirement on
Council arising from the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
Initially, Councils were required to prepare a draft SCI and have it
independently examined by a Planning Inspector. This Council duly
prepared such an SCI which was examined and then adopted in October
2006. The requirement for independent examination was removed in 2009.
However, it is still necessary to have an approved SCI.

2.2 In an Equality Impact Assessment prepared in 2009 it was noted that the
2006 SCI was becoming dated and an action was identified to update it by
2012. Given the new Local Plan process agreed by Cabinet in December
2011, now is an opportune time. The Inspector who examines the Local
Plan will consider whether the plan has been prepared in accordance with
the SCI.

2.3The SCI's fundamental purpose is to set out how planning matters are
consulted on. The focus of the draft SCI is on the new Local Plan process,
although the procedures for other policy documents and consulting on
planning applications are also covered.

2.4The SCI fits with the Council’'s Corporate Consultation and Engagement
Strategy. That document was approved by Cabinet in February 2008 and is
at a higher level such that the two do not conflict.

2.5 The draft SCI states that the Council will encourage public participation within
the context of available resources and the potential for ‘consultation fatigue’.
The Local Plan will be prepared with consultation stages on the Sustainability
Appraisal Scoping Report (which has already occurred), key principles and
evidence, draft proposals and then publication. At the publication stage
comments can only be made on the issues of soundness as the plan will be
ready for examination. The timetable for these is set out separately in the



Local Development Scheme, approved by Cabinet in February 2012 and now
on our website.

2.6In respect of other planning documents such as Supplementary Planning
Documents and Urban Design Frameworks, it is noted that there will be at
least one period of public consultation prior to approval by Cabinet.

2.7 The procedures for planning applications follow relevant legislation and the
series of advice notes available on our website.

2.8 A consultation summary will be prepared for publication with the final SCI.

3. ISSUES RAISED IN COMMENTS

3.1 Appendix A summarises observations and objections received and the officer
response in respect of them. In addition to those in the appendix, several
respondents noted general support for the draft SCI.

3.2 In respect of policy issues, comments show an interest in the way that
Council will engage on strategic issues and the methods of consultation.
The support that Council can give for neighbourhood planning is also noted.

3.3 Comments on the process for considering planning applications mostly relate
to how applications can be viewed online and how objectors can be heard.
The Council has comprehensive systems in place which are continually
being reviewed and improved where appropriate.

3.4 Overall it is considered that the draft SCI is fit for purpose and no
amendments are required as a result of the consultation. Subject to
comments from the Development Management Panel, Overview and
Scrutiny and Cabinet, the procedures and processes can be finalised to
guide consultation on planning issues.

4. RECOMMENDATION

4.1 It is recommended that Cabinet authorises the Executive Councillor for
Strategic Planning and Housing, in conjunction with the Chairman of the
Development Management Panel and the Head of Planning Services, to
finalise and approve the Statement of Community Involvement.

Appendix A: Consultation Summary

Background Information

The consultation document and full comments are available on the Council’s
consultation portal: http://consult.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/portal

The Local Development Scheme is on the Council’'s website:
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/Planning/Planninq%20Policy/Pages/Local%20D
evelopment%20Scheme.aspx

CONTACT OFFICER - enquiries about this report to Paul Bland, Planning
Services Manager (Policy) on 01480 388 430



APPENDIX A
CONSULTATION SUMMARY

Summary of Comments

District Council Response

Policy Issues

Strategic scale proposals should
be subject to public consultation
before being included in a draft
Local Plan.

Council should publish a diary of
meetings with developers and
presentations on strategic scale
issues.

Strategic scale proposals such as that at
Alconbury Airfield will be outlined at the
key principles and evidence stage prior to
inclusion in the draft Local Plan. A diary of
all meetings would not be practical.

Cooperation with neighbouring
councils, including the County
Council, is supported.

The impact of neighbouring
developments such as the
proposed Great Haddon will
need to be taken into account in
the Local Plan.

Draft paragraph 4.2 recognises the need
for cooperation. The duty to cooperate is
a legal requirement under the Localism
Act and the impact of neighbouring
proposals will be considered in producing
the Local Plan.

An Appendix should be included
listing all the groups included on
the policy consultation database.
The process for being added to
the list should be noted.

There is an example of another Council
listing groups on their website (Mid
Sussex) but most other Councils have
not. The list would quickly become out of
date so the website would need to be
updated regularly. The list would have to
be limited to key contacts rather than all
individuals, but there could be issues of
Data Protection. The SCI indicates how
people can put themselves on the
consultation database. It is not
considered necessary to also have a
public list of who is on it.

Cambridgeshire Local Access
Forum should be added to the
list of those consulted with for all
policies that have implications for
access, recreation and rights of
way.

A relevant email address has been added
by the consultee to the consultation
database and therefore the
Cambridgeshire Local Access Forum will
receive automatic notifications of policy
consultations.

Engagement other than through
the online portal is to be
encouraged. The Federation of
Small Businesses would be
happy to support the authority in
business engagement, for
example by facilitating business
focus groups where local plan
activities have a significant
impact on the business
environment i.e. town centre or
major employment sites.

The SCI supports additional means of
engagement. The support of the
Federation of Small Businesses is
welcomed.

Neighbourhood Plans may be
difficult to produce. Guidance
and support may be needed.

Draft paragraph 5.3 recognises that
Council will need to provide guidance and
support.

9




Summary of Comments

District Council Response

Planning Application Issues

Consultation with neighbours
should be required prior to
applications.

Pre-application consultation for
small applications as well as
large can save time and money.
Are applicants already being
encouraged to consult with
neighbours and the local town or
parish councils as early as
possible?

Written materials exchanged
under preliminary enquiries
relevant to a later application
should be publicly available.

The Localism Act only requires
consultation on very large scale
developments at the pre-application
stage. The Council cannot require
consultation with neighbours for all
applications, although it is encouraged.
The Council’'s Pre-Application Advice
Notes specifically encourage prospective
applicants to consult with any neighbours
and the local Town/Parish Council.
Routinely making enquiries public would
discourage some early pre-application
discussions. Many people, for many
reasons, would rather their enquiry is not
revealed in advance of the submission of
an application and particularly during the
early stages of a prospective proposal.
Many enquiries are indeed not followed
by applications.

Applications should be available
to view online within 2 days of
validation.

Since the recent introduction of the
Electronic Document Management
(EDM), applications are available to view
within 2 days of the
consultation/notification letters being sent
out.

Viewing planning application files
has recently been made slower
by replacement of the ‘interface’.
This should be improved.

It is understood that the replacement of
concern on the Public Access system was
made last year when the system was
upgraded. Although this makes some
viewing slower, other aspects have been
improved. The Public Access software is
bought as a package.

Discharge of condition
applications should be given a
different type of reference
number to distinguish them on
the planning portal.

Recent improvements to ensure that all
documents displayed on the website are
clearly described will ensure that it is easy
to distinguish each conditions discharge
submission from other documents.

It would be useful to have all
‘consultee’ responses to planning
applications showing as is being
done in Kings Lynn and West
Norfolk.

All comments received have been
displayed on Public Access on the
Council’s website since the beginning of
this year. A specific system for statutory
consultees may be possible at some time
in the future as the Council is continually
working to improve the experience for
those viewing and responding to
applications.

Stakeholders should be notified
whenever there are significant
changes to application plans that
have already been consulted on.

Reconsultation/renotification is carried out
if significant changes to a proposal are to
be considered.

Consultation should be
thoroughly carried out. More

The views of local residents are given
very careful consideration and are

10




attention should be given to the
views of local residents.
Comments should not be readily
overruled.

Objectors should be made aware
of their right to be heard at
Development Management
Panel. Guidance on rights to be
heard could be included in
District Wide or sent out with the
annual Council tax bill.

summarised and considered in the officer
report published on the website for all
applications. When an application is
referred to the Development Management
Panel, objectors are sent a letter advising
them of their right to address the Panel.
The ‘Your Right to Speak at Development
Management Panel on planning
applications’ leaflet is available on the
Planning Applications page on the
Council’s website. The Council no longer
produces a District Wide magazine and it
is not considered appropriate to include
advice on this detailed matter with the
annual Council tax bill.

Summary of Comments

District Council Response

Monitoring and Review Issues

Paragraph 7.2 should describe
what is considered a suitable
manner for private consultations
to be carried out, as it states that
Council’s approach may be
amended where private
consultation has been carried out
in a suitable manner and the
results made publicly available. .

It may be that the Council will not need to
carry out consultation on an issue which
has already been consulted on. The
suitability of private consultation will need
to be considered in relation to the
complexity of the issue. The public
availability of the results is important and
the level of public response will help
inform whether there is a need for
additional consultation.

11




This page is intentionally left blank

12



Agenda ltem 4

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1102099FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: DEMOLITION OF EXISTING BUILDINGS AND
REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE TO PROVIDE 72
BEDROOM CARE HOME, TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED
LANDSCAPING AND PARKING WITH ACCESS FROM
LONDON ROAD

Location: ST IVES MOTEL LONDON ROAD ST IVES PE27 5EX

Applicant: CARE UK COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS

Grid Ref: 530769 270290

Date of Registration: 04.01.2012

Parish: HEMINGFORD GREY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application is before the Panel as it relates to a major form of
development that the Head of Planning Services considers should be
determined by Members.

1.2 The site, subject of this application, extends to 0.51 hectares and is
known locally as St lves Motel. The site comprises a single storey
building made up of a motel and a range of buildings comprising 16
letting rooms, set back from London Road. The permitted use of the
frontage building is used as a public lounge, conference facilities and
a restaurant. However, the motel is not in active use and has recently
been marketed for redevelopment.

1.3 The land is situated toward the northern end of London Road, also
known as the A1096, the main thoroughfare from the A14 to St. Ives.
To the north of the site is The Limes, a grade 2 listed building and a
residential development. To the west of the site is The Brambles,
again a residential development. Immediately to the south of the site
is a green easement and beyond that a recently constructed
residential development by Linden Homes, known locally as the ‘Yes’
development. The site lies adjacent to the St. Ilves Conservation Area
and lies in EA floodzones 2 and 3.

1.4 The proposal is to demolish the existing motel buildings and erect a
72 bedroom care home described by the applicant as being for “72
frail and elderly persons”. It will include ancillary administration,
catering and housekeeping accommodation. The layout also
incorporates smaller facilities such as a hairdresser, village shop,
gym and cinema room, referred to on the plan as an ‘internal village’.
The building will range from 2.5 stories in height to 3 stories and will
be approximately 11.9m high at the building’s tallest point. The wider
site will utilise the existing vehicular access from London Road and

13



26 car parking spaces will be provided to the north and east of the
building, inclusive of disabled parking. 14 Cycle spaces and an
ambulance waiting area will also be provided. The applicant has also
included a travel plan and a statement of public consultation
(undertaken privately by the applicant prior to the submission of a
planning application.)

2, NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

2.2 Technical Guidance to the National Planning Policy Framework
(2012) provides additional guidance on development in areas at risk
of flooding and in relation to mineral extraction.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e SS81. “Achieving Sustainable Development” — bring about
sustainable development by applying guiding principles of UK
Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 contributing to the
creation of sustainable communities.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration

e ENG1: “Carbon Dioxide Emissions and Energy Performance” —

for new developments of 10+ dwellings or 1000sgm non
residential development a minimum of 10% of their energy should

14



3.2

3.3

3.4

be from decentralised and renewable or low carbon resources
unless not feasible or viable

e T2: “Changing Travel behaviour” — bring about change in travel
behaviour including a reduction in distances travelled.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant

Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En2:“Character and setting of Listed Buildings” - indicates that
any development involving or affecting a building of architectural
or historic merit will need to have proper regard to the scale, form,
design and setting of that building

e HA43: “Hostels and Homes” — Special communal housing needs for
the physically and mentally handicapped, the homeless, elderly
and other individuals and households in stress within existing
communities will normally be encouraged.

¢ En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

e En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

e CS5: Health and Social Care — the development, improvement
and extension of facilities for health and social care in the
community will normally be permitted subject to environment and
traffic considerations.

e CS9: “Flood water management” — the District Council will
normally refuse development proposals that prejudice schemes
for flood water management.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e None relevant.

15



3.5

3.6

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then

click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing
water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — identifies London Road (St
Ives) as a smaller settlement in which residential infilling will be
appropriate within the built up area.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy
C3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and to promote
wider sustainability objectives.

E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District’'s
heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate
enhanced.

E4: “Biodiversity and Protected Habitats and Species” — proposals
should aim to conserve and enhance biodiversity. Opportunities
should be taken to achieve beneficial measures within the design
and layout of the development. Developments will be expected to
include measures that maintain and enhance important features.

E5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid
the loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value and
these should be incorporated effectively within the landscape
elements of the scheme wherever possible.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1

16



3.7

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development.

o H3: “Adaptability and Accessibility” — the location and design of
development should consider the requirements of users and
residents that are likely to occur during the lifetime of the
development.

e H4: “Supported Housing” — proposals for new supported housing
will be located within the existing built up area of Smaller
Settlements where a need for such a location can be
demonstrated and enable shops, public transport, community
facilities and medical services to be reached easily by those
without a car, as appropriate to the needs and level of mobility of
potential residents.

e H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

e C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There should
be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of water
resources.

Supplementary Planning Document:

The Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007
The Landscape and Townscape Assessment 2007
St Ives Conservation Area Character Assessment 2007

PLANNING HISTORY

There is extensive history relating to the motel use of the site which is
not directly relevant to this proposal. However, application
1101542FUL - erection of 80 bed care home was withdrawn following
initial concerns raised by officers regarding the scale of the
development and relationship to the site features and side boundaries
and frontage to London Road. This current application has been
submitted to address these concerns.

CONSULTATIONS

Hemingford Parish Council - recommends approval and defers to
statutory consultees with regard flooding, sewerage and parking
matters (COPY ATTACHED)

St. Ives Town Council — Recommends approval (COPY ATTACHED)

Environment Agency — recommend approval subject to conditions
relating to floor levels and surface water drainage

Cambs County Council Highways — Recommend approval subject to
conditions relating to highway crossover (inc. drainage details),

17



details of parking area, temporary facilities during construction,
visibility splays, off site highway improvement works.

55 NHS Cambridgeshire — confirm that they do have capacity to provide
primary medical services to residents of the care home and support
this application.

5.6 Cambs Archaeology — no objection subject to a condition to ensure
an archaeological investigation is carried out.

5.7 HDC Environmental Health — recommend a noise assessment is
carried out having regard for the amenity of future occupiers. They
also advise a condition to ensure that the development is carried out
with the land contamination report submitted as part of the
application.

6. REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 6 letters of objection from residents of Limes Park and 1 letter of
objection on behalf of the Limes Park Management Company.
Objections raised are:

* Lack of onsite parking for staff and visitors

* Flooding matters

* Pile driving will be detrimental to the Limes.

* Existing trees should be preserved and landscaping should be used
to obscure metal fencing and refuse storage area.

* A 3 storey development will overwhelm the Limes

* Cramped form of development.

* Scale of Development.

* Impact on property values.

* Impact on peoples’ privacy

* The kitchens, laundry etc is on the northern boundary and could be
a source of nuisance to residents of the Limes.

7. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

71 The main issues for consideration are: the principle of development;
scale, design and layout of the development and impact on the
adjacent listed building and conservation area; landscaping; impact
on residential amenity; highway matters; flooding matters;
sustainability matters; and archaeology.

The principle:

7.2 Local Plan policy H43 and DMDPD policy H4 provide support for

supported housing. This site is considered to lie in the built up area
of the smaller settlement of London Road (St Ives) and adjacent to
the market town of St. lves. This site lies just over 1km from the town
centre of St. Ives, where there is a wide range of amenities and a
number of doctor surgeries. For visitors and staff to the site, the
Guided Bus provides a direct link between Huntingdon, St. Ives and
Cambridge, including Addenbrookes hospital. There are also bus
stops near the development which provides a local bus link to St. lves
and access to non-guided buses travelling to Cambridge. This site is
considered to lie in a sustainable location and redevelopment of this
site for a care home is acceptable in principle.

18



Scale, design and layout of the development and impact on setting of the
Conservation Area and adjacent listed buildings:

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

Since the withdrawal of the previous application the applicant has
stepped the frontage of the care home further back in the site.
Currently the boundary between the development and the Limes
comprises mature, tall landscaping and this landscaping limits the
long distance views of the Limes. However, through negotiations, the
applicant has amended this detail, to allow for new landscaping along
the eastern and northern boundaries, providing an opportunity to
provide longer distance views across the mature setting of the Limes
on the approach to St. lves.

The building has been designed to recognise and respect the
constraints of the site, namely that it is long and narrow and contains
mature trees . The traditional frontage which is 2.5 stories in height
has been designed with curved windows and a hipped roof to reflect
design features within the Limes. The building goes on to rise to a 3
storey modern element as the building extends to the west. Glazing
has also been used to maximise solar gain, particularly from the west.
The fork design of the building to the rear respects the existing willow
tree which is a dominant feature to the rear of the site. The applicant
has intentionally designed the building with lower eaves and 3rd floor
accommodation within the roof space and this reduces the perceived
overbearing impact this building will have on the Limes.

Having regard for the scale of development, this proposal will be
11.9m tall at the building’s tallest point, when measured from London
Road. This is inclusive of the elevated position of the building to
overcome flood risk matters. For the avoidance of doubt, the
numerical detail shown on the plans refers to levels, (Ordnance
Datum Newlyn) used by the EA to establish ground levels for flood
risk management.

The adjacent development to the south, known locally as the ‘Yes’
development or LEL site comprises of mainly 2 and 3 storey
residential buildings. The Limes to the north is a converted, two
storey former Workhouse building. The design of the building within
the context of the streetscene along London Road has evolved
through the negotiations held between the Applicants and Officers. It
is considered that the scale of the building is well proportioned within
this context and is in keeping with the surroundings.

As part of the proposal, the applicant has included a street scene,
showing that the overall height of the development will be lower than
the tallest point in the Limes. Taking into consideration that the
building has been set back and the height will not exceed the height
of the tallest building within the Limes, it is considered that this
proposal will not be detrimental to the character and appearance of
the adjacent Conservation Area or the setting of the adjacent listed
buildings.

This proposal accords with Policies En5, En9 and En25 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 and policy E3 of the
Huntingdonshire  Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010.

19



Landscaping:

7.9

As part of the application, a tree survey has been submitted and
discussions have taken place between the application and the
Council’s tree officer. There is no objection to the landscaping as
proposed and conditions will be attached to ensure that the works are
carried out in accordance with the approved details. A condition
requiring details of the boundary treatment will also be required.

Residential Amenity:

7.10

7.11

712

713

7.14

The properties in the Limes that are nearest this site are
approximately 18m from the common boundary of the site and will be
approximately 26.9m from the northern elevation of the building,
separated by the common boundary. The dwellings in this part of the
Limes are also separated by way of rear gardens, garages and a
gravel vehicular access to those dwellings. As such there is
considered to be no significant overlooking impacts caused through
the proposal to the detriment of neighbouring amenity.

Neighbours have raised concerns with regard to pile driving
equipment being used on the site. Redevelopment of this site for any
form of development will require the use of heavy machinery and pile
driving may be required for works in close proximity to boundaries
and to prevent harm to retained trees. The nearest listed building
within the Limes is approximately 18m metres from the common
boundary with the development site. Due to the narrow shape of the
site it is considered reasonable to require details of the construction
methods including hours of construction for the wider site. The
applicant is legally required to ensure that this development will not
harm adjacent properties and therefore, physical damage to property
would be a private civil matter between the residents of the Limes.

Concerns have been expressed from neighbours regarding the
potential noise and nuisance arising from the kitchens, as they will be
to the north of the building. The kitchen is at ground floor level and is
proposed to be positioned approximately 11.5 metres from the shared
boundary at its nearest point. Cycle and car parking areas along with
the boundary treatment separate this part of the building to The
Limes. As referred to above the residential units within the Limes are
approximately 18 metres from the common boundary of the site. As
such the total separation distance will be approximately 29.5 metres
between the kitchen and the neighbouring dwellings. This is
considered sufficient to not result in a significant adverse impact on
the amenities of the neighbouring properties.

Also, in the interests of residential amenity, the applicant has
indicated that the green roof area shown on the plan of the 2nd floor
will not be accessible. This will be conditioned for the avoidance of
doubt.

HDC Environmental Health are concerned that the road noise from
London Road could be harmful to the amenity of future occupiers of
the frontage building. With that in mind a condition will be included to
ensure a noise assessment is submitted and approved by the local
planning authority.

20



7.15

Details of the boundary treatment will be conditioned to be agreed
with the Local Planning Authority, to further mitigate any concerns
relating to the kitchen. Should a nuisance become a statutory
nuisance, it would be addressed through Environmental Health
legislation. It is therefore considered that it would not be sustainable
to refuse this proposal on the grounds of impact on residential
amenity.

Highway Matters:

7.16

717

7.18

The Huntingdonshire DMDPD advises that this development should
provide a maximum of 48 parking spaces. The total proposed is 26
car parking spaces and 14 cycle spaces. The applicant has also
submitted a travel plan, setting out the company’s initiative to reduce
reliance on private car travel. In justifying the car parking provision,
the applicant has undertaken a study at other Care UK homes of a
similar size and concluded that 26 spaces is sufficient, inclusive of
shift change. This scheme will also allow the footpath outside the site
to be increased to 3m in width, allowing for cyclists and pedestrians to
access St. lves by cycle.

This proposal must be balanced against the existing use, which
creates a fallback position. If that use were recommenced with
maximum motel occupancy and public use of the bar/restaurant, the
existing car parking arrangement to the front of the building (20
spaces) would also be less than satisfactory. This proposal will
deliver more car parking than currently exists on the site. Taking into
consideration the fall back position, that residents will be unlikely to
drive, that the site lies in a sustainable location and that the policy
states a maximum provision, it is considered that a refusal of this
proposal on highway matters would be unsustainable. The Highways
officer has considered the fallback position and considers that the
proposed use will not be materially more harmful to highway safety,
than the existing use. If that use were to be recommenced, it would
not require planning permission.

Residents of the Limes have expressed concerns regarding overflow
parking within that development, particularly when there is a change
in shift pattern. The government has advised that the planning system
must operate in the public interest and must not seek to control
matters that are governed by other legislation. As discussed the
proposal could not be refused on car parking provision. If there is
congestion on the public highway, as a result of this development,
then it will be for the highways authority to enforce. However, parking
concerns on private roads and within private car courts will be the
responsibility of the land owner and therefore could not be controlled
by planning legislation.

Flooding matters:

7.19

The site is within Environment Agency Flood Zone 3a and within a
rapid inundation area as identified within the Huntingdonshire
Strategic Flood Risk Assessment.

21



7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

7.26

7.27

The National Planning Policy Framework states that inappropriate
development in areas at risk of flooding should be avoided by
directing development away from areas at highest risk, but where
development is necessary, making it safe without increasing flood risk
elsewhere.

A sequential approach is advocated and must be applied to the
identification of suitable sites for development and infrastructure in
flood risk areas and to the determination of planning applications.
This is to steer new development to areas with the lowest probability
of flooding.

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment details that the site
immediately adjacent to the south of the application site has been
granted permission for residential development within the same Flood
Zone. The site has also been included within the Strategic Housing
Land Availability Assessment and identified as being suitable,
available and achievable for residential development.

The applicants have researched to identify other potential sites within
the local area and have concluded that no other available or viable
sites would meet their operational requirements. There are already
several care homes within the district with an undersupply of care
beds within the east of the district. The only other potential site
identified within the 10 minute driving distance area to meet this
supply was also within Flood Zone 3a. It is accepted that it is not
possible for the development to be located in a zone with a lower
probability of flooding.

In accordance with the NPPF the proposed use for residential care
home falls within a vulnerability class of more vulnerable which is the
same vulnerability as the previous motel use. Within Flood Zone 3a a
more vulnerable use is required to pass the criteria of the Exception
Test. For the Exception Test to be passed:

a) it must be demonstrated that the development provides wider
sustainability benefits to the community that outweigh flood risk

The proposed development provides landscaping and car parking
provision. The care home will provide social and community benefits
and will provide local employment opportunities. The Flood Risk
Assessment also states that the use has the potential to free up other
housing stock in the local area.

b) a FRA must demonstrate that the development will be safe for its
lifetime taking account of the vulnerability of its users, without
increasing flood risk elsewhere, and, where possible, will reduce flood
risk overall

The submitted Flood Risk Assessment concludes that the
development is safe in terms of flood risk and will not increase the
risk of flooding elsewhere. The Environment Agency considers that
the proposed finished floor level is sufficient mitigation to allow for any
breaching or overtopping events.

It is considered that the development is appropriately flood resilient
and resistant, including safe access and escape routes. Having full

22



regard to the submitted information and proposed development the
proposed development is compliant with both national and local policy
in this regard.

Sustainability matters:

7.28

The applicant is proposing to use a combined heat and power plant to
generate onsite energy. Details of sustainability measures will be
conditioned to be agreed with the Local Planning Authority. It is also
considered that the site is capable of using water efficiency methods,
namely water butts, which can be used for the landscaped areas.
This will also be conditioned.

Archaeology:

7.29

Records indicate that the site lies in an area of high archaeological
potential. The terraces are known to support Neolithic and Bronze
Age settlement and ceremonial sites, overlain by ladders of Roman
enclosure systems, some of which may have been related to
horticultural practises in the floodplain (Fenstanton sites). Evidence
confirms this broad date range of human occupation. Therefore the
site should be subject to a programme of archaeological investigation,
which will be conditioned.

Contamination :

7.30

The applicant has taken a precautionary approach and included a
land quality risk assessment for potential contamination. For the
avoidance of doubt HDC Environmental Health have requested a
condition to ensure works are carried out in accordance with that
assessment.

Conclusion:

7.31

7.32

This proposal has been well designed and will not be significantly
detrimental to the amenity of residents in the adjoining development,
detrimental to the setting of the adjacent listed buildings or the
character and appearance of the adjacent Conservation Area. The
parking provision is not materially more harmful than the current
arrangement serving the existing lawful use and this proposal has
been designed to mitigate flooding.

As such the proposed development is considered to be compliant
with the National Planning Policy Framework, East of England Plan
(2008) policies SS1, ENV7 and ENG1, Huntingdonshire Local Plan
(1995) policies En2, H43, En18, En20, En25, CS5 and CS9, Adopted
Core Strategy (2009) policies CS1 and CS3, Development
Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010 policies C1, E1, E2,
E3, E4, E5, E10, H3, H4, H7 and C5.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

23



8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:

Nonstand time limit

Nonstand materials

Nonstand window detail

Nonstand hard and soft landscaping

Nonstand details of cycle storage

Nonstand Details of sustainability measures
Nonstand Details of water butts

Nonstand archaeology

Nonstand floor levels

Nonstand Surface water drainage inc access
Nonstand Highway crossover

Nonstand parking layout etc

Nonstand Temporary facilities during construction
Nonstand Vis splays

Nonstand Details of works to footway

Nonstand Access minimum width

Nonstand Tree protection pre start meeting
Nonstand Protection of trees and hedges during works

-grassed roof areas shall not be used by residents
-Development to be carried out in accordance with
contamination survey

-Noise Assessment required to protect amenity of
future occupiers.

-Hours of construction.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development Management Officer
01480 388434

24



To: DevelopmentControl[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DEVELOPMENTCONTROL];

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 1102099FUL
Sent: Tue 2/14/2012 9:27:23 AM
From: developmentcontrol@huntsdc.gov.uk

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided
below.

Comments were submitted at 9:27 AM on 14 Feb 2012 from Mrs Lesley Caie.

Application Summary

Address: St Ives Motel London Road St Ives PE27 5EX

Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and redevelopment of the site to provide 72
bedroom care home, together with associated landscaping and parking with access from
London Road

Case Officer: Clara Kerr

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Lesley Caie

Email: parishclerk@hemingfordgrey.org.uk

Address: Hilton Court Hilton Road, Fenstanton, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE28 9PY

Comments Details

Commenter Type: Town or Parish Council

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Reasons for comment:

Comments: HGPC recommends approval of this application subject to the following
concerns being addressed: Flooding Sewerage issues Still not enough additional parking or
cycle stands

25



To: Kerr, Clara (Planning Serv)[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=CKERR];

Cc: peterquest@ntlworld.com[peterquest@ntiworld.com];
Subject: RE: 1102099FUL.doc

Sent: Thur 3/8/2012 4:38:37 PM

From: Hemingford Grey Parish Clerk
Hello Clara

| understand you have spoken with Peter Quest, our Planning Committee Chairman,
regarding this issue.

After further consideration, the Hemingford Grey Parish Council does still wish to
recommend approval of this application subject to the statutory authorities being
satisfied in respect of the following concerns :

Flooding issues including at Limes Park;

Sewerage capacity issues;

Not enough additional parking or cycle stands.

We hope this alteration of wording helps to clarify HGPC’s position, but please feel free
to contact me if there are any further queries.

We do understand your point about the apparent confliction, but the PC wants to be
assured that experts will be satisfied regarding these areas in which the PC has no real
expertise.

Kind regards

Lesley

26



Lesley Caie
Clerk

Hemingford Grey Parish Council

From: Kerr, Clara (Planning Serv) [mailto:Clara.Kerr@huntingdonshire.gov.uk]
Sent: 07 March 2012 09:21

To: parishclerk@hemingfordgrey.org.uk

Subject: FW: 1102099FUL.doc

Dear Hemingford Grey PC,

Please find attached the comments from Cambs County Highways. You will note
that Mr. Hobbs does not object to the proposal and has recommended approval,
subject to conditions.

The Parish will now see that with regard to flooding and highway matters, the
statutory consultees have no objection in principle and recommend approval
subject to conditions.

Can you please confirm that this has overcome the parish concerns and that the
Parish continue to recommend approval of this proposal.

Many thanks and kind regards,

Clara.

27



Clara Kerr

Development Management Officer
Huntingdonshire District Council
Ph: 01480 388434

Fax: 01480 388472

Mail@ clara.kerr@huntsdc.gov.uk

Please note that the comments within this communication are made
without prejudice to the determination of any application for this site.

Important note regarding the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).

It is anticipated that Huntingdonshire District Council will adopt its Charging
Schedule in April of this year. Once adopted, Huntingdonshire District Council
will be obliged to collect the CIL Levy from liable parties from the date of
adoption once development commences which received planning permission on
or after the date of that adoption. It is important that the liable parties (usually
either developers or landowners) are correctly identified as early as possible.
For more detailed information on CIL, the developments the charges will apply
to, how much the charge will be and the process involved, the Community
Infrastructure Levy pages on the Council’s website www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk
should be referred to. Development proposals which create less than 100 square
metres of internal floorspace will be exempt from the Community Infrastructure
Levy and will not be charged.

However development which creates one or more new dwellings will be charged
the Community Infrastructure Levy irrespective of the floorspace created.

From: Hobbs Robin [mailto:Robin.Hobbs@cambridgeshire.gov.uk]
Sent: 05 March 2012 10:37

To: Kerr, Clara (Planning Serv)

Cc: DevelopmentControl

Subject: 1102099FUL.doc

28



|eaoidde

Ajlloyine Jojem 99s 0] Juem

pINOM pue eale 8y} ul sulelp

yum swajgo.d 1sed buipiebal
passaldxa sem UIaouo) e

SJO)ISIA

Jo} pue abueyog yiys je Jejnoied
Ul UJaouod B sem Bupjied e

Janamoy paroidde

alom sjuswobuelle [elouab

9y} pue paWOod|aM BI9M Sal}|I0.)

X3S /Z3d S9AIIS

peoy uopuoT

[SION SBA| 1S

peoy UOPUOT WOlj SS800.

yum Buppied pue Buideospue| pajeloosse
ypm Jayiabo) ‘ewoy a4ed woolpaq

arg ¢ciMm
Aauing

peayJiayies
aALIQ YoJlouloy |
Jouep\ yoiouloy |

Buiuueld vMv

9led [BUOIIIPPE JO UOISINOI] e 2. @pinoid oy ayis ay} Jo Juswdojaaspal sdiysiauped AN xA)
leaouddy puswwiosay N4 pue sbuipjing Bunsixa jo uonjowaq Alunwwo) yn a1ed 6602011

uonesiddy uoI}es0 juabyuesijddy Bay ajeq

[1I9UNOY J913SI O] UOIJePUBWIWOIY Jo adA pue jesodo.d JO SSaIppy pue sawepN pue oN ddy

LN3IINdOTIAIA b0 NOISSINYId ¥0d SNOILVIITddV

C¢l0Z AYVNNVT SC : F3LLININOD ONINNV1d TIONNOD NMOL S3AI 1S

29



Development Management Panel : "
Application Ref: 1102099FUL H U n -I-I n g d O n S h | re

Location: Hemingford Grey DISTRICT C€COUNTZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

TTT 44
-4

\ Hotghton Al
'4&)6'%99 =13 (E
CeE e P

=) d
a
= = .
P » ﬂ R_ﬂ d; °
0
j l= o :
5& ;
;
o &=
o
¢/ 3
/
d’ The Orchar
Pt "’ Tors O
/
I/ v
a
>
-
S
* 3 5 Xy,
£
7 4
5 uThe g
% q,

§ i L/
=%
&
& Z
[ S >
S £
Legend ] P
"/ /] The Site
:_-_-_-_: Conservation Area X

Scale: 1:5000 30



om)| |
ey | Br—w|

NVid 3LIS ONUSHE

v

QY0¥ NOOGNOT 'S3N 1S

NN 3YYD YO INOH TvD JIS0ON

SLO3ALIHOYY
NOogMALVdL
s13iINva

WL IOV P
21 2094 (5201 XV

NOLLYOTIIdY ONINNYI

Fo
5
T
o 2
2
y -
/
/,
6.7
o /it >
B 2
- >
a5
v
P
&
L
o
o A
spy L
s pa

.;
i
L =
% - =
&
2 2
2 2
)
2
2 X WO IS -
L8
v
2 2
A
) po 2 2> b
r-3
»wsbbb “
s & Vs
L8 p

vzl

wei wH
S g .?..mm

o= En
& = L L H 2
421G aa]
s g wsi-g)uH
¥ ~ 4a8q "3I0WO:
~ 819
o
£
.
{ b o 23
& ¥4 o5 moj Buidesy
S % i
e /
~ e
= = - =
Ssh = #H A
St —tt I
o ’
N o 4
b s e
99 &=
=
= i’ -
2
~
= =
]
iy _UDD.W!
67l SN
™

wny

qostn b
S19

L), NS z
. ..Ml ' .
P
(3
>
. ¥
%
S
25
"




.....

e SLOALIHJWY
whunea NOBWILYL
s131INva

e N v 1
dai

[

— -

FNE IMS NOONDT
G INUOMLNIA UG OF
BOANS vasuaL Lvd




o
e
[ s Cormwn]

SNOILYATE ONLLSIX3 A0

QYOU NOGNOT'S3AI LS Q ®
41 THVD 4O INOH VD ISOIOUd
.......

H“_a”:hﬂnﬂ_lnﬂ SLJALINONY \
a:n..undﬁ.ﬂuﬂ NORMALVd m
Tl IROHLEIN IS €1RINVa i)
soQusvIRve © 2N V1

: = 8 - 9 NOILVA3T3 WV -V NOILVATT3

En.eh.,_aﬂu olio = = = 7s E | [ ] O L

SNOUYAITR —/
v
g:ﬂhﬂmﬂ pay
— L3 1104 4
s o0l
“”!M-.,_umli!éii! 5MI—m 66'LL

QD = J NOILVAT T2y

: P P P /v N

4 x4

d - dNOILVAT3

-3
ok 8101

2804




[ wvi] [ seniar ]
(] [ mosme | Im=e 001:1 LHOR ‘NOLLO3S SSOHO
EWQW@&KU
QVOH NOGNCT 'S3AI LS
3N FHYD HO4 INOH Fivd QIS0JOBd
e H:
s 193AYe m
soousvaeuaive © MW 1 ﬁ—._l._ox _
aa 528 T
LE MOTIM ONIdTIIM = 3Tgisr m..wm.v <
— = DUl L v/ S
_”\ w m m .o.ﬂd..lH\ «an ‘....aauiuau.su..lm
4 = .%o - .&m&&
JOVLNOYS ® o v ‘m o RS
i mew_nw_.w_.n s HOMIA ¥3ATIS 021 " .% gl
SIVIS SRiMvEa TA.H%.“ L+
_ 0006 XOHdgY
_
001:4 1431 ‘NOILO3S SSOHO

ONIQTINg

49 G |
e 3OVHVO ™
D £ j% i -.uﬁ o ..M»%m /\u_ﬁo ANITLNO
HOHM ERAER2
44 ﬁ i
ﬂ “H¥00|[ 31N Wooua38 = Do
4S8 JOVINOYA
_W 3JONV1SIa .O.W__W%.w__.D_.M
3HL NI
s o Pyt < S3IANL a3aisn
| 0000€ "XO¥dd¥Y ET7Th] | 40 3NINLNO
_

0SZ:1 NOILO3S SSOHD

WuOy  OF O8O Ous sy stp miag iy

P11 NOSWILvd STINVO DNY1 - (1020




| [ condawior | 2=y

NVd 3US 03S040ud

QVOH NOONOT 'S3A IS
N FdvD WO IHOH FuvD GIS0JOud

it a0V e

wiizove oreys  SADALINOWY
wnumio i NOSMAILVAY
IHE IME NOONQ)

mrvoumnsa 5131 NVA
Seonus vaswive O N v 1

dd

e —— T B

D ]

WAOHAY ALTMOMLIY
OO0 0L LI3(BNS ONY SNOUOYd ATIVEINGD
BV STVIHALYW OVAUNS TG

“ATNO SALLYMLSATIT
ggtmgggg

A

WOR'L= LHOIFH

b / - e 5 Bt
£ 3 / o ! :
mmu( S mmmﬂh /o i > 4 “JON34 MIGWIL

d30¥v08E 38010

/ @w Q&@M W\ 7 \ A5 = 3 :AVONNO@ HLNOS

o




CIT | LI |

800ddwios | == sie]
Do wiven]

QvOd NOONOT 'S3N LS
N YD ¥O3 INOH TV GISOITN

crrrene

mweneanine  LJALINONY

WML NOBMALVL
IMCUMS NOUNGT g 3 g3 | NV @

dan

0l S 0

[ ettt l“
|
]
s 400y !
i 1vd !
’ |
-
~
el
>
*y
4008 1V13
4004
v
~a
Arl‘ \\ J
S~ X i)
Itl! ’ rl ’
Bt RN
~, /
=< [ = o
ll,f '’ IIII
e ~
.
N
ONVHHIAD \./I
e ¥
<

HLYON

4004
1vid

flr 84 3
P
o N
(e]s) 3
Q en
L e <
oo JERD O P >
NON OO 3K

36




0SZ:} NOILVAZT3 1SaM

[ ave] [ |
2] ptile e

1S3M ONV 1SV3 SNOLLVAT13
un

GYOH NOGNO1 'S3AI ‘1S
N 34V HO INOH TYD GIS0dOUd

_Es

sezmiczoa MOSWEAVA
FHC IME NCONOT

T INPOHLEIA IS OF g13iINva
soousvasuauvwe © NV I

dd

0011 NOILVATT3 1SV3

00L:L NOILYATTI 1S3M

—_—
Ei]
= — _
@ @& .‘.,..rww,uw.._., % .
= @%;w
L 8
.W,..,._ W m
— ALY _
= . i > T — [t
= quM’n&v&W_
- PFP P
vwwuvlmkuvww 4 q\v_
= | , SR
\ A uw x
m i ! Sl 7 4 »7
pay b PeRP pd
SZLL XO¥ddY N i i
w..w p ° (] SONVLSIO 3HL NI ONICING ¥Y3Y 40 INLNO
3 LA
b m”w,. pos]
s\ =
s »
no® le-
1 vVnW\«.uV
£
wuw 00} AN JLHM SONNOUUNS MOGNIM ps Ww 00} ¥IANTY JLIHM SONNOBUNS MOTNIM
HNOT0D 44nE 'STUS MOGNIM 18VD Tnid 100D 4408 ‘STUS MOONIM 1SVO Rid
AN AJHD NVQ AN AZHD HVQ
SMOGNIM SMOGNIM
G3A0ON3Y 38 0L
113408 ALHM 'SIAVI AZO 114408 ALHM 'SIAVI ATHO zo(ez1) S3L
HNOT0 A3MO 'IUVS TWIDLLLNY 'STILL JO0H - L0Y ¥Y1dOd 40 dNOY

UNOTICI ATHO ‘ALVIS TVIDLILLEY "STUL J00YH - L0H

HNOTIOD ALIHM "HIONIN - 20M
go.usgégutu.vg

SZL:L ‘NOILVAZ13 18v3




L ] [ semies ]
0 oddaos | = i) : |
[ [ oaama | = 001:1 LHOIM ‘NOILVATT3 HLYON
1 1 5
M Mo ,, y / | s
QvOY NOGNO' 'S3N LS |
....... * , w35k ()] - <] — >

sewenctes GL9ALINONY | 7 5 = - S
wiousmeta NOBWIAVL Wt 5 \ . o -o T T T
N.:t-..anhm "._“_-cxn “Aﬂ.\ ¥ SR \ e . -. ) 3 .. (<) &

P P

dail| .= o® F :
v v [3 zs A, = = ok .
A oo dS TEaEe . |, o e &
/w F - B = = FFP p / g = v. o —
lﬂﬂlﬂl = P p A\ 3 &, f o/ ( v v Y L
L s s | A N : W e o i "
17 e T8 o b one? i :
W S = = \ =
NOLIVOTadY ONINY A | S34 L Wi L e i

[ suwsoumwa] » 5 ¢ I3 =7

I N (T -

b * b ¥ v‘qu TN *;
b b w b 3 v
; Siia T
5 .._w.w\ﬂ..uvww o &
sb B
004:1 1431 ‘NOILYA3I3 HLHON
| ée8
=
WM avoy NOANO1
™
7=
NOININNTY ASYO Yava
HO0A IONVAING

JAdN AFHO Huva

QIAOWIH 38 0L L3N / STANVA GILVINENI ONV SMOGNIM - SOM
z0(z21) 53341 HNOIOD ATHO ¥HVQ HOIMNE ONIOVA - ¥0M
¥V1dOd 40 dNO¥ SNV NOININNTY AFUO TIVM NIVLNN - E0M

HNOTIOD ALHM "HIANIY - ZOM
E..OJOUE.!O.*O!Q(&.—E

0SZ:1 NOILVATT3 HLYON

Tuwwy of O 0 0

P11 NOSilivd STINVO ONYY - LIZQ




001:} LHOIM ‘NOLLVAT 13 HLNOS

nl
..... 1
Pl 1 avod NOANO
w03 R T Ve O . \ll =
B1L1 2099 (020¥X¥4 SLJALIHONY c H
g SRR RLI R Z ® ;
O FUOHLIATS OF S13INVO G b - - -
soousvassauve O 0N ¥V = -y o 3
- L4
dd % 3 SR AR
Wi 004 HIANIY ILIHM SONNONUNS MONIM < i alﬂ > : e
dNoT00 * » s
4408 'STUS MOONIM 1SVO Fuid N V 3 2
= SMOGNIM e AT ) > ot
[ i S | qvv..ﬂﬂv% I3 LAL i
113408 JUHM 'SIAVE ATHO ] o e, b » o®
HN010D ATHO ‘3LVTS TVIOIILLYY ‘STIL 00 - 108 - b T e e T T
vaJ v b C=y (2 ® > p P AF
ONIOQYIO HIANLL XNV - 90M NGT o B b & o PR e
AL ONIGOYIO VL3N / STINVG G3LVINSNI GNY SMOGNIM - SOM Rt il by " &vu:.. A 8 it > M
SNUVLS SNIMVSG HNOTI0D ASHO VA "NIE ONIDVS - rOM 13 3 4 w P B | 4 L4
NV WNININNTY ASHO ‘TIVM NIVLNND - E0M wnr® iy W ke & %vwl..urq m@pw_wv fva ~
¥NOT0D ALIHM HIANM - ZOM LA T2 vw“wvv./v Dok~ WP SIgERr s | R
UNOTOI 33N8 HORIE ONIOVS - LOM W( w® p B ? s\h 3 au WL o® BT bR b
b 4 1vwv N\ 8 (4 Ak Vviu b
v
vawaw mu %
L F= = B
PP b ® P
= Y
pb b b
i
|
A\ » . = e
, - s m . . -
G % - N
£y i s < X
¥ - ;
o, L. -
’
T e 28 -k g
s < T = =
5 Y 0 ¥ - — —
K2 g g NES
s A
s r~= Y
SEs e \_ ; v e \
v v LAY X ! pay
s A sTLh
AN L7}
>
K ¥
o
e

0SZ:1 NOLLVA3T3 HLNOS

ANINH0T3AI0 TMLNSQISIY ONLLSIXT

f

vy OF 02 0 | Oupoe sng mp g iy
i1 NOSHILYd STINVO ONVY - LIGED




5 =)

[ v
7| [ sioaasior | =]

.....

A

¥ G3AON3Y 38 0L
T~ 20 (zz1) S33WL
UV1dOd 40 dNO¥D

wg}
Youiq

A4
C
Do

w

‘ S e
0D ‘UJOYIMDH ‘|9ZDp”

829

A

I

-




.

% =

iy, .
Y =777
i, \

sty

’
RS
N
A7 S
RS ~
~ a
S S
o] Y
S ~

~ ~

~ A

. S

N

.
~

~

~

~
>
=
- > i
i g
Rl L
-

o

_

>




I grazs

bt

Jf gl
RN
ii [ welac%|igs:8 :

20

10

NORTH




NY1d 3004 aNOD3S
e
QYOM NOONO' 'S3NI A
%N 3D HO4 INOH IV QIS0dONd
T

’ ol
i ess opys  SAJALIHIWY

sezpzioniozolnal NOSWALYA
IHCWMS NOONOT g 9 3 | NV @

T dan

SCITNLS VaSuALIVE
[ J o o
= i s |

NOLIVOTdd¥ ONINNYd

[ snivisonmwwid]

oot ey = |

H4O0H Lv1d

ONINIG
/39NNOT

J
’
LA
NN
. % =
(3 73
=== iy
] T
e
—
— e
301440 :
ISUN L
30Ms, -
Fatr
3
.lfl.ll,l ~a
lllll 1 -
==d

43

-2 -
- N
P = N
- \
== Y
e \
-= \
\
\
\
\
Lo \
\
>
oS 2
(]
=
o -
'AS
-~
N
[y,
[0 N,
ver
s
=
L
a e
~
X s
X . >
NN ) \v
N ’
X ”
X A4
BN 4 °
/1 73
S 4 =
X v 8
X '
N A
R
” 8
v
8
3




This page is intentionally left blank

44



Agenda ltem 5a

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1200356FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: RETROSPECTIVE APPROVAL FOR  SITING OF
GREENHOUSE, CONTAINER AND SMALL TOURING
CARAVAN

Location: TWO HOOTS FARM SAWTRY WAY WYTON

Applicant: MR AND MRS WRIGHT

Grid Ref: 528834 272897

Date of Registration: 29.02.2012

Parish: HOUGHTON AND WYTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The site is bounded by hedgerow to the highway and the public right
of way to the south east of the site. Beyond the public footpath to the
south east lies buildings and arenas, associated with New Manor
Farm equestrian centre. The land slopes away to the south and
south west. Access to the site is gated from Sawtry Way.

1.2 The arena and stable building on site already benefit from planning
permission.
1.3 This application is retrospective to retain the existing greenhouse and

container. The proposal also seeks the siting of a small touring
caravan to be placed on site. The existing mobile home is to be
removed and does not have the benefit of planning permission.

2, NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

45



3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the effective
operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted
mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e None relevant

3.5 Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing

46



3.6

3.7

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

6.1

water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

e P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.
a. essential operational development for agriculture, horticulture
or forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related activities, allocated
mineral extraction or waste management facilities, infrastructure
provision and national defence;
b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location is justified;
c. renewable energy generation schemes;
d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;
e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of
existing buildings in accordance with other policies of the LDF;
f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental to
existing dwellings;
g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development
Plan Documents.

Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment (2007)
PLANNING HISTORY

The use of the site for livery purposes was granted planning
permission in December 2008. Subsequently applications for related
buildings and facilities have been submitted.

The most recent planning application for the site relates to the
erection of pitched roof addition onto existing flat roof stables, to be
used as storage which was refused permission and dismissed at

appeal (1100334FUL).

An application for the retention of the greenhouse, container and
static caravan was previously withdrawn.

CONSULTATIONS

Houghton and Wyton Parish Council — recommend refusal (SEE
ATTACHED)

CCC Rights of Way Team — comments awaited
REPRESENTATIONS

None yet received.

47



7.

7.1

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider in respect of this application are the
need for the structures and buildings and the impacts on the open
countryside.

Need for the Proposed Buildings

7.2

7.3

7.4

The agent has confirmed by email received 27th March 2012, that the
caravan is required to provide day care facilities for the applicant’s
child whilst the family are using the livery.

As this relates to the applicant’'s young child, it would seem
reasonable to impose a condition requiring the removal of the
caravan when no longer required for this function.

The agent has confirmed that the applicant seeks a permanent
permission for the container on site in order to provide storage in
connection with the livery (including a large machine for cutting
grass). The greenhouse is proposed to complement the small
vegetable patch which provides food for the horses. Both of these
requirements are considered to be reasonable is relation to the livery
use of the site.

Impacts on the Open Countryside

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

The greenhouse is located within an area used for growing
vegetables and thus forms a logical extension to that use. The
structure is light, relatively low and it is not considered to create harm
such that it would undermine the character of the area.

The storage container is located to the north of the approved stable
block. It is slightly lower in height than the stables which helps to
screen the structure. However it is visible from Sawtry Way above the
hedgerow. It is recognised that this structure does not represent high
quality design given its functional appearance. However, it is
considered having regard to the siting of the container and its colour
(green) that its retention in this location would not have a significant
adverse impact on the character and appearance of the surrounding
countryside, in this instance.

The proposed touring caravan is considered to have a lesser impact
than the static caravan which is situated on site without the benefit of
planning permission and measures approximately 11.8 metres in
length by 3.6 metres in depth and 2.5 metres in height. The touring
caravan would also seem to provide a more reasonable scale of
facilities (to reflect the need suggested by the applicant) in
association with the livery use on site. The agent has confirmed that
the applicant intends to site a touring caravan 4 metres in length on
the site, exact details of the touring caravan have not been specified.
Whilst these details are not considered to be specifically required, it is
recommended that the size of the touring caravan on site is controlled
via the imposition of a condition.

It is considered that the proposed siting of a touring caravan of the
size and location proposed would not, in this instance, have an
adverse effect on the character and appearance of the surrounding
area and would not form a permanent addition in the landscape.

48



Conclusion

7.9

7.10

7.11

The proposed permanent retention of the greenhouse and storage
container on site is in this instance acceptable and is not considered
to have an adverse effect on the character and appearance of the
surrounding area.

The siting of a touring caravan to provide day care facilities for the
applicant’s young child is in this instance considered acceptable in
order to provide a specific facility for a temporary period. The
temporary siting of the caravan is not considered to have an adverse
effect on the character and appearance of the surrounding area

In approving the application, the relevant guidance and policies were
identified as The National Planning Policy Framework (2012), policy
ENV7 of the East of England Plan, policies En17 and En25 of the
Local Plan, policy CS1 of the Adopted Core Strategy, policies E1 and
P7 of the Development Management DPD Submission, the
Landscape and Townscape Assessment.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:

02003 Time Limit

Nonstand The touring caravan hereby permitted shall be

removed from the site and the site shall be restored
to its former condition within 5 years from the date
of this decision, or when no longer required to
provide day care facilities for the applicants’
child(ren), whichever is the sooner.

Nonstand The touring caravan shall not exceed 4 metres in
length.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Michelle Nash Development Management
Officer 01480 388405

49



To: DevelopmentControl[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DEVELOPMENTCONTROL];

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 1200356FUL
Sent: Thur 3/22/2012 2:11:03 PM
From: developmentcontrol@huntsdc.gov.uk

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided
below.

Comments were submitted at 2:11 PM on 22 Mar 2012 from Miss Lois Dale.

Application Summary

Address: Two Hoots Farm Sawtry Way Wyton Huntingdon PE28 2DY

Proposal: Retrospective approval for siting of greenhouse, container and small touring
caravan

Case Officer: Michelle Nash

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Miss Lois Dale

Email: clerk@houghtonwytonpc.org.uk

Address: 46 St Margarets Road, Wyton, Cambridgeshire PE28 2AN

Comments Details

Commenter Type: Town or Parish Council

Stance: Customer objects to the Planning Application

Reasons for comment:

Comments: Houghton and Wyton Parish Council recommend that this application be
REFUSED. We believe there is no substantial change from the last application (Ref:
1102045FUL). Our reasons for refusal then were: ‘Houghton and Wyton Parish Council
recommend that this application be REFUSED pending detailed explanations of the need for
the mobile home, greenhouse and container and their purpose in the open countryside.
There is also some confusion over the ‘proposed hay-loft’ referred to on the drawings and
not mentioned in the application’. Our reasons for refusal have not been overcome and still
stand.

50



Development Management Panel : "
Application Ref: 1200356FUL H un -I-I N g d Aris h | re

Location: Houghton and Wyton DISTRICT ¢€OUNTC IL
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

=<5 =S = "

o, Z
N

/\\é%ﬂ HU‘QJ&.)’\\‘B\\ B ‘-a‘aramu_,.ﬁv' =0 —=
< “ %&6%%&% ._DE%',; £/ o
R ton g
{? @ &é O \%@69 H ¢ Sy ¥ ?

N

e
VK

il
- Houghton )JA
5 Hill Fm Stadiv

= L. #Rlack Br

—e——® sEo. £ 1
; = =) T . i
TR ey I
&
’)ﬁi",

Legend '/

1 . [ f e )
L__ I Conservation Area |/, - %7

oa 4 Y, A
o RONINTDONTS i =

i I:l Eagle Mi) “The Hayards
Scale: 1:5000 51




. SR, . . - TR . ittt _.

o

1:500

10 20m

o

|

GREENHOWSE

5-“-‘2'7““ 2!5“

CoNTAIN R,

SMALL  ~—
TOURING
CARAVAN

rev B 27 march 12
reference to storage over stables omitted

e Paul Aitchell + Co  tel/fax (01440709355
j ig paul@paulmitchellarchitect.co uk
- Saling House, Woods Close, Sturmer, CBS 7ZH

ciest  : Hollie Wright
job titte - Two Hoots Farm, Sawtry Road Wyton
A

PRG (on/az

52




DRG wn/ﬂ]aew\ o

GABENHOVSE

SMAaLL
CihrAVA N

To REJREPULED

Mo8E Homg
WATH A
Tour,

CONTAIN e,




DRG OU /04 RrREV A

To B8R Repwcer
WITH] A SVMAaLL

MmebiLe HomE

GREEN HOUSE




Agenda ltem 5b

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012
Case No: 1102112S73 (VARY CONDITIONS)
Proposal: VARIATION OF CONDITION 2.1 OF PLANNING

PERMISSION 0901530FUL TO RETAIN EXISTING
ACCESS ON A PERMANENT BASIS. VARIATION OF
CONDITION 10 OF PLANNING PERMISSION 1000720REP
TO PROVIDE ALTERNATIVE ACCESS VIA ADJACENT
TEMPORARY CAR PARK.

Location: REDUNDANT HINCHINGBROOKE WATER TOWER
BRAMPTON ROAD

Applicant: LANDRO GROUP LTD.

Grid Ref: 523178 271831

Date of Registration: 09.02.2012

Parish: HUNTINGDON
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 The application site comprises an existing temporary car park

(including land under the A14) together with the site which includes
the Water Tower.

1.2 The application seeks permission to vary two conditions (on separate
applications). The conditions both relate to the access details in
relation to the individual approvals respectively condition 2.1 of the
temporary car park (permission 0901530FUL) and condition 10 of the
water tower development (permission 1000720REP). In summary the
proposal variation is to allow the approved two separate, adjacent
access arrangements (as shown on the plans attached to the
agenda) to be rationalised into a single access onto Brampton Road.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and

55



enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008). Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

. §S6: “City and Town Centres” — Thriving, vibrant and
attractive city and town centres are fundamental to the sustainable
development of the East of England and should continue to be the
focus for investment, environmental enhancement and regeneration.

. E1: “Job Growth” — Identifies indicative targets for net
employment growth in Cambridgeshire.

. ENV6: “The Historic Environment” - Within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals local planning authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and, where appropriate,
enhance the historic environment of the region including Conservation
Areas and Listed Buildings.

o ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the distinctive
character and best qualities of the local area and promotes urban
renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and Structure
Plan 2003.

. None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)
Saved policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant
and viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

. T18: “Access requirements for new development” states
development should be accessed by a highway of acceptable design
and appropriate construction.

. En2:“Character and setting of Listed Buildings” - indicates
that any development involving or affecting a building of architectural or

56



3.4

3.5

historic merit will need to have proper regard to the scale, form, design
and setting of that building.

. En5: “Conservation Area Character” - development within
or directly affecting conservation areas will be required to preserve or
enhance their character and appearance.

° En9: “Conservation Areas” - development should not impair
open spaces, trees, street scenes and views into and out of
Conservation Areas.

. En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers
protection for important site features including trees, woodlands,
hedges and meadowland.

° En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the execution of
a landscaping scheme.

. En22: “Conservation” — wherever relevant, the
determination of applications will take appropriate consideration of
nature and wildlife conservation.

. En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and make
adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

. CS8: “Water” - satisfactory arrangements for the
availability of water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities,
surface water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from the
Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

None relevant.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

o CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable development,
having regard to social, environmental and economic issues. All
aspects will be considered including design, implementation and
function of development. Including reducing water consumption and
wastage, minimising impact on water resources and water quality and
managing flood risk.

. CS7: “Employment Land” — At least 85Ha of new land for
employment will be provided before 2026, in key identified areas.

57



3.6

Policies from the Huntingdonshire LDF Development Management
DPD: Proposed Submission 2010 are relevant.

o C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should
take account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

. C2: “Carbon Dioxide Reductions” — major development
proposals will include renewable or low carbon energy generating
technologies. These should have energy generating capacity
equivalent to 10% of the predicted total CO? emissions of the proposal.

° E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

. E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the
District’s heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate enhanced.

. E5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall
avoid the loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value, including
ancient woodland and veteran trees. They should wherever possible
be incorporated effectively within the landscape elements of the
scheme.

o E9: “Travel Planning” - To maximise opportunities for the
use of sustainable modes of travel, development proposals should
make appropriate contributions towards improvements in transport
infrastructure, particularly to facilitate walking, cycling and public
transport use. Proposals should not give rise to traffic volumes that
exceed the capacity of the local or strategic transport network, nor
cause harm to the character of the surrounding area.

o E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should
accord with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall
be provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free
development or development proposals incorporating very limited car
parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is clear
justification for the level of provision proposed, having consideration for
the current and proposed availability of alternative transport modes,
highway safety, servicing requirements, the needs of potential users
and the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

o P1: “Large Scale Businesses” — for major office uses
where a town centre location is not achievable, other sites may be
considered favourable within the built-up areas of settlements within
the Spatial Planning Areas where it can be demonstrated that no
sequentially preferable site is available and suitable or the scale of
development is inconsistent with the function and character of the
define town centre, or the site is located within an established
commercial area.

o P4. “Town Centre Uses and Retail Designations” -
proposals for retail, leisure, office, cultural and tourism facilities and

58



4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

54

6.1

71

other main town centre uses should be located within the defined town
centres of the Market Towns, unless they accord with exceptions
allowed for elsewhere in the LDF.

Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
2007.

Huntingdon West Area Action Plan 2011: Policy HWS which identifies
the sites as being suitable for office use (Class B1a) in the case of the
temporary car park, and either B1a or b or D1 use in the case of the
water tower.

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history clearly relates to the two
applications which this application seeks to vary. The temporary car
park permission (0901530FUL) expires on 25 November 2012. The
water tower permission (1000720REP), which has yet to be
implemented, expires on 5 August 2013. The applicant has submitted
an application to discharge all of the pre-commencement conditions
pertaining to the water tower permission.

CONSULTATIONS

Huntingdon Town Council - Recommend REFUSAL (copy
attached).

Highways Agency — no objection.

Cambridgeshire County Council Highways - The main concern with the
original application is that the access to the car park and to the water
tower if not amalgamated would be too close with regards to their
proximity to each other and cause confusion and hence a danger to
users of the highway. Therefore this application is requesting that the
water tower be accessed through the car park removes this issue. With
this proposal any issues that arise as part of the entry to the water
tower will be remote from the highway and not raise any concerns for
users of the highway | therefore have no objection to this proposal

Network Rail — no objection in principle.
REPRESENTATIONS

None received.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider in respect of this application are the
principle of the uses; the proposed access details; the location of the
development; design and the impact on heritage assets. It should be
noted that although the application seeks to vary two conditions the
Local Planning Authority has to re-assess the proposal against current
policy and considerations.

Principle of the Uses

59



7.2

7.3

7.4

Given that the temporary use of the car park is extant but expiring later
this year it is considered that it is appropriate to condition the use of
that part of the land such that the use shall expire on 25 November
2012.

With regard to the water tower site the proposed office use is
considered appropriate having regard to Policy HW5 of the Huntingdon
West Area Action Plan which identifies the site as being appropriate for
B1a use. As Section 73 applications cannot be used to lengthen
planning permissions it considered necessary to limit the
commencement of that development to 5 August 2013.

The principle of both uses therefore remains acceptable subject to the
respective time limits. For the purposes of clarity the commencement of
development for the purposes of the access will be covered in a
condition which is very similar to that imposed on the 1000720REP
permission.

Proposed Access Details

7.5

7.6

7.7

7.8

The access details approved as part of the temporary car park
development have been provided. However in light of the requirement
of condition 10 on the water tower permission it is considered
necessary and reasonable to re-impose this condition and require the
works to be undertaken prior to the commencement of the water tower
development.

The further details required by condition should also require details of
the junction within the site between the two uses.

The Town Council’s concerns are noted in that they consider that the
temporary access arrangements should be continued on that basis.
However the suggested condition which requires the temporary car
park use to cease would control the future use of the access. The
views of the County Council identify the improvements that would be
created and officers attach significant weight to that view. The
Highways Agency’s have also raised no objection.

Therefore subject to conditions the proposed access arrangements are
considered to enhance the existing relationship.

Location of the Development

7.9

The location of the development has been previously considered by the
Council and also the Planning Inspectorate. Policy HW5 of the Area
Action Plan supports the development of the water tower site for, inter
alia, office use. The temporary nature of the car park use is such that
the development of that site for future alternative uses would not be
compromised.

Design and Impact on Heritage Assets

7.10

The design of the water tower proposal is again considered to be
acceptable. The development would also have an acceptable impact
upon the character and appearance of the Conservation Area whilst
also not harming the setting of any nearby Listed Buildings.

60



Conclusion

7.11

712

7.13

The proposal seeks to vary two planning conditions in order to
rationalise the vehicular access arrangements onto Brampton Road.
The current approvals allow for two individual accesses which would be
located side-by-side on the entrance onto Brampton Road. The
proposal receives support from the County Council Highways Officer
who considers that it would remove the potential conflict resulting from
two individual accesses.

The principle of the associated land uses are considered to be
acceptable subject to conditions repeating the requirement to cease
the temporary car park use and the date on which the water tower
development should be implemented. The location of the proposed
office development is considered to be acceptable having regard to the
Area Action Plan and the temporary nature of the car park should not
undermine the development of that site for the uses identified within the
Area Action Plan. The design and impact of the proposal upon heritage
assets is, as with the consideration of the previous applications,
considered to be acceptable.

The proposed development is therefore considered to be in compliance
with development plan policies and there are no material planning
considerations which weigh against the proposal. In summary the
development is acceptable because:

* It would create an acceptable access arrangement onto Brampton
Road;

* The proposed uses are appropriate subject to conditions requiring
their cessation and commencement respectively;

* The design of the proposal is considered acceptable;

* The proposal would not harm the character and appearance of the
Conservation nor would it harm the setting of nearby Listed Buildings.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to include the
following:

Nonstand The proposed temporary car park use (the area of which is
defined in planning permission 0901530FUL) shall expire on 25
November 2012

Nonstand The proposed conversion of the water tower to form offices
(the area of which is defined in planning permission 1000720REP)
shall be implemented by/on 5 August 2013

Nonstand Details of access onto Brampton Road (including
engineering drawing) and internal junction. The access shall then be
provided prior to the first use of the water tower for office use
Nonstand Material samples (water tower)

Nonstand Landscaping (water tower and retain car park landscaping)

Nonstand Retention of trees (water tower)

Nonstand Construction Method Statement in relation to trees and
footpath

61



Nonstand Car parking details (water tower)
Nonstand Green Travel Plan (water tower)
(Nonstand) Method of illumination (water tower)

(Nonstand) Remove PD rights for telecommunications equipment
(water tower)

(Nonstand) Details of plant and machinery
CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Mr Andy Brand Development Management
Team Leader 01480 388490

62



PAP/M20
HUNTINGDON TOWN COUNCIL

PLANNING COMMENTS 1 MARCH 2012

1102076FUL WEST
Mrs L Pyrkos, 58 Bassenthwaite, Huntingdon PE29 6UL

First floor side extension onto detached property - 58 Bassenthwaite, Huntingdon PE29
6UL

Recommend APPROVAL. Providing there are no objections from neighbouring
properties, the Panel considers the proposals acceptable.

Amendment 01/03/2012 - Corrected ownership certificates received

1st March 2012 - The Panel noted the decision

1102101CAC WEST
Travis Perkins, Ryehill Close, Lodge Farm Industrial Estate, Northampton NN5 7UA

Demolition of 12-13 and ancillary warehouse to rear - 12-13 Ermine Street, Huntingdon
PE29 3EY

Recommend APPROVAL. The proposals are entirely in keeping with good
management of the site.

1102112S73 WEST
Landro Group Ltd., c/o Barker Storey Matthews, Peterborough PE1 1JL

Variation of Condition 2.1 of planning permission 0901530FUL to retain existing access
on a permanent basis. Variation of condition 10 of planning permission 1000720REP
to provide alternative access via adjacent temporary car park - Redundant
Hinchingbrooke Water Tower, Brampton Road, Huntingdon PE29 3BN

Recommend REFUSAL. The panel considered that there was no justification for
the variation and that an extension to the temporary approvals would bea
preferable solution in the circumstances.

1200117FUL WEST
Mr Quang Trung, Creatip, 18-19 Silver Street, Kettering NN16 OBN

Change of use from retail to nail bar - 86A High Street, Huntingdon PE29 3DP

The Panel noted that the application had been WITHDRAWN

63




Development Management Panel : .
Application Ref: 1102112573 HU nTlnngﬂShI re

Location: Huntingdon DISTRICT C€COUNTZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

S el L RN
853 S =R )

S e R T A e
N e o

o)\
i /j,/l
I !a“;‘ﬂ’ .
‘\ = - 1/
N , '
“‘: ¢=?l s Tk
K& ] '

LR A o
S v ) o
NG e ,
S ey (Bt g 7
% ramameB s [ SN 55
“ﬂl_&’ﬁ@"' 3
wa [ RNl
F -rl:r’fi Path ang ¢, 0 -': R VAHDS&‘\%{ b
il Bany7 féé AT Sl ke é
1 :one ‘/ff‘ﬂw\ﬁﬁ'v’— - 2 % »
[ ?}};(ﬁ? “}j:_,f ’ J
i E(O‘RH,_,L o '.. ".
a V/uey-;;x‘,__-'. 14_—:‘7) 1

KR "
< R

1 /] The site

L : Conservation Area

\

Scale: 1:5000



Car Park - land at
Brampton Road, Huntingdon

Joher e

\ Huni\“n\ don Water Tower ;r;'"ﬁ e
- temporary car park A

Red Lih\.\ Plan

4
/.
DY T ) P .

Views Common

)
temporary

Car Park

car park

G@rker Storey Matthews



sleq

\ g peXoayo

s st
S 2k JBUMQ pue Aq paulejuiew aq 0} ealy B
. Baly |enuapisay

“o0s g umeiq

U9l O/H

U9l O/H

e/iele3

“sequiny Bupmeiq e

juswaalby Yled aAIsSIWIad JO ealy _H_

uglL oM
O

30
\ 003

_ e
38

e

uoLo2I0Y Lied onestuued AemyBiH oljand/yrediood Bunsixg [

«uopduoseq Bummeiq

yed Jen
uone)s uopbununy

ugL oM
o

o

ugL oM

uopBununy ‘yuswdojoasq oJpueT]

pafoid

W0 UG o] FERSIELOLIO A HTLIE (OLI0) L g
R

108 “pessag
sjueynsuo)) SuramSug [1A1)

drysioured smoimng peuLio g\

HW

’

dn

s
@‘{\(bg

o

N

jadns Buued au) Ueld Ajejes § UeaH euL

e feges e o ut vossnou A
o oswschs Bukuep: v

U3 pue 83npes
UL ‘310N WaD

“Ssu sigepIOARUN AL J0 S1088 aU)
sy d se Je) se uexeuapun usaq sey brs

osd 1007 10 SiIg 1uensies ol iuoD i pes oq o) Bumesp SiL 3
Apereipaul 585uBuB BULO UOUSKE 8L 0 1yBNOIq 8q PINoYS *Peleds Jo usiium ‘seuedaiosip Auy. A a . ssel9
A 3 i
1A

U1 8G 01 SUOISUBWIP USTIUM

(IES o’ G s
s L R

[

uyzi sewry \ .

/// = MR WEN "'%
.%% ,

=—0d Lsin

S
S
i@ | fa on ANY Z ) =50 /’ T
poroup| umeig | Lo o \. o N\ u 4 d
=X =
‘\ \MoL
A

Jeudsy

uopuoT o1
- aul|ulel Jseo) jse]

OH 991A18S 2nosay B all4
- abeyon axooigbulyoulH

Jeudsy

T .
| Yozgy .
|
L

\ MOL




- ol SIN - 8[eds 00Z:1 - ©[e2s
|
e _— s|iejeQ uonoNusuo) peoy pJepuels , , , , ueld Buiui] euypn pue Buiubig
salepA oNr 009 — 009
S
diieie3 STIV.L3A ONIAVL F1LOVL _H_ °
,s8084ng BUIEY BI9E ] JO BSN IO} SBION BOUEPING,
ed Areljodwa ] 0} sse00y UM 30UEPIOODE Ul 9 [leys m“”msww uonensl3 . wwiooL Yiptam
sontosoa uneic as e—T g des
uooeg W el
o (21 e o0, b1
uopBuiuny ‘juswdojeAag olpue] | 28l tiwsz L s . xshw”.mm..m_wocq J -
“ep s leoooee O\S
ey U
> i e S DR N
0 ut : - Hoooooo =
diyszouped SMOLINg P[EULIO A\ Emﬁmz.,_mguw:%_ ecoe0 0 ety ~
wigg gt 6 Buned oL 600000
[ fleccoso

owop 6"sauoud §|
" edAL einpoy

B T ——

STIVL3A ONIgd3ax

L V130 943

7] [~— 00, —
Seopm g v | posso
2 £924 S8 4 20UBDIOTX
s w0 WeIM
o | s o - e ssutue g ponosid 28H 3dAL B 1'Zi0L "Bel

wiwigol Wweim

poono| weio 50,01 [poujo 1170 A ‘SaUBD 03 € SI6q GNP 9} BUSIIN BUIPUOK J0 POUIL PaEIB

ey © uiz deg wuwiook YIPIM
o1 S50l | S5 $01Z 9570 0 00 IO UBLLRD | PUES UAVGT orre 2 wy yep 1'zZLoL ‘e
see o ot g ad ' 001 ‘Beig

SIONONEES

arosouo: g w Buiubis ueuysepad
029 O~ o5t 020 ereueO~__ | pasodoid
1 552 pOpZ 3SNEID 0} 1 S52 pOYZ BSNEID 0}
PaGq JELOL UBLEpUES WIGZ
PO JELO JUBLLIGO/pUES WLIGZ
SBussoI0 JeINoIU@A e pUEISdN Xew W 05 (jeunsou)
a0e) quoy|
N@ odhL ‘0peL N3 S8 0} wwog).
X G2} QUo¥ Pasou [11q G1019U0D 1SevRI
stise 28H edAL ‘2002 ‘0¥l N3 S8 0

Q19 DD Pselied JieH 00VZX05ZXGZH

67

002:} ®[eds 00¢:) - 8|eog
ueld Buoeung pue Buigiey) ue|d juswabueny [eJous

Buigiay ysny pasodold - ———- B o e oo

QU3 ysny ps d 10 JUBLI 11GNd YDIYM JOAO BRI e
Buissouo 0 squay paddouy

) SqUBY P a - sBupLe Aemood paleys = B

sqiey pasies pasodoy,
1o P p d Asepunog AemubiH
e 0805 S8 1 wepeoeus A

uawnyiq ‘ejeBbaibbe wuwg Jo _H_
SSOUOIU} WL [BUIWOU 8] O}

Aepano dopjoelg uiyL men

am

¥ 10} %)
.mc.mzﬂwwn‘oy\xumn v
uo
2
-punsiX ooy MON

o uned b

\ 5800y wie
! mco\mwooo“..




. ﬁ~ Dd ﬂ 18211 ou gof

£V e 002:| 89S Do oY
IN0oAET uoidUNpP SS8I2Y A 10} sjesodoid Aremuneld

Jama] Jstepp axooigbuIyoulH

2 uoIsiney 'z Buimeiq

uoyduwod g

,..ua_._ﬂmmwﬁw ‘atAl uoeAMday

-UBLILIOD TUGHDE
|LGWNIOP [BUORPPE UE & Sty _H. »

R gjoy Buimelsd
)CG eoueiojey

4
| UBOS 96pesIednt ueld m.%’;

) OOTI D@

RELTETL

Ui

7 1

f,
s S,
Oy




Agenda ltem 5c¢

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1102140FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: REPLACEMENT DWELLING

Location: SHERWOOD HOUSE CHAPEL ROAD RAMSEY HEIGHTS
HUNTINGDON

Applicant: MR M WOOLCOTT
Grid Ref: 523976 284726
Date of Registration: 09.02.2012

Parish: RAMSEY

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE
1 DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This site is located at the end of Chapel Road, Ramsey Heights,
4.5km west of Ramsey. It has an area of approximately 0.52ha., and
is presently occupied by a dwelling and a series of sheds and
outbuildings. The dwelling is two storey and is of brick and tile
construction. There is a conservatory on the rear. In the Design and
Access Statement, the comment is made that the existing dwelling
has settled on its foundations and is suffering from cracking. The
outbuildings are mixed in their scale and design, but the majority are
steel framed and sheet clad. There is a mature willow tree in the
centre of the site and a mature tree/hedge screen along the road
frontage. The other boundaries are generally open. There is an
access to the site from Chapel Road. The site is not a working farm
but the applicant does keep a number of animals and several of the
adjoining fields are used as paddocks.

1.2 Development along Chapel Road is scattered and agricultural land
predominates. There are fields or paddocks on three sides of the
application site and a dwelling opposite.

1.3 The proposal is to demolish the existing house and to erect a
replacement. The present house has overall dimensions of
approximately 10m. by 8m. (excluding the conservatory), whereas the
proposed replacement will measure 12.2m by 15.2m, added to which
is a single storey section measuring 4.8m by 5.6m. The height to the
ridge will be 8.8m and the height to eaves 5.5m. The building will
have hipped roofs and the principal materials will be buff brick and
slates. Stone detailing will be used round the windows and there will
be a small porch over the front door. In addition to the demolition of
the dwelling, a shed between it and the road will also be removed.
The existing access will be used.

1.4 The site is in the open countryside, and the land is liable to flood.

69



2 NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3 PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

ENV7 — Quality in the Built Environment — requires new development
to be of a high quality which complements the distinctive character
and best qualities of the local area and promotes urban renaissance
and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.ukfollow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003.

None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

H23 Outside Settlements - general presumption against housing
development outside environmental limits with the exception of
specific dwellings required for the efficient management of
agriculture, forestry and horticulture.

H27 — replacement dwellings in the country may be acceptable
provide that proposals only involve modest changes in building size,

70



3.4

3.5

3.6

are of good design, well related to their setting and do not create or
perpetuate a traffic hazard.

H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards of
privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

En17 “Development in the countryside” — development in the
countryside will be restricted to that which is essential to the efficient
operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted mineral
extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

En25: “General Design Criteria” — indicates that the District Council
will expect new development to respect the scale, form, materials and
design of established buildings in the locality and make provision for
landscaping and amenity areas.

CS8: “water” — satisfactory arrangement for the availability of water
supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface water runoff
facilities and provision for land drainage will be required.

CS9: Flooding. The Council will normally refuse development
proposals that prejudice schemes for flood water management.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies
from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and
viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on
"Local Plan Alteration (2002)

None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — states that any area not
specifically identified are classed as part of the countryside, where
development will be strictly limited to that which has essential need to
be located in the countryside.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development proposals
should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to not increase
risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage systems should be
used where technically feasible. There should be no adverse impact
on or risk to quantity or quality of water resources.

E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the built-
up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy C3, in
order to protect the surrounding countryside and to promote wider
sustainability objectives.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord with
the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1 ‘Parking
Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall be
provided to serve the needs of the development.

71



H5: “Homes in the Countryside” proposals to alter, extend or replace
existing dwellings should not: a. significantly increase the height or
massing of the dwelling, subject to the need to provide satisfactory
living conditions; b. significantly increase the impact on the
surrounding countryside; and entail development where only the site
of the previous dwelling exists or the previous dwelling has been
abandoned.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the living
conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or nearby
properties.

P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.

a. essential operational development for agriculture, horticulture or
forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related activities, allocated
mineral extraction or waste management facilities, infrastructure
provision and national defence;

b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location is justified;

c. renewable energy generation schemes;

d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;

e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of existing
buildings in accordance with other policies of the LDF;

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental to
existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development Plan
Documents.

The SPD Design Guide is a material planning consideration.

4

41

5

5.1

5.2

6.1

71

PLANNING HISTORY

No relevant planning applications.
CONSULTATIONS

Ramsey Town Council — Approve (copy attached).

Middle Commissioners — evidence needs to be submitted to prove
that a viable scheme for flood risk management exists or can be
provided.

REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbours — one communication has been received. The writer
supports the proposal, commenting that the removal of the existing
building, and its replacement by the proposed one would enhance the
local area and would provide the family with more adequate
accommodation.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The issues in this case are the principle of the development, the
effect of the proposal on the character and appearance of the site and
the area in general, the impact on neighbours, the highway situation
and flooding. The applicant has commented that the existing building
has subsided over the years and is now beyond economical repair.

72



7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

The principle of the development

This site is in the open countryside for the purposes of the
Development Plan and emerging planning guidance. Current policies
are to restrict development in the countryside to that for which a rural
location can be justified. However, it should be noted that there has
been a dwelling on this site for many years and it is therefore
considered that the principle of the use of the site for a single
residential unit is well established.

The impact of the development on the site and the surrounding area.

The erection of a replacement dwelling in the countryside is subject to
the provisions of policy H27 of the Local Plan 1995, and policy H5 of
the DMDPD. Both policies impose restrictions on the amount by
which the size of the original building can be increased, in order to
protect the countryside from inappropriately large and visually
intrusive development. Policy H27 refers to “only modest changes in
building size”, whilst policy H5 states that replacement dwellings
should not “significantly increase the height and massing of the
original building”, and should not “significantly increase” its impact on
the surrounding countryside. It should be noted that the first part of
policy H5 is subject to the caveat that any proposal is subject to the
need to provide satisfactory living accommodation for the occupiers.
In this respect, the D and A Statement refers to the fact that the
applicant has six children thus giving a total of eight residents. The
proposed dwelling will have five bedrooms.

When assessing a proposal in the light of policies H27 and P5, due
regard must be had to the amount by which the size of an existing
dwelling can be increased by using its permitted development rights.
In respect of the present dwelling, it could be extended by an addition
of up to 4.95m on either side, giving a total potential width of 19.8m.
This compares with an overall width of the proposed dwelling of 20m,
although it should be noted that the permitted development
extensions would be limited to 4m in height compared with a ridge
height of 8.8m for the proposed dwelling. On the rear, a 3m deep, two
story extension could be added, although the height should not
exceed that of the original dwelling. Based on these figures, the
building could potentially have a gross external floor area (both floors)
of 295 sq.m., whereas the proposed dwelling would have a floor area
of 359 sq.m.

Notwithstanding the possibility of extending the existing dwelling
under its permitted development rights, it is considered that the
proposed dwelling will represent a substantial increase in the overall
bulk and scale of the original structure and will, as a consequence,
significantly increase its impact on the surrounding countryside. When
compared with the height of the original building (approximately 7m),
the height of the proposed building will be 8.8m., and it will be a full
two storeys throughout (with the exception of the utility room). This
contrasts unfavourably with the small amount of first floor
accommodation in the existing building. This combination of the
overall increase in the height of the building and the substantially
great bulk at first floor level represents more than a “modest” change
in the building size as referred to in policy H27, and “significantly”

73



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

7.13

increases the height and massing of the original building as referred
to in policy H5. It will not be of a “similar scale” to the original dwelling
as mentioned in paragraph 2.88 of the HLP1995. When compared
with the existing dwelling, the proposal will have a considerably
greater impact on the appearance and character of the site and the
open countryside in general. It will be significantly more intrusive than
the present building.

Policy H5(a) requires the proposal to be assessed against the need to
provide satisfactory living conditions for the occupiers. Need is not
defined in the policy or the subsequent text and thus it falls for each
case to be assessed on its individual merits. Whilst the proposed
dwelling would provide much improved living conditions for the
applicant and his family, this matter is not considered to be an
overriding planning consideration, and the assessment of the
proposal must rely on the degree of difference between the existing
and proposed dwellings. As referred to above, the differences in this
case are considered to be significant.

In the light of the above comments, it is considered that the proposal
is contrary to the provisions of polices H27 and H5.

Notwithstanding the objection to the proposal in terms of its scale,
massing and impact, it is considered that the design of the dwelling
does not adequately reflect the general style of the traditional building
found in this part of the District. Advice on design can be found in the
SPD Design Guide which, in paragraph 4.1.2 it states that, where
possible, house plans should be based on the simple rectangular
form with a wide frontage/shallow plan, where the depth of the
building is typically in the range of 4.5m to 6m. Larger properties can
be created by additions to the basic regular plan although such
additions should be subservient to the principle structure. Roof
pitches should be in the order of 25 degrees to 55 degrees depending
on the material. The proposed pitch, at 35 degrees is within this range
but the height of the building is considered to be excessive due to the
deep plan of 8.5m. The building is monolithic in terms of its overall
massing and shape, and it lacks the hierarchy of elements which are
common in traditional fenland buildings. This hierarchy gives interest
to the overall shape of a building in terms of it having differing ridge
heights and varying block sizes. Hipped roofs are not a traditional
feature of buildings in the area although they do appear on many
houses and bungalows built during the 1930’s and subsequent
decades. The large floor to ceiling windows on the rear of the building
will give good views over the adjacent countryside but these features,
whilst they may be contemporary, do not necessarily sit well with the
other, less contemporary parts of the design.

Overall, it is considered that the scale, design and massing of the
building fail to respect the character of the local vernacular and the
proposal does not comply with policies ENV7, En25 and E1.

The effect of the development on the amenities of the immediate
neighbours.

There is only one dwelling (Warden’s House) close to the application

site, and this is the property on the other side of the road. The
distance between the two is considerable (about 65m) and there is

74



714

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

7.25

screening between them in the form of the tree and hedge screen
along the frontage of the application site. The proposal will have very
little effect on the amenities of the immediate neighbour, and,
although it will be visible from Warden’s House, it will have a minimal
effect in terms of loss of privacy and overbearing impact.

The proposal does not conflict with policies H31 and H7
Highway implications

The existing drive and access are being retained in their present
form. They are adequate for their purpose and there is ample parking
on site to meet the standards required by policy E10 and appendix 1
of the DMDPD (up to 2 spaces per dwelling).

Flooding

The site is on the very edge of flood zones 2 and 3 and it is within the
1000 year flood envelope. An FRA has been submitted with the
application, and this has concluded that the site is not at risk of
serious flooding. It also states that there is no evidence of the site
flooding within the past 100 years.

Residential development is classified in the Technical Guidance to
the NPPF as being in the “more vulnerable” category, and, for
development within flood zone 3, a sequential test is required. The
aim of this test is to steer new development to areas with a lower
probability of flooding. If the development cannot be located in a zone
with a lower probability, an exception test must be applied to show
that it provides wider sustainability benefits that outweigh the flood
risk, and that development will be safe for its lifetime taking account
of the vulnerability of its users and without increasing flood risk
elsewhere.

In this case, it should be noted that there is a dwelling on the site
already and there is no evidence to suggest that the replacement of
one dwelling by another, even one with a greater footprint, will
increase the risk of flooding in the locality. The FRA has concluded
that the probability of this site flooding is very low, and that, if it did
occur, there would be ample warning. The EA has not commented on
the proposal.

Overall, it is considered that the development does not pose any
undue flooding risks and that it does not conflict with policies CS8,
CS9 and C5.

Other issues

Trees — there is a large willow tree close to the existing dwelling. This
is to be retained as part of the development but a root protection
condition would be appropriate in the event of planning permission
being granted.

Conclusions

1. The erection of a replacement dwelling is acceptable in principle

75



7.26

7.29

8.1

2. The scheme does not conform to the requirements of policies H27
and H5 in terms of its increase in scale and consequential impact on
the character of the area.

3. The design of the building does not adequately reflect policies
ENV7, En25 and E1

4. The proposal will not have an adverse impact on the amenities of
any neighbours.

5. There are no overriding highway issues

6. There are no overriding flooding issues

7. There are no other material planning considerations which have a
significant influence on the determination of this application.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission should not be granted in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try
to accommodate your needs.

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reason:

The proposal would be contrary to the provisions of policies ENV7 of
the East of England Plan 2008, policies H27 and En25 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, and policies E1 and H5 of the
Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010 in that
the development, by reason of its form, bulk and massing would not
adequately respect or reflect the scale and nature of the dwelling it is
intended to replace and it would, thereby, result in an over-dominant
feature which would be detrimental to, and have an adverse impact
on, the open character and rural appearance of the site and the area
in general. The proposed dwelling is unduly uniform in terms of its
overall shape and massing and it lacks the hierarchy of elements and
varying roof heights which are traditionally associated with dwellings
located in a fenland landscape, and which give these buildings their
essential character and appearance.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to David Hincks Development Management
Officer 01480 388406

76



24/092/2812 11:15 B1487815328 RAMSEY TOWN COUMCIL PAGE B4

Huntingdonshire

D1 S TR CT COUNCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary's Streat

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN Tel: 01480 388388

mail@huntsde.gov.uk Fax: 01480 388009
www.huntingdonshire. gov.uk

Head of Planning Services

Pathfinder House

St. Mary’s Street

Huntingdon

Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN

Application Number: 1102140FUL Case Officer David Hincks
Proposal: Replacement dwelling

Location: Sherwood HouseChaps) RoadRamsey Helghts
Observations of Ramsey Town/Parish Council.

Please vV box as appropriate

Recommend approval because ...... (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

o klj I0 Wleg o3 wi | cbstention. . 1, cile
s | (e e.wuj{\, fo sugtun he rﬂmfgsed dug/qu\ﬁ,

Recommend refusal because...(please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

No etf3ervations either in favour or against the proposal

--------- R L

Uafya

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

7
oy 774 Ca Clerk to Ramsey Town/Parish Council.

.....

77



Development Management Panel - |
Application Ref: 1102140FUL Hu nTingdonsh ire

Location: Ramsey DISTRICT €OUNTC CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

—]
—

e o

"d;\? alton Fe"n

ed, 3
—k ]t

I

W

o n

(57

% Legend N
| /] The Site N

Scale: 1:5000 78



050¥5E (£0S10) "XViE B ) o 1ote @ W & © T2 S
263909 00510 5 % o5 % Y 3 % o >3
18001 4 s kA B 2 @ e
AR IHONVORS 0F g 2 3 g g B 2
o ﬂj m . m w © m
ISHOATIAENS ANV QIYILYVHO
QLT SATAYNS SIXVY X
\ PRI o
e 82
HLINS ra
#4g umerg
12 st
ASWYUMOTY | | 059" o @
L] rom ava| | e s kS b
LI90ZLSY o i
ro o Bumesy +3t]
Qo0
L10Z NON 62 0sz:1 b
zos0g] copuas
@
&4 _
B A
: % 59, 2
B PIONT] TSI 2 o o )
copst Burmosa 2 - s
1areI) 9 fger®
o _ . [ v )
SIHOIFH AFSWVY - W e (T T A A
? -
aQvod TIdVHD ; N Ous \ ._
FSNOH AOOMYUTHS ® oou03 wuey L w0
won1L 100001 Tl T 2 = P e
14
N9ISIA SANYIAIN LSV 000 o0l o
=0
ity w9
s -y
0008
s o
e
w Ry
~3h
i
g = o " w
o B i
‘ ] : o
[Tevee |zorsearaz|zzerosees |osos | A '
["s6ec Joss99zraz_|osoororzs [so06 Lot g 7
2% |rosozivar_|uwedsees [soos| |i000 %% . e - e R
299 |106°622v82 |z25°886525 | 2008 e o .
£99°% |ZZTZLLLPBZ  [SBL'OBEEZS | 9006 b 3|
"z Joee rouves ¢ e
257 660162002 |ozwsoorzs_|5006 s w0 oo
Gos% zerzazesr_|isovesezs |poos wio |
1607 |£06°892082 125 2v6825 | €006 t 1599 A
o5t 2005 ; |
445 |61Z7104pBZ b2 BSEETS | 4006 s
BL64 |BRLTLELPBZ  |208°9000Z5 | 0006 g o .
uBfon | rsBujioN | isBupsez | RS e L
SNOILVAS T0HINGD A
+40z AON 52 Sovea Roming e y
A <
v o = g
w
24/03»@'
. i -2
- o0 O .
ATAAN * ;
07 o .
a8 ez, %%%%ﬂ
g s s e
“PUaD peorpen 50 03 penerd onins - e 5 = . %
T s . ae I f4~ Ry o
s310N s i Ex3
; ssoz
ot w07
X8 U1 T0mWAS azicve B B s
,a%;o,a\
wwvwnonge N C&OMW
oruvis Touinos 7 \ . . -
A R o = PPy o
iaNOR. E
sronmmon 4 = Peoy ledeyn |
e Q - S
ana 1005 |
st
v e
NI et s areea -
pamrars —renena | [0 9L Je—,
TeM o S,
S
wauvia g . B
e
MISTD swrmrmrmemamrmeme 2 . 05
P A o
P
PP
avarmvs — = = = — X
LT NAOUDHIOND  3omemsmms s
ormioms a0 —f—f— f—fomh A
S0 An A ArAAA N
P & @ oy a o @ @
g 3 : % m
A )
2 e S 2 2 o S S




Foﬁﬁop

o G
—w AR
it g
@)
nwos
Qo) g
Spolpway T ey
Gvimia

ST TUY .w+xﬂ1§ (el
LA TIPGT  VPHL NeTNG
VMUY <TOIALS
T N7V
7 TN F m_dwdc?a
FEOTI007 Wy v Y

o

THOSTIOTLLO ~ wand, maow
0100

26p0 Mot

SPAIASVOD ARy

VOSSY Nblsag
SANVIUW LSVva

L.

=

0717011~

I ??‘3
,

M9 5
PR ELS

3

WS

JO0)4  punoJb

7o Nl
S,

oag T e

oazzZ(

Irirg

Py ?3& T 19

i I e spppl
- Fopuin mag prapyrurn

80



05045 (L0510) XVl L8 INT
L6§909 (LOS10) L. TUHSNI0ONIT

x5

oo ¥

7|

500005

HINOT
AN TIOWVIAS 01

1000

73|

ool

2000 o0

oo

et

00
2000°¢

3000008
3000'09997'9

HOAIAMNS ANV AFHILHVHO

QLT SAFIAMNS SIXV

HLINS A
g umasg
ASINYHMOTY
stz upz p1Laya,
1190218V

G1ov%

000"

. o
o9 v =
“on Bumesg

£40Z AON 62

coug]

5882

K%

o

W2s

AINNNS 190

200052

“olsy Bugmenq,

saved gz
o

asd
SLHOITH AISWVY

avod 13dYHO
FSNOH AOOMYIHS

oML 390fors

1999

Q™

SusT T =D T3

A

T
NOIS3A SANVTIaIN LSV z%o,%%

it

RS
&
sy

oS ned

s

oa Esjuswpusuy ]

o

oy

A R T T *
€668 |o25°992¢82_|omoosorzs_|6006
R R R e B R ah
299°% |106%624¢92 |ess-986e25 | 2006
499 _|zzzzsivez_|seroseezs 9006 .
522 |660°452982 _|ozas00rzs | 5008 P K
1507 |£06°892082 | 12206625 | 5006 0 o™
65y [seazrarsz|easmssezs |zo06
450 |6s2432082_ |saveseezs (1006
855 |grs4i2rz_|208900525 |0006
ubion | rsBuipon | isBupsex | s
SNOILVLS T0UINGD

81

s o

- o
@

s e

oot

1102 AON 82 o3ea Aonns rppup

o

0 4

g

ust

JRAUNE e

1
e Ly oo s 2
“wnoa 50 o3 peseios sosoy iy 2

B! g wr® e
¥ \f\-\(\ @t — e «Mw 41! o
ey B
s w v .\'\ e
,ao&;o,a\ .

" o
N
Qmovw

00O L

{600 o0

e
ssoaamiiar @

§
E
H
e

8

H

H
S+ K

=

18808

7307193009 10
Yans oeanw

|

Y
o, LIV
e —— 00 &

k3

eor® T

20000

o

zSo.mum«sN
OVMIAHOLS G ——— G
oz — === 4
LTI NABNSATEND 3—ass s s
aneson avasnane —§—f—f—j—§— Y
a0 AaA A
-

omane ———

s 05O
sV
;00O
18508

3068

]



This page is intentionally left blank

82



Agenda ltem 5d

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1102068FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: NEW SINGLE STOREY DWELLING

Location:  LAND OPPOSITE 11 TO 17 TOWER CLOSE
Applicant: ROSE HOMES (EA) LTD

Grid Ref: 529093 285277
Date of Registration: 27.01.2012

Parish: RAMSEY

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1 DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This site is located a short distance to the north of the Church of St
Thomas a Becket, and has a frontage to Tower Close. It measures
approximately 37m by 32m and was formerly part of the gardens of a
number of properties facing Church Green. The land has not been
cultivated in recent years and, though natural regeneration is taking
place, much of the centre of the site is relatively clear. There are a
number of trees (mainly elder) along the site frontage but these are
not in good condition and do not make a substantial contribution to
the character of the area. The land rises gently to the south but the
level increase is generally less than 1m. There is a substantial 1.8m
high fence along the boundary with Tower Close and similar fences
along the eastern and southern boundaries. There is a hedge along
the western boundary. There is no access to the site at present.

1.2 Development in the vicinity is mixed in character with modern
detached dwellings along Tower Close and older, traditional,
properties along Church Green. Adjoining the site at the north eastern
corner is a single storey, agricultural style building, and, on the
western side, a substantial garden.

1.3 The proposal is to erect a detached, single storey dwelling. The
building will be located along the site frontage, and will replace part of
the existing fence. It will measure 20.1m by 5m, and will be of a style
very similar to the adjoining agricultural building. The height to eaves
will be 2.6m and the height to ridge will be 4.5m. The materials are
yet to be agreed but will be brick and slate, and will be required to be
of a high quality. There will be no fenestration along the Tower Close
elevation of the building in order to retain the “agricultural” character
of the building, although there will be three roof lights facing the road.
An access into the site will be provided at the eastern end of the
frontage, and the site will be secured by a field gate. Two parking
spaces and a turning area will be provided within the curtilage of the
site.

14 The site is in the built up area of the town and the boundary of the
conservation area follows its northern boundary. The properties along
the frontage of Church green are listed.

83



2 NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3 PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

ENV7 — Quality in the Built Environment — requires new development
to be of a high quality which complements the distinctive character and
best qualities of the local area and promotes urban renaissance and
regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and Structure
Plan 2003.

3.3 None relevant

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — indicates that new
dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards of privacy
can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

H32: “Sub-division of large curtilages” states that support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of a size
and form sympathetic to the locality.

84



3.5

3.6

3.6

H33 — “sub-division of large curtilages affecting protected buildings and
features states that the subdivision of large curtilages will not be
supported where development will adversely affect the qualities of a
Conservation Area or trees worthy of protection.

En2: “Character and setting of Listed Buildings” — indicates that any
development affecting a building of architectural or historic merit will
need to have proper regard to the scale, form, design and setting of the
building.

En5: “Conservation area character” - development within or directly
affecting Conservation Areas will be required to preserve or enhance
their character or appearance.

En6: “design standards in conservation areas” — in conservation areas,
the District Council will require high standards of design with careful
consideration being given to the scale and form of development in the
area and to the use of sympathetic materials of appropriate colour and
texture.

En9 - development will not normally be permitted if it would impair
important open spaces, trees, street scenes and views in and out of
Conservation Areas.

En14: “Open spaces, frontages and gaps in the built up framework or
immediately adjacent” — development will not normally be allowed.
En18: “Protection for countryside features” — offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadows.

En20: landscape scheme — wherever appropriate a development will
be subject to the conditions requiring the execution of a landscaping
scheme.

En22 “Conservation” where relevant, the determination of applications
will take appropriate consideration of nature and wildlife conservation.
En25: “General Design Criteria” — indicates that the District Council will
expect new development to respect the scale, form, materials and
design of established buildings in the locality and make provision for
landscaping and amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from the

Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

HL5 — Quality and Density of Development - sets out the criteria to
take into account in assessing whether a proposal represents a good
design and layout.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies Huntingdon, St Neots, St
Ives and Ramsey and Bury as Market Towns in which development
schemes of all scales may be appropriate in built up areas.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

85



3.7

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

E1: “Development Context” - development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the built-up
areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy C3, in order
to protect the surrounding countryside and to promote wider
sustainability objectives.

E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District’'s heritage
assets or their setting should demonstrate how these assets will be
protected, conserved and where appropriate enhanced.

E4: “Biodiversity and Protected Habitats and Species” — proposals
shall be accompanied by assessments of the likely impacts on
biodiversity and geology including protected species, priority species
and habitats or sites of importance for biodiversity or geology.

E5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid the
loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value and these
should be incorporated effectively within the landscape elements of the
scheme wherever possible.

E7: “Protection of Open Space” — development proposals should not
result in harm to spaces which; contribute to the distinctive form,
character and setting of a settlement; create a focal point within the
built up area; provide a setting for important buildings or scheduled
ancient monuments; or form part of an area of value for wildlife, sport
or recreation, including areas forming part of a ‘green corridor’.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord with
the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1 ‘Parking
Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall be
provided to serve the needs of the development.

H1: “Efficient Use of Housing Land” — housing developments will
optimise density taking account of the nature of the development site;
character of its surroundings and need to accommodate other uses
and residential amenities such as open space and parking areas.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the living
conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or nearby
properties.

The SPD Design Guide and the Ramsey Conservation Area Character
Statement are material considerations.

PLANNING HISTORY

00/00278FUL — erection of three dwellings and garage. Refused.
Appeal dismissed. Copy of plans attached. There have been
subsequent preliminary enquiries relating to the possible development
of this site.

CONSULTATIONS

Ramsey Town Council — Refuse (copy attached).
English Heritage — Does not wish to offer any comments. Application
to be determined in accordance with national and local planning
guidance and Authority’s own conservation advice.

Middle Level Commissioners — more information required on surface
water drainage. All surface water should be piped to sewers or drains.

86



6.1

REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbours — four letters have been received and the following points
have been raised:-

1. The proposal will have a significant impact on the setting of the
adjacent listed buildings and on the conservation area in general. The
development will be clearly visible from Church Green and will never
be read as a converted ancillary building. It will be seen as a bungalow
and, as such, will be out of character with the adjoining development
and will not be sensitive to the form and appearance of the area as a
whole.

2. English Heritage should be consulted due to the impact of the
development on the character of the area.

3. Full consideration should be given to the previous history of
development on this site.

4. The information regarding the levels and building heights may be
incorrect. No information regarding the floor level of the proposed
building has been submitted, and this would influence its overall height
above the ground. The difference in the levels may be less than the
applicants have suggested.

5. An ecological survey of the site should be undertaken due to the
naturalised state of the land and the knowledge that bats, nesting birds
and newts are in the area. English Nature should be consulted.

6. The application should be considered by the Development
Management Panel.

7. The development would be contrary to the provisions of the
Conservation Area Character Statement, which eulogises over the
importance of the character of Church Green to the conservation area
and states that the biggest threat to the area is the erosion of the
spaciousness by infill development. This will harm the open views and
the sense of spaciousness.

8. The proposal would be contrary to the comments made by the
Inspector when dismissing the appeal in 2000 for the erection of three
dwellings. In his decision letter, he referred to the importance of
gardens to the setting of listed buildings, and concluded that the
gardens in this instance were an integral part of their setting. The
proposed development would have an adverse impact on this setting.
The situation has not changed since 2000.

9. The proposal is contrary to the provisions of PPS5 in regard to the
advice it gives to the consideration of applications which have an effect
on the setting of listed buildings.

10. The proposed building is inappropriate when judged against the
scale of the adjacent listed buildings. The majority of dwellings on
Church Green would not have had outbuildings and it is unreasonable
to suggest that the proposed building should be considered in this
context.

11. The proposal does not respect or reflect the adjacent stable
building. The development would not make a positive contribution to
the character and local distinctiveness of the historic environment.

12. The impact of the development would be exacerbated by the
possibility of domestic buildings (sheds/greenhouses), children’s play
equipment etc.

13. The internal layout of the bungalow is not workable. This may lead
to pressure for extensions and other alterations to the building. This
would increase the impact of the development on the character of the
conservation area.

87



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

14. The tree survey does not reflect the full extent of the trees on the
site.

15. The development would result in the loss of views from the
properties in Tower Close.

16. The loss of the trees would adversely affect the birds which live
around the site.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The issues in this case relate to the principle of the development, its
form, scale and massing and its effect on the character of the site and
the conservation area including its nature conservation value, and the
setting of the adjacent listed buildings, the impact on neighbours and
the highway issues.

The principle of the development

This site is within the built up area of Ramsey. Policy CS3 of the
adopted Core Strategy defines Ramsey as a market town wherein
development schemes of all scales may be appropriate within the built
up area. The proposed development of the land would make more
efficient use of it in accordance with policy H1, although it should be
noted that this policy requires the nature of the development site, and
the character of the surrounding development to be taken into account
when optimising the density of any proposals for housing development.
However, in principle, the development of this land for residential
purposes would be acceptable, but there are other factors which need
to be given significant weight, notably the consideration of the next
issue.

The use of this site for housing development is acceptable in principle,
and is consistent with policies CS3, E2 and H1.

The scale form and massing of the development and its impact on the
character of the conservation area.

The last application for the development of this site was submitted in
2000, and was for the erection of three houses. Planning permission
was refused and the subsequent appeal was dismissed. In his decision
letter, the Inspector identified the main issues as the effect of the
development on the character and appearance of the Ramsey
conservation area with particular reference to the setting of the nearby
listed buildings. It should be noted however that this proposal was for
the erection of three detached two storey dwellings set towards the
rear of the site and occupying a substantial proportion of the width of
the site. The present application is for a single storey building, set on
the road frontage and occupying 50% of the plot width. The dwellings
in Tower Close were under construction at the time. The Inspector
emphasised the importance of maintaining the setting of the listed
buildings but noted that the dwellings under construction were further
away than the ones being proposed, and would have much less of an
impact on the setting of the listed buildings and the character of the
conservation area in general. In his view, the location of the
conservation boundary (along the northern edge of the application site)
was a logical one dividing the gardens which provide a setting for the
buildings on Church Green from the development to the north, which
was of a very different character. The erection of the three houses

88



7.7

7.8

7.9

would blur this distinction. He considered that the gardens of the listed
building to be an integral part of their setting, the importance of which
is not determined by whether or not views of them are open to the
general public.

This proposal has been the subject of lengthy discussions with officers
and a number of more extensive schemes were rejected as being
inappropriate for a site within the conservation area and adjoining a
number of listed buildings. The importance of these gardens in
preserving the setting of the listed buildings is acknowledged, but they
have been split from their parent buildings and the land now has the
appearance of a separate plot. The form and scale of the proposal has
been reduced significantly from the previous scheme and the
development clearly reflects the bulk and massing of the adjoining
single storey building. The proposed building will be set well forward in
the site, leaving the land between it and the listed building
undeveloped. However, should the development proceed, this land will
be subject to the usual domestification associated with any dwelling
although the erection of small ancillary structures and similar buildings
could be controlled by the removal of permitted development rights. In
this respect, the use of the rear of the site, and its consequential
appearance, is possibly little different than it would have been if it had
been retained by the original properties and used for domestic
activities.

Given the much reduced scale of the development, and its location
along the frontage of the site, it is considered that the proposal will not
have a significant impact on the setting of the adjoining listed buildings.
Whilst any structure in this location will have some effect, this is not
now judged to be sufficient to justify a refusal. The building will be
visible from the properties on Church Green, and through the gaps
between them. However it will be seen in the context of the larger, two
storeys properties in Tower Close, which have already had a
substantial effect on views from Church Green. In this respect, it is
considered that the proposal will not have a significant impact on views
into and out of the conservation area. The erection of any building on
this site will have some impact on the contribution the gardens make to
the character and appearance of the conservation area at this point,
but the limited height of the structure will ensure that the building is not
an over-dominant feature in the street scene, and the sense of
openness will be maintained firstly by the limited height of the structure
and, secondly, by the fact that it will only take 50% of the site frontage.
Views into the site will still be possible through and over the post and
rail fence at one end of the building and the field gate at the other.

The design, scale and massing of the building reflects that of the
adjacent outbuilding, and openings in the northern elevation of the
proposal (to Tower Close) have been eliminated in order to retain the
simple form and appearance of an outbuilding. Fenestration is confined
to the southern and western elevations of the building where it cannot
be generally seen from a public viewpoint. This does not disguise the
fact that the building is ultimately domestic in its use and nature, but it
will reduce its effect on the character and appearance of the
conservation area. High quality materials will be required, including
those used to surface the access and the parking area. These can be
required by condition.

89



7.10

7.11

712

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

Since the use of the land as domestic gardens ceased, Nature has
started to reclaim it and parts of it are now covered with brambles and
other plant species found on derelict sites. The lack of standing water
on the site would suggest that newts are unlikely to be present — the
nearest water being the pond at one end of Church Green. However,
this water is constantly turbid and appears to be an unattractive site for
newts. The use of the site by bats for foraging is possible but there is
nowhere on the land where they could roost. The site has not been
identified as a site for protected species. The trees being removed are
of no particular merit and their loss would not prejudice the overall
appearance of the site or the conservation area.

On balance, it is considered that the proposed scheme is acceptable,
and will not have a significant impact on the general character of the
conservation area, the setting of the adjacent listed buildings or nature
conservation value of the land. The proposal does not conflict with
policies ENV7, H31, H32, H33, En2, En5, En6, En9, En14, En18,
En22, En25, E1, E3, E4, E5 and E7.

The effect on neighbours.

The development of this site with the consequential increase in
domestic activity and traffic will generate a degree of noise and
disturbance which will impinge on the amenities of the immediate
neighbours. However, it is considered that the level of activity likely
from a single property will not be high and that this should not result in
a degree of nuisance that would justify a refusal. The development will
not cause any overshadowing of the adjoining properties and any
overlooking will from ground floor windows only and will be screened
by the boundary fences.

The development will not result in an undue loss of amenity to the
immediate neighbours, and does not conflict with policies H31 and H7.

Highway issues

Two parking spaces are to be provided within the curtilage of the site,
and there will be a wide access from Tower Close. Turning space will
also be provided within the site. The amount of traffic generated by the
proposal will be small and Tower Close is not a heavily used road. It is
considered that the development will not give rise to any significant
highway issues and that the parking provision meets the requirements
of appendix 1 and policy E10 of the DMDPD, and policy H31 of the
Local Plan 1995.

Other issues.

The principal issues have been considered above, and comment on
the maijority of the concerns expressed by the neighbours. In respect of
the other points raised by the neighbours, the following comments can
be made:-

The loss of view is not a material planning consideration.

The level of the proposed dwelling can be required by condition.

The internal layout of the building is not a material planning
consideration. Extensions and other additions to the building can be
controlled by the removal of permitted development rights.

90



7.19

7.20

7.21

The applicant is aware of the MLC comments and is seeking
clarification on the issues raised. Any further comments will be
reported at the meeting. However, there are no known surface water
drainage problems in the area, and there is no reason to suspect that a
suitable drainage scheme for this development cannot be designed
and implemented. It is considered that the disposal of surface water is
not an overriding issue in this case.

Conclusions

1. The erection of a dwelling on this site is acceptable in principle and
consistent with the settlement policy for Ramsey.

2. The proposal will not have a significant effect on the character of the
conservation area or the setting of the adjacent listed buildings.

3. The loss of the trees is acceptable and the development of the site
could not be refused on the grounds of loss of habitat.

4. The development will not have a significant impact on the amenities
of the immediate neighbours.

5. There are no overriding highway issues.

6. There are no other material planning considerations which have a
significant impact on the determination of this planning application.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission should be granted in this instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate

your needs.
8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:
02003 Time Limit (3yrs)
05001 Buildings
17001 Levels Building/Site
03022 Parking
06010 Landscape design (delete)
06011 Soft landscape (delete)
06012 Hard and soft landscape implementation
Nonstand various details
Nonstand pd restriction

CONTACT OFFICER:Enquiries about this report to David Hincks
Development Management Officer 01480 388406

91



MAMDCT  TUWN GUUNLLL PaGE Bd

S N

HUntingdonshire

DISTR!CT C0UNCI L
Pathfinder House, St Mary's Street

Huntingdon. PE29 3TN Tel: 01480 388388
mail@huntsdc. gov.uk Fax: 01480 388000
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk

Head of Planning Services
Pathfinder House

St. Mary's Street
Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN

Application Number: 1102068FUL Case Officer David Hincks
Proposal: New single storey dwelling

Location: Land Opposite 11 To 17Tower CloseRamsey
Observations of Ramsey Town/Parish Council,

Please ¥ box as appropriate

Recommend approval because .. (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

l .E | Recommend refusal because...(pleage give relevant planning reasons in space below)
UnQAimaus 1A ent Hhat pof /Ue/ﬂm\j
Uf’ﬁ/v ﬁu;sfa:j Sfhreed SCorse .

D No observations either in favour or against the proposal

L2 7 A o Clerk to Ramsey Town/Parish Council.

fo/g/, 2

Failure to return this form within the time indicated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

8 :

92



&

/

o

Development Management Panel
Application Ref: 1102068FUL
Location: Ramsey

Huntingdonshire

%

N

W

0
)
2,

ARy el

TURVERS

©
@QQ@@
>

17| 19

Playing Field

Play Area

K

&
e
<]
0 sl @
(% Sub
0 E,:I
House. S
B \J
£
% ?
3
2
S
@
2
- Bunglio [{ Truss o X7
1 2.8m 43m ?
3 >
N
A ~ | Scojts
N (B
9
Oward Q 8
d
o(/,/ y! R
NEW ROAD 9 5 A
) Church Green
51016 2 ) War Memorial
P

=
[0

1 i3
1% || s
0

3
t urt

E
TRTE WA

D de

@

X
S
2
6

B 1096

Legend
"/ /] The Site

| I

1 .
1 Conservation Area

5.7m

Gate House

%

N

— ||

j The Lodge

6.4m

St Thomas a Becket's
Church
formerly
Hospital

_:—\’—"I_.E

Ramsey| Abbey

DI STRICT C OCOUNTZ CIL
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322
) > T
A S\ = T2
% r Burial 6 'f
&, ), Ground %
2 ‘
;f{’ ocking
5 F i
oo Fen

The Hawthor

4 TES

E’VCE

[ﬂ Abbey Garden

1]
©
L
Abbey
Stables
El Sub Sta

Ay
O

Tennis
Court

A

Tennis
Court

Scale: 1:2500

93




3n"00"uowap ubisapgby @ Xoiu
GC0<C E8L S6L0 L

HEF FIT WAL LSHUOTAT
AHAVH "UHNVI NOLSTO)
TNRIVI MOON AHMAVA

N9IS3a ¥
HAMLOHLIHO A
HOMY € VL NOOVEL MOIN

2102 YOIBW 1Z - 8 uosiney

00l=L @S
Buiuueld

snjelg Buimeiq

suonensle ¥ ueld
oL Bumelq

Aoswey

9S0|D JaMO |
Buijjomp As.03s a|buls
Mmau pasodoid

‘paddoms

wooJ Bunais pue uayaly Jo UoRISOd
*9s0[) Joamo] Buioey Joos 01 pappe s1ybi|
-JO0J UOIBAIBSUOY "JoOp 01 pabueyd A3je
1583 UO MOPUIM “Pa3I3I9P AS[2 YLION U0
SMOPUIM pue 100 "2 L0Z JeW L2 "9 A9y

‘pappe suolsuawilg ‘Z 102 Uer 6 'V AdY

wozg

ELITET
Jies ® 3sod

wgh wol

Bupped

Ly — E— S—

L L]

L]

e —

wo's

21e6 pjay Buiouay papJeoq aso|d ybiy wwQOg L

ERVETE
Jies 1 1sod

-

wzel

uonEeAd|3 1se]

(Y14ON) uoneAs|3 aso[) JoMo |

wl 0¢e

uoneAd|3 1soM

T

w9g

ws'y

94

(WWO8Y X WWQSS) SIYBIFO0I UONEAISSUOD JOUIO JO XN[DA

(4anos) uoneas|3 Jeay

useg Bunsix3

uleg Bunsix3y

ev




HRAULOHLIHO A
HOAV F1VE NODVEL MDIN

L10Z 980 £ uosiey
00z=1 s

Buiuue|q

oy Buimesq

8s0|D Jemo |
Bujemp Aaioys ajbuls
Mmau pasodoid

13SES°S
NLES 182582
395'€EL62S
i L-18YE

wo

eV

8€9'8
ENY




29050E

A3

1 |
Existing

//J]—,

WER
cLosge Proposed

Existing

Line of sight
shown in red

Church Green

SECTION

o \
32 EE '\\
gt !
i SECTION LINE
2% \
' SHOWN MAGENTA
\ ;‘ - 3
[ A > z ~
AR A G s,
\ 1 =2
| \ ,gi&
1 1 2R
\ 1 SRS
1 \
1 1
\ 1 M
R I
\ [
1
Proposed ' V5 E
Z 2
c
(]
o
—
(&)
<
[8)
—
>
<
(@)
WHELLAMS _YARD
\\\ ]
\ 8
1
\
|
\ &
\
\
\
\ 5
\‘ -
1
| .
& |
a |
oL
o\
o \ e
N N Z \
(o] (o<} A}
wv wv
w n \
o 1%
s g Proposed\new
single storey dwelling
Tower Close
Ramsey
Drawing Title
Section
Drawing Status
Planning
Scale 1=500

96

Revision 7 Dec 2011

NICK BACON, BA, B ARCIT
RCHITECTURE

& DESIGN

DARKER NOOK FARM

COLSTON LANE, HARBY
LEICE SHIRE,

T: 0795 782 5052
E: nick@kgbdesign.demon.co.uk

LE14 4BE

20m




529050E

The data used for the computation of horizontal and vertical control for this survey
was recorded using our survey grade GPS receivers.
This data was provided by Leica Geosystems Smartnet RTK Correction Service.

Crown Copyright 2009. All rights reserved. Licence number 100020449

529100E

North.

(Indicatijve)

" wl
w o
3 wn
: 2
o mn
\
285300N Zes3oon
285250N 285250N
285200N . 285200N
e " W
- 6.266El /
XG|4 V Y I}
Church Green SUR
' b
6.12

. The Old Coaching Hou:

- 0Oa Whittlesey Road,

. . R a t C I Thorney, Peterboroug!
PE6 ORA

Land & Engineering Surveys Ltd

Tel: 01733 2708
Fax: 01733 2711

www.ratclifflandsurveys.co.uk
info@ratclifflandsurveys.co.uk

o

51
40

JOB TITLE
Ground level survey
at Tower Close, Ramsey.

SCALE DATE
1:500 @ A3 May 2009.
DRAWING NUMBER DRAWN BY
3487-1 MR
CLIENT

Rose Homes.

97




3N 00 uowap-ubisapgby@oIu 51

NOISIa 3
HAMLOMLIHO A

HOV €V 'NOOVEH MOIN

1102 980 £ uosiney
9SIMIBYI0 Paledlpul

aJoym 1deoxa QL=| dleos

Buuueld

snjelg buimelg

s|lelap J00p pue

JOOJ ‘saned ‘MOPUIA
a1 bumeig

Reswey

950D JaMO ]
Buljjemp Aaiois ajbuls
Mmau pasodold

— —
wi

T— EwJ ENJ | M3IA NV1d apIsNo
wg o 0 [ |
m i )
apisul
0z=1 9eds NOILVAIT3
NOILVAI T3 3SOTO ¥4IMOL OL ¥00d ¥3dnIL i
N
N
AN
N
N
\|
E N
= s
s
/
s
[ ‘
s
s
s
s
s

Tiv.13a 39di

ev

JeLIOW Ul pappaq
9|13 9bpry 93210U0)

diH O1 71704 dv3T HONOYHL NOILD3S

dijo pea

9002: 88521 N3 S8 03
Buiyse)3 pean

104 Jaquui |

SIAVI ANV MOANIM

HONOYHL NOILO3S

iwlw

98

's}eyoelq 1933nb
I8} pue asty

I}

diy 03 Jjo. pea



GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

99



l

001

Statienery Offce

Crown Copyright Licence NoEST41361ED!

. RO38/12

Reproduced from the Ordnance Sunvey Map
With the sanction of the Controizr of H Ml

DRAWN, KM
DRG.
NO

L)
3

LAND OFF MILL LANE
RAMSEY
PLOT 18 - 20
LAYOUT

S S O CI1 A Y E S

A

OHN MARTIN

TELEPHONE: 01480436036 FACSIMILE: 01480 436006

A N D

[FARTERED SURVEYORS AND TOWN PLANNERS - PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS

i

FARM HALL OFFICES WEST STREET GODMANCHESTER
HUNTINGDON CAMBRIDGESHIRE PE18 8HG

)

7 g
00 | 2300 )
2

1]
1]
B
2
B
[3

b sber s

10
joo {

1
2
2

i

oo | 1

ey

9

R
R
il

o]

1
1

1
ebar11]1115

P

?

8

! SRRLEZD e (s v )it

Ny o 7 e T ey E10
dan 7 B S

TIDNAOD LI bl DIHGN O v vivy




10003196k ¥ZSTON s2uax] jybpkdeg umery
axpQ Arauones
1 H Jo soponuon A3 Jo UDGARS A YU
depy danmng asuzcpig oy watp paampordey

£1/2€04 "ON
‘ouda

Wy ‘NMRIa
000z 934 ‘alva
‘ae0g 03 30N ‘TTUIS

NOILVAZ13 L3TULS
0Z-8LS107d

AISNVY
INVT TN 249 ANV

DHS 813d FHIHSTOAIHEWYD NOTINILNOH

HILSIHONYINGOD 13THLS 1S3M S3DIFA0 TIVH Wuvd

9009ty DBY 10 -IHAISOYS  SE09EY 08V 10 :INDHJIAL

SINVIRGNOD INTHTEAIA (Y SNV - SHENNTS NAD.L WY SUOAAUNS MBEILVH

S 3 LY 1 DOOSSYVY ONY

NILIVYW NHO

[

v Yy

T B e oot [
N Y \m.\\ ‘*

]

: b
SO GELEG |
i

[ L O B W - :
breme T T o
% . o T RITSIC SUHSNOGONTLN AR |
iz 834 2§
m .T)AM@@Q.E ¥
oz loid
M| & 2 . o G
SOATY 3 i =
{ S, 3
Y L
© .ww
iy \JN. s
) S B _, '
)
AN F .
),

BG/8LE00H

NOUNVAZTE 13331s

gl loid

>

\ A %7 Ak

et ﬁ_ ef\_

e e

101

-l

" H@




This page is intentionally left blank

102



Agenda Item 5e

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012
Case No: 1200179S73 (RENEWAL OF CONSENT/VARY
CONDITIONS)

Proposal: VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 OF PLANNING PERMISSION
110018755873 TO EXTEND THE EXPIRY OF TEMPORARY
USE UNTIL 28TH FEBRUARY 2014

Location: SPICELANDS, OLD GREAT NORTH ROAD,

Applicant: MR R UDDIN

Grid Ref: 518252 280438

Date of Registration: 14.02.2012

Parish: SAWTRY
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 The site relates to a restaurant located to the east of the A1M and

accessed from the B1043; to the north of the building is a large car
park. Within the immediate vicinity of the site is a residential property,
petrol filling station and Motel. The site is located within the open
countryside.

1.2 Temporary permission was granted for the change of use of
approximately 43 square metres of the existing restaurant building to
provide overnight staff accommodation in February 2009; this has
subsequently been renewed on two occasions amounting to a three
year temporary permission.

1.3 This application seeks to vary condition one (temporary time period)
to allow the staff to remain living onsite until 28th February 2014.

14 The temporary permissions have been granted as the premises is
remote and the restaurant requires numbers of staff to remain late at
night to clear up after the closing of the restaurant; as a result, staff
find it difficult to return to their homes given the time of night.

1.5 The change of use covers two rooms which accommodates
approximately 6-8 staff members and is served by a shower/toilet
separate from the restaurant facilities. An additional small room is
used as staff storage/changing.

1.6 This application is reported to Members for determination in line with
the Scheme of Delegation as the previous three temporary
permissions have been granted under Delegated Powers, contrary to
the Parish Council's recommendation of refusal. The first two
applications were recommended for refusal by the Parish Council due
to concerns over drainage and sewage issues, and the latter

103



permission as the temporary use should be resolved and concerns
were raised that the site was used for permanent rather than
temporary overnight accommodation.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

o 8S81: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy
seeks to bring about sustainable development by applying: the
guiding principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005
and the elements contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for All.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

. None relevant.

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

104



3.4

3.5

3.6

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

o E7: The establishment and expansion of small businesses will
normally be supported subject to traffic and environmental
considerations.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

. None relevant.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire Local Development Framework
Approved Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning and then click on Planning Policy where there is a
link to the Local Development Framework Core Strategy.

o CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and economic
issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

Policies from the Huntingdonshire LDF Development Management
DPD: Proposed Submission 2010 are relevant

o C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the expected
lifetime of the development.

) H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

PLANNING HISTORY

77000240UT - Restaurant, shop and parking — permission
GRANTED

8000705FUL — Motorway restaurant shop parking etc — permission
GRANTED

8401079FUL — Alterations to restaurant — permission GRANTED

0802962FUL — Retention of storage building — permission REFUSED,
subsequently ALLOWED AT APPEAL.

0802970FUL — Change of use of part of restaurant to provide
overnight staff sleeping accommodation — permission GRANTED

0901434S73 — Variation of condition 1 of planning permission
0802970FUL to: the use of the rooms for overnight accommodation
shall be for a temporary period expiring on the 28th February 2012 -
permission GRANTED but restricted to one year, expiring on 28th
February 2011.

105



4.7

4.8

4.9

5.1

6.1

7.1

7.2

1001719FUL - Installation of underground package sewage
treatment plant to replace unsatisfactory septic tank drainage system
— permission GRANTED

1100187S73 - Variation of condition 1 of planning permission
0901434S73 to extend the expiry of the temporary use - permission
GRANTED but restricted to 11 months, expiring on 29th February
2012.

1100091ENBOC - Breach of condition as site appears to be used as
permanent accommodation — FILE CLOSED as address and tax
records were provided for employees giving alternative, permanent
addresses.

CONSULTATIONS

Sawtry Parish Council recommends REFUSAL - has been
temporary for too long; either apply for permanent accommodation or
arrange transport home for employees after shifts (copy attached).

REPRESENTATIONS
No comments received within the consultation period.
SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider with this application are the principle of
the development and the impacts upon the residential amenity of
adjacent properties.

The proposal does not significantly affect the external appearance of
the building and therefore the character and appearance of the area
is not considered to be harmed as a result of the change of use.

Principle of Development

7.3

7.4

7.5

The supporting letter with this application advises that the restaurant
has twelve members of staff who each work Saturday and then work
on a rota of two days on and one day off; generally this results in
eight members of staff during the week. It continues that the hours of
operation advertised are 12.00-15.00 and 17.30-23.00, although if
they are still eating, customers can remain longer. Preparation and
clearing up is usually an hour before opening and after closing.

The Agent has confirmed that the staff live in London and travel to
work via the train to Huntingdon and then car or taxi to the restaurant.
He advises the last train leaves Huntingdon at 22.44 which is before
the restaurant closes.

The building is located within the open countryside and sited away
from residential settlements with Woodwalton, Sawtry and Alconbury
Weston approximately two to three miles from the application site. As
such, it is considered that the application site is located in an
unsustainable location.

106



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

Development within the countryside is generally resisted unless it is
for an essential use; the principle of overnight accommodation
therefore requires specific justification.

In this particularly instance, the restaurant use in an unsustainable
location has been established and therefore provision of overnight
accommodation does contribute to sustainability goals as the staff are
required to travel to the site by private vehicles and if they are to be
working the early shift in the restaurant also, the overnight
accommodation will result in less vehicle movements. The current
train times found online show the last train to leave Huntingdon at
22.44 weekdays and slightly later at weekends (23.00 on Saturday
evening and 23.15 on Sunday evening); trains from Peterborough
have also been checked with the last weekday train at 23.40, 22.46
on Saturday and 23.01 on Sunday. These are still acknowledged as
not being appropriate around the restaurant opening hours.

Given this, the proposal conforms to national and local sustainable
development policies.

The application seeks a further temporary period of two years, this is
considered acceptable and as this is the time period sought, is the
maximum which permission can be granted for.

The comments of the Parish Council regarding the temporary use
being granted for too long are noted. The Agent has confirmed that
the owner is looking into more permanent accommodation options
including properties in either St lves or Huntingdon, or a purpose built
building on site. The application under consideration now is however
for a renewal of the temporary permission and not an alternative,
permanent solution; any future application would be assessed on its
own merits at the time of an application if submitted.

Residential Amenity

7.11

712

As with the original application, it is accepted that the staff area is
sited within the building close to the boundary with the neighbouring
residential property and may result in some additional movement,
however it also removes the noise of some staff leaving the site late
at night.

It is therefore considered that on balance, the provision of overnight
accommodation is not significantly harmful to the residential amenity
of neighbours.

Conclusion

7.13

7.14

The proposed development is considered to be compliant with the
relevant national and local policy as:

* The principle of development is accepted;

* Would not have a significant detrimental impact upon the amenity of
neighbours.

Taking national and local planning policies into account, and having
regard for all relevant material considerations, it is recommended that
planning permission be granted, subject to the imposition of
appropriate conditions.

107



8. RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:

Nonstand Temporary permission with the overnight accommodation use
expiring within 2 years.

Nonstand The overnight accommodation used solely for members of staff
employed in the associated restaurant and at no time be used
as a permanent place of residence.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Ms Charlotte Fox Assistant Development
Management Officer 01480 388457

108



Page 1 of 1

Parker-Seale, Debra (Planning)

From: Diane Davis - Sawtry Parish Council [clerk@sawtry-pc.gov.uk]
Sent: 15 March 2012 13:34

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments on applications

Dear Sirs

Please find below the comments of Sawtry Parish Council Planning Committee on the following applications:

1200082FUL — 5 St Judith’s Lane — demolition of existing porch and replace with larger porch extension

Recommend approval — an improvement to the village scene

1200179S73 — Spicelands, Old Great North Road — variation of condition 1 of planning permission
11001875S73 to extend the expiry of temporary use until Feb 281 2014

Recommend refusal — has been temporary for too long — either apply for permanent accommodation or
arrange transport home for employees after shifts

1200159FUL — Land west of 21 Windsor Road — erection of Primary Healthcare facility as required by
unilateral undertaking which formed part of outline planning permission

Recommend refusal — access should be from the development site not via an already congested cul de sac,
insufficient car parking on site

1200311TREE — Chesham House, 56 Green End Rd — felling and removal of one willow tree (NB Tree
Preservation Order in place)

Recommend refusal — as tree closer to footpath than house, this would be affected first. It is very unwise to
cut down a tree ‘just in case’ subsidence might occur. The tree has a preservation order on it, it is a very
pretty tree and it enhances the street scene at the entrance to Rockingham Road. The removal of the tree
could still result in subsidence of the property due to the way the ground reacts after removal.

1200182ADV — Pulse and Cocktails, Toll Bar Way — free standing totem sign and two entrance signs - It is
noted that the only issues that can be addressed through planning are Highway safety and the effect on
amenity. The proposed signs would conflict with the conditions of the license agreement and the Clerk was
requested to write to the licensing department with the committee’s concerns.

Recommend refusal — the additional signs would cause a distraction to motorists on the A1(M) and would affect
highway safety. The site is outside of the 30mph limit of the village of Sawtry and as such is in a rural location.
Additional signage would adversely affect the visual amenity of this rural area. Toll Bar Way is a popular route for
walkers and forms part of several circular routes around the village, including a publicised walk to local woods. Due to
the addition of the company name and description the signs would become advertising rather than directional signs.

Diane Davis
Clerk to the Council
Sawtry Parish Council

109
21/03/2012



Development Management Panel

Application Ref: 1200179S73
Location: Sawtry

Huntingdonshire

DI'STRICT COUNZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

Legend
/| The Site

Aversley T
““Wood

Upton Lodge
5 Fim

e

i 4
70 Py
9, %
& & \‘;3 0 »Grange
3 3 7 \;11 —
& k Y, i1
AManorial £ \ %’/é/rwckyard o

i ol o r__‘\‘)-;l ?._1,’-’/
-~ Coppingford ) \_,:/_,
_MWood Mdnk's Waod |
- ol

N\ ¥ 2
A e AR O AR
4 il Manks. Wood -~
\| # ; b - \ \

~

Iumu;us T ‘Experlmentqlﬂ
/ e n Station BT, o
{ ARy ,_./\,5: 8

iUl N

The Odd Quatter

Scale: 1:5000




0G21/1 N¥17d NOILVYJ201

NV1d 3LIS/ 40014

(Q350403d)

LA
bnosqatagaL |
d kP

% ANVINYLS3Y

ANVINYLS3Y

i Vel

=i

g e &

Buado Buiysixa dn yoog

44v1S

|
7 AESERS
3
T
m _D du
ﬁ 0084
L ux3ou.
A
. 0062
~ Buipping bunsieg LI

‘Guuado Joop mau 4 su] w3 2y
- o~ Aopunog ang
SRUNeg 3G
L 33ua} papazeq by wg Bix3
NOILVA3T3 LSVv3/HLYON
13 341
[an0) puncig ® T
I 5 7
ﬁ ~ | N b
| N P |
by wg' | | \\ [ | [l
m o O v L e K LN
|

! )|

111



This page is intentionally left blank

112



Agenda ltem 5f

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012
Case No: 1200159FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)
Proposal: ERECTION OF PRIMARY HEALTHCARE FACILITY AS

REQUIRED BY UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING WHICH
FORMED PART OF OUTLINE PLANNING PERMISSION

Location: LAND WEST OF 21 WINDSOR ROAD
Applicant: PERSIMMON HOMES (EM) AND BELLWAY HOMES (EM)
Grid Ref: 516512 283260

Date of Registration: 21.02.2012

Parish: SAWTRY
RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 The application site comprises currently undeveloped land to the west

of Windsor Road. As detailed within the planning history section the
site forms part of land which was granted outline planning permission
in July 2009.

1.2 The proposal seeks full planning permission for the erection of a
primary healthcare facility. As stated in the description this was a
requirement of the Unilateral Undertaking proposed by the applicant
during the consideration of the outline permission. The facility itself
would comprise an 8.2m high two-storey building with 6 dedicated car
parking spaces provided to the south. Provision is also made for cycle
and bin storage.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 National Planning Policy Framework (2012): sets out the
Government’s key economic, social and environmental objectives and
the planning policies to deliver them. The intention is that these
policies will provide local communities with the tools they need to
energise their local economies, meet housing needs, plan for a low-
carbon future and protect the environmental and cultural landscapes
that they value. It seeks to free communities from unnecessarily
prescriptive central government policies, empowering local councils to
deliver innovative solutions that work for their local area.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

113



3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008). Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

o ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the distinctive
character and best qualities of the local area and promotes urban
renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

. None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

o T19: “Pedestrian Routes and Footpath” — new developments
are required to provide safe and convenient pedestrian routes having
due regard to existing and planned footpath routes in the area.

o En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and make
adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

. CS5: “Health and Social Services” — the development,
improvement and extension of facilities for health and social care in
the community will normally be permitted, subject to environmental
and traffic considerations, and the supplanting of such facilities by
other uses will generally be resisted.

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

° None relevant.

114



3.5

3.6

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk click on Environment and
Planning then click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and
then click on Core Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core
Strategy.

o CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and economic
issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing
water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

o CS2: “Strategic Housing Development” — in the Key Service
Centres (including Sawtry) about 250 homes will be provided. The
provision will be made for housing in the general locations — including
land to the west of Sawtry.

. CS10: “Contributions to Infrastructure Requirements” -
proposals will be expected to provide or contribute towards the cost of
providing infrastructure and of meeting social and environmental
requirements, where these are necessary to make the development
acceptable in planning terms.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

o C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should
take account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

) E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

o E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should
accord with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall
be provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free
development or development proposals incorporating very limited car
parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is clear
justification for the level of provision proposed, having consideration
for the current and proposed availability of alternative transport
modes, highway safety, servicing requirements, the needs of potential
users and the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

. H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard

the living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

) D3: “Community Facilities Contributions” — contributions will
be required towards the provision, extension or improvement of

115



41

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

6.1

71

community facilities where necessary to promote the development of
sustainable communities and mitigate the impacts of the development
as identified through the Local Investment Framework.

Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning Document
(2007)

PLANNING HISTORY

As noted previously the site forms part of the overall site which was
allowed on appeal in July 2009. This related to the erection of 190
dwellings. During the consideration of the appeal a Unilateral
Undertaking was submitted in order to address the concerns raised
by the Council in relation to the under supply of health care provision
post the residential development.

The appeal allowed an outline planning application with the access
details committed. The access details approved relate solely to
Gidding Road.

It should be noted that there is a current reserved matters application
before the Council (reference 1100722 REM) for the erection of 190
dwellings on the site. The proposed facility would be developed
alongside that site. Planning permission was also granted in 2011 for
the construction of drainage infrastructure and newt mitigation in
connection with the development.

CONSULTATIONS

Sawtry Parish Council: Recommend refusal — access should be
from the development site not via an already congested cul-de-sac,
insufficient car parking on site (COPY ATTACHED).

Cambridgeshire County Council Countryside Services: not yet
received.

REPRESENTATIONS

1 letter of objection received from a resident of Maple Close stating
concerns regarding vehicular access and drainage.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider in respect of this application are the
principle of the use; the location of the development; design; impact
upon residential amenity; impact on the public footpath; drainage and
car parking.

Principle of the Use

7.2

As noted previously the requirement for this facility formed part of the
Unilateral Undertaking submitted with regard to the outline planning
permission. The Unilateral Undertaking requires that, amongst other
things, if planning permission is granted the developer shall procure
the construction of the facility prior to the occupation of the 16th
residential unit. The fall back position for the applicant in the
Undertaking allows for a contribution per dwelling to be paid.

116



7.3

7.4

The Undertaking includes a specification for the facility. Where
relevant to the consideration of the planning application the facility
appears to comply with the specification. Much of the specification
though falls outside of planning control (such as the specification of
internal walls). The health care providers have already advised the
applicant that the facility is acceptable to meet their needs.

Whilst this full planning application is not directly linked to the outline
planning permission (as it is not a reserved matters submission) the
facility is to be provided by the developer as part of their obligation.
The principle of the proposed use can therefore be supported in
accordance with Policy CS5 of the Local Plan, Policy CS10 of the
Core Strategy and Policy D3 of the Proposed Submission DPD.

Location

7.5

7.6

Design

7.7

7.8

The agent has identified that the location of the facility is necessitated
by the terms of the Unilateral Undertaking which, as noted above,
requires the procurement of the facility prior to the occupation of the
16th residential unit. They consider this to be the most suitable
location having regard to this requirement.

Access from Windsor Road is the only option for gaining access to
the site other than from Gidding Road. On balance officers are
satisfied, subject to the suggested conditions, that the location of the
proposed facility is acceptable as it will be situated in a location will
can serve the proposed development and existing residents to the
east.

The design of the proposal is intended to be consistent with the
remainder of the proposed residential development. The building
therefore resembles a dwelling to a large extent although the front
elevation (which faces south) includes a large amount of glazing at
the ground floor level.

The eastern elevation lacks interest and it is unfortunate that this
would be readily seen from Windsor Road. However the overall
design is such that it is considered to be acceptable in this location as
it accords with the principles within the Council’'s Design Guide SPD
and also is consistent with Policy ENV7 of the Regional Plan, Policy
En25 of the Local Plan and Policy E1 of the Proposed Submission
DPD.

Impact upon Residential Amenity

7.9

7.10

The proposed siting of the building is such that its location need not
detrimentally impact upon the amenity of the occupiers of any nearby
dwellings.

The use will clearly generate additional traffic movements on Windsor
Road. When visiting the site officers have observed Windsor Road as
being dominated by on-street parking, although many properties are
provided with dedicated off-street car parking. Officers consider that
the traffic generated by the development will predominantly take

117



7.11

7.12

place during the day. However the use of the site on Saturdays will
generate some movements which will impact on amenity.

Given the position regarding the applicant’'s need to procure the
development at a relatively early stage in the development of the
housing site officers have discussed the Parish Council’s objection
and the agent has agreed to a condition requiring the use of the
vehicular access being from the housing site once the new road to
the site from Gidding Road has been provided (this would require the
relocation of the bollards from their proposed position to prevent
access from Windsor Road). The agent has also identified that the
development of the health care facility will only take place if the
housing development comes forward; hence a condition could
reasonably be imposed in relation to the two sites despite the pending
reserved matters submission. This is likely to result in the impact
upon the residents of Windsor Road being temporary and the noise
and disturbance should therefore be assessed on this basis.

In this particular instance and having taken into consideration the
noise and disturbance created the proposal can, subject to the
suggested condition, be considered to be acceptable having regard to
Policy H7 of the Proposed Submission DPD.

Impact upon the Public Footpath

7.13

The existing public footpath runs across the bell mouth of Windsor
Road down to the east of the application site. There will be some
impact due to the use of Windsor Road by vehicular traffic. However
the amount of traffic is not considered to be such that it would prevent
its use. As such there is no conflict with Policy T19 of the Local Plan.

Drainage

7.14

The Design & Access Statement advises that the drainage will tie into
the development of the housing site. Part of those details have been
agreed with the Environment Agency. In order to ensure that the
drainage is appropriate it is considered appropriate to apply a
condition in this regard.

Car Parking

7.15

7.16

Whilst noting the Parish Council’s reservations regarding the level of
car parking the proposal includes six spaces which is sufficient having
regard to Policy E10 of the Proposed Submission DPD and to the
Council’s car parking standards (in Appendix 1 of the Proposed
Submission DPD) which require three spaces per consulting room
(there are two consulting rooms).

The proposal also includes provision for cycle parking; the details of
which can be secured via condition. It should be noted that the
Council’s standards only require 1 parking space for cycles.

Conclusion

717

The proposed use of the site is considered to be acceptable as it will
enhance health care facilities in the village. Whilst the access would
create some noise and disturbance to residential amenity the

118



7.18

719

7.20

condition which is suggested is likely to result in this impact being
temporary and on this basis it is considered to be acceptable. The
condition is worded in such a manner that the Council retains control
over the timing of the barrier being relocated to prevent access from
Windsor Road.

The design and layout of the building is considered to be appropriate
although the relocation of the main access (as described above) may
also assist in shifting the emphasis of the approach from Windsor
Road where the eastern elevation is considered to lack interest.

Car parking provision is considered to be in accordance with the
Council’s standards and conditions can be applied to control drainage
and the choice of materials in order to ensure that the proposal
enjoys sufficient linkage into the housing development.

The proposed development is therefore considered to be in
compliance with development plan policies and there are no other
material planning considerations which weigh against the proposal. In
summary the development is acceptable because:

* It would create an additional health care facility which is required to
make the housing development on the adjoining land acceptable;

* The design and layout of the proposal is considered acceptable;

* The harm to residential amenity is likely to be temporary and the
Council can control the vehicular access into the site such that it is
considered acceptable;

* There is sufficient car parking to serve the development;

* The proposal need not create any unacceptable disturbance to the
use of the public footpath;

* Drainage and the appearance of the building can be controlled via
condition.

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE subject to conditions to
include the following:

02003 Time limit (3 years)

Nonstand — details of materials

Nonstand — Submit prior to commencement of development a
scheme to include details of the phasing of the road with a view to
relocating bollards to block off access from Windsor Road once
access is available from Gidding Road

Nonstand — Drainage

Nonstand — Provide car parking prior to first use

Nonstand — Cycle parking details

CONTACT OFFICER: Enquiries about this report to Mr Andy Brand
Development Management Team Leader 01480 388490

119



Page 1 of 1

Parker-Seale, Debra (Planning)

From: Diane Davis - Sawtry Parish Council [clerk@sawtry-pc.gov.uk]
Sent: 15 March 2012 13:34

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Comments on applications

Dear Sirs

Please find below the comments of Sawtry Parish Council Planning Committee on the following applications:

1200082FUL — 5 St Judith’s Lane — demolition of existing porch and replace with larger porch extension

Recommend approval — an improvement to the village scene

1200179S73 — Spicelands, Old Great North Road — variation of condition 1 of planning permission
11001875S73 to extend the expiry of temporary use until Feb 281 2014

Recommend refusal — has been temporary for too long — either apply for permanent accommodation or
arrange transport home for employees after shifts

1200159FUL — Land west of 21 Windsor Road — erection of Primary Healthcare facility as required by
unilateral undertaking which formed part of outline planning permission

Recommend refusal — access should be from the development site not via an already congested cul de sac,
insufficient car parking on site

1200311TREE — Chesham House, 56 Green End Rd — felling and removal of one willow tree (NB Tree
Preservation Order in place)

Recommend refusal — as tree closer to footpath than house, this would be affected first. It is very unwise to
cut down a tree ‘just in case’ subsidence might occur. The tree has a preservation order on it, it is a very
pretty tree and it enhances the street scene at the entrance to Rockingham Road. The removal of the tree
could still result in subsidence of the property due to the way the ground reacts after removal.

1200182ADV — Pulse and Cocktails, Toll Bar Way — free standing totem sign and two entrance signs - It is
noted that the only issues that can be addressed through planning are Highway safety and the effect on
amenity. The proposed signs would conflict with the conditions of the license agreement and the Clerk was
requested to write to the licensing department with the committee’s concerns.

Recommend refusal — the additional signs would cause a distraction to motorists on the A1(M) and would affect
highway safety. The site is outside of the 30mph limit of the village of Sawtry and as such is in a rural location.
Additional signage would adversely affect the visual amenity of this rural area. Toll Bar Way is a popular route for
walkers and forms part of several circular routes around the village, including a publicised walk to local woods. Due to
the addition of the company name and description the signs would become advertising rather than directional signs.

Diane Davis
Clerk to the Council
Sawtry Parish Council

120
21/03/2012



Development Management Panel : "
Application Ref: 1200159FUL H U n -I-I n g d O n S h | re

Location: Sawtry DISTRICT €OUNTC CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322
WA W
LR\ N

% F

LA

D? m Mill Cottage

—_—
21\

Lod I b
AT el Glebe

]

: 4
ﬁ \:_“ /
% 89 5”
¥ 7 \ ) o
\5\ \\_/c\ I
% " o Wopdfield R Pl

Fri Wood End High Holborn

3
[ Cold Harbodr Frm Hill
i Fm ) < ;

1

&
3 2
8 = [ D
MAPLECLOS
' @
s

Legend i G b Q
7] The Site A=t

0 A
Lo _: Conservation Area i A 2 ) e %

Scale: 1:2500 1 21



»

Emergency

access only

- Removable
bollards

. Drawings prepared for planning application purposes and can be scaled (drawings are not to be used for construction or sales documents).

R

=
S
5
o)
8
S
5!
2
3
3
S
3
o
2
°
3
T
5
2
©
o
3
2
2
0]
5
S
B
s
z
<
s
3
2
Es
2
(o]
°
=4
=
£
8
o
2
El
A
8
3
3
a
5
T
5
g
@2
c
gy
3
3
[=]
<
§
£
=)
»
3
<
S
3
a
2
2
5
E
s
3
o)
S
I
5
£
7
2
2
8
4
3
<
2
c
2
3
8
3
£
5
£
3
o
2
3
hel
&

8l in store

Please refer

\

Low hedge

‘ i Cycle rac

Formal Open
Space

© Copyright Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. © Crown copyright. All rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Copyright Licence number 100042093 | Promap Licence number 100020449

)
S s \
S Revision G:

- Dimension from built form
added.
- Red line changed to include

Key: Proposed doctors surgery (2 storey unit, access to Windsor Road.

1510 sqft).

[ ] et tocation (0.056ta) *

r"‘ Proposed residential land - 6 parking bays (including 1 disabled).

L_ (Persimmon Homes, East - Cycle rack (4 spaces)

Midlands) - Bin store (2 x Euro bins)

Land South of Gidding Road, Sawtry - PCT Layout Pegasus

2 Urban Dy
| T 01285641717 | F 01285642348 | www.pegasuspg.co.uk | Team MCC/CCW | Febrda | 1:200@ A2 | drwg. P.0643 07G | Persimmon Homes (East Midlands) |



31835 001:1L

wg

| LLLLY9E8ZI0 L |

87£¢79 98210 4

| %02 bdsnsebad mmm

NV/MOO/J0W wea]

z10z Aenuer |

! brup | eV DI 00LEL
suoljead)3 buipiing 19d - Ames ‘peoy Bulpplg Jo YInos pueT

1-¥8Z €790d

QUCHE)

| (SPuepi|y 15B3) SSWOH UoWwIsad
ubsolLGL

snsebad

ubissq uequn

© Copyright Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. © Grown copyright. Al rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Gopyright Licence number mooAzoa Al aromapLL\cence number 100020449 . Drawings prepared for planning application purposes and can be scaled (drawings are not to be used for construction or sales documents).
Please refer to (client) for development design risk assessment documents. Pegasus Urban Design is part of Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. Any queries to be reported to Pegasus for clarification,

S
4877
0 »
i =
o
8242
annm;

R

i IR

IRTRRIRRTARDRRNTH
LU

]

e



| LLLLY9E8ZI0 L |

87£¢79 98210 4

| %02 bdsnsebad mmm

NV/MOO/J0W wea]

| zioz Aenuer |

! brup | v DI 00L:L
sue|d 40014 buip)ing 19d - A1meS ‘peoy Buippig jo yinog pueT

2-V8¢ £€790'd

QUCHE)

| (SPuepi|y 15B3) SSWOH UoWwIsad
¥bsolLGL

snsebad

ubissq uequn

© Copyright Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. © Grown copyright. Al rights reserved. Ordnance Survey Gopyright Licence number moolzo apromap Licence number 100020449 . Drawings prepared for planning application purposes and can be scaled (drawings are not to be used for construction or sales documents)
Please refer to (client) for development design risk assessment documents. Pegasus Urban Design is part of Pegasus Planning Group Ltd. Any queries to be reported to Pegasus for clarification,

o =
S
o
v
L g
o
&
10360
w
(o) T
@
o
c O
3 S
3 2 =
S 3
5 z
- 3
El =% N
o &
o0
5T
a o
(=]
< :
s J 258 g
(e =2 &
\ 3’8
ol

| wooy buinsuoy

I
5
a
at g z
=
1} 3 a
S < 23
2 - P
o 2 g a 4
7y ERC 3 %
=] - Q 3 3
g 3 E g
89
3% 3
w
&2
e e o,
5
n
L8
N ju
BNNNANENN o
=2
N
o = @
£3
3 = o
N 4 D
= 3




Agenda Iltem 5g

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1200180FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF DWELLING WITH DOUBLE GARAGE AND
CAR PORT WITH ROOM ABOVE AND CONSTRUCTION OF
NEW ACCESS

Location: LAND AT 95 ELTON ROAD STIBBINGTON

Applicant: MR P DAY

Grid Ref: 508444 297577

Date of Registration: 14.02.2012

Parish: SIBSON-CUM-STIBBINGTON
RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION
1.1 The site forms a large part of the side and rear garden of 95 Elton
Road. The site includes a front hedge, lawns, an orchard and other
trees.
1.2 The south-western frontage of the site fronts onto Elton Road (B671)

and is flanked by hedges and bungalows in a ribbon of development
in the open countryside.

1.3 The main body of the site is to the rear and is flanked by the tall
hedges and rear garden of 93 Elton Road to the north-west, a hillock
with a wood the subject of a Tree Preservation Order to the south-
east. To the rear are tall trees screening in a field which appears to
be being used as an amenity space and outbuildings.

14 The proposal is to:
* provide a new access from the site to the classified road,
* erect a detached double garage and car port with room above close
to the side boundary with 93 Elton Road and
* erect a detached, predominantly 2-storey, 4-bed, dwelling further to
the rear of the site between the rear garden of 93 and the wood.

1.5 There is a Grade Il listed building (the Nene Valley Railway’s
Wansford tunnel), a government pipeline and foul sewer to the south.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural

125



economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

2.2 BS5837:2005 Trees in relation to construction- Recommendations.
For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk

and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e SS1: “Achieving Sustainable Development” — the strategy seeks
to bring about sustainable development by applying: the guiding
principles of the UK Sustainable Development Strategy 2005 and
the elements contributing to the creation of sustainable
communities described in Sustainable Communities: Homes for
All.

e ENG1: “Carbon Dioxide Emissions and Energy Performance” —
new development should be located and designed to optimise its
carbon performance.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow
the links to environment, planning, planning policy and Structure Plan
2003:

e None relevant.

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the effective

126



3.4

3.5

operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted
mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

e H23: “Outside Settlements” — general presumption against
housing development outside environmental limits with the
exception of specific dwellings required for the efficient
management of agriculture, forestry and horticulture.

e H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards
of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

e H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of a
size and form sympathetic to the locality.

o H33: “Sub-division of large curtilages affecting protected buildings
or features” states the subdivision of curtilages will not be
supported where development will adversely affect trees worthy of
protection.

e En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

e En20: Landscaping Scheme. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002):

e HL5 — Quality and Density of Development - sets out the criteria
to take into account in assessing whether a proposal represents a
good design and layout.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy:

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

127



3.6

e CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — states that any area not
specifically identified are classed as part of the countryside, where
development will be strictly limited to that which has essential
need to be located in the countryside.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant:

e C1: “Sustainable Design” — development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

e E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy
CS3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and to
promote wider sustainability objectives.

e ES5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid
the loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including ancient woodland and veteran trees. They should
wherever possible be incorporated effectively within the
landscape elements of the scheme.

e E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free
development or development proposals incorporating very limited
car parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is
clear justification for the level of provision proposed, having
consideration for the current and proposed availability of
alternative  transport modes, highway safety, servicing
requirements, the needs of potential users and the amenity of
occupiers of nearby properties.

e H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

e P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.
a. essential operational development for agriculture, horticulture
or forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related activities, allocated
mineral extraction or waste management facilities, infrastructure
provision and national defence;
b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location is justified;
c. renewable energy generation schemes;
d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;

128



e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of
existing buildings in accordance with other policies of the LDF;

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental
to existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development
Plan Documents.

3.7 Supplementary Planning Documents:

e Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment
Supplementary Planning Document 2007.

¢ Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary Planning
Document 2007.

4, PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 1100813FUL Permission was given for substantial extensions to 95
Elton Road and a new vehicular access on 19.07.2011. The
permission has not been implemented and would not be capable of
implementation in its entirety if the current application were to
undertaken.

4.2 A dwelling on the land rear of the site was refused in 1996 (96/1218
refers).

5. CONSULTATIONS

5.1 Sibson-cum-Stibbington Parish Council - Recommend approve.
No objection in principle but too high (copy attached)

5.2 CCC Highways — No objections subject to conditions.

5.3 Environmental Protection Officer - No objection subject to a condition
to either secure protection against the ingress of ground gasses or a
land contamination site investigation.

6. REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 None received.

7. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

7.1 The main issues to consider are the principle of the development in
the countryside and issues of sustainability, the scale, design and
position of the development and the impact on the character and
appearance of the area, the impact on the trees and hedges, the
effect on residential amenity and highway safety.

Principle:

7.2 This ribbon of development, including the site, along Elton Road is

clearly detached from the continuous built-up area of Wansford and
Stibbington and thereby in the open countryside for the purposes of
the local planning policy. The site is therefore in an area where the
generally restrictive policies apply in order to protect the countryside

129



for its own sake and to prevent non-essential motor journeys. The
proposal is not essential development in the countryside.

7.3 The dwelling is not in a sustainable location being some distance
from shops and services. Future occupiers and visitors would be
likely to have to make journeys by motor vehicles as the site is not
well served by public transport: the nearest bus stops are at
Wansford and near the A1 at Stibbington. The lack of pavements and
street lighting at the front of the site, and the high traffic speeds on
the main road (the national speed limit of 60mph applies) between the
site and the nearest shops and services of Wansford, will be likely to
deter pedestrians and cyclists.

7.4 It is relevant to note that on a nearby site at 83 Elton Road, two
proposals for a dwelling in place of existing buildings have been
dismissed at appeal in 2008 on the basis that the proposal was not in
a sustainable location: applications 0701507FUL and 0800691FUL
refer (latter decision attached).

7.5 The proposal is not essential development in the countryside. The
proposal is not sustainable because the occupiers would be heavily
dependent upon the motor car for day to day services. The proposal
is therefore contrary to the guidance of the The National Planning
Policy Framework (2012) and policies SS1 and ENG1 of the East of
England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May 2008),
H23 and En17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, CS1 and CS3
of the Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009, E2 and P7 of
the Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

Scale, design and position/character and appearance of the area:

7.6 There is variety in the design, form and layout of the dwellings in
Elton Road. However, the properties closest to the proposed dwelling:
91, 93 and 95 Elton Road, are all modest bungalows and 97 Elton
Road is a modest dwelling with first floor rooms in a low roofspace.
91-95 Elton Road currently have similar sized plots with a wide
frontage and long rear garden and 97 has a wide plot and the
dwellings at 91-97 Elton Road are all close to the frontage.

7.7 In contrast, the proposed development would be incongruous in its
immediate setting of simple bungalows in spacious gardens due to
the undue bulk and scale and imposing design of the house, with a
main 2-storey wing of approximately 15.2m x 6.6m with a ridge and
eaves height of approximately 8.5m and 5.4m respectively plus
additional front and rear projecting wings and the incorporation of
reconstituted stone and quoins.

7.8 The set back position of the proposed house behind the proposed
garage and 95’s rear garden would also be incongruous in this area
since the flanking dwellings are much closer to the road frontage. The
house and garage would be visible from the main road along the new
access and over the modest frontage bungalow. The shape and size
of the proposed curtilages for 95 Elton Road and the proposed house
would also be incongruous. 95 Elton Road would retain a much
smaller garden than 91, 93 and 97 Elton Road and the new plot’s
curtilage would be unsympathetic to its surroundings as it would entail

130



7.9

7.10

a narrow frontage and the main body of the site being set back from
the road frontage.

The variety in the layout of properties in the wider area of Elton Road
has been taken into account. For example there is a large new house
and outbuilding set well back from the road to the north-east of the
site and adjoining wood (0901575FUL refers and takes into account
an earlier permission, 04030470UT) and there are also dwellings in
small plots at 85 and 89a Elton Road and dwellings set back from the
road at 87 and 87a Elton Road. However those dwellings were either
approved some time ago (e.g. number 87 Elton Road in 1954) or
were permitted on the basis of removing previous uses which were
out of keeping with the residential character of the area. There are no
such similar circumstances in this case. It is therefore considered that
the new house would be harmful and incongruous, for the reasons set
out above.

The backland position of the dwelling, would, result in the harmful
consolidation of the existing loose-knit, predominantly linear, pattern
of development and the erosion of the space around the existing
buildings, which, with the incongruous bulk, scale and design of the
house and the incongruous size and shape of the resultant curtilages,
would detract from the character and appearance of the area. The
development is therefore considered to be contrary to policies ENV7
of the East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial
Strategy (May 2008), En25 and H32 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan 1995, HL5 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002,
CS1 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009 and E1 of
the Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010 and
contrary to the guidance of The National Planning Policy Framework
(2012) and the Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary
Planning Document 2007 which seek high standards of development.

Impact on trees and hedges:

7.11

The proposal will result in the loss of trees on the site, including
orchard trees which are of biodiversity value, and part of the front
hedge. However, the trees do not merit a Tree Preservation Order
and it is considered a refusal on tree and hedge loss grounds would
be unreasonable. It is also considered that the proposal need not
have any adverse effect on the adjoining trees including the trees the
subject of the Tree Preservation Order. Replacement landscaping is
proposed and this could have been secured by condition if the
application had been approved.

Residential amenity:

712

7.13

The main issue to consider is the effect of the proposal on the
amenities of the occupiers of 93 and 95 Elton Road.

The proposal will result in an increase in activity and disturbance on
the site, for example along the new access and in the area around the
new buildings. However, it is considered that there is adequate
screening between the site and neighbouring properties to avoid
undue disturbance.

131



7.14

7.15

7.16

The proposed garage and external staircase would be close to the
north-eastern side boundary but it is considered that the high hedge
provides an adequate screen to avoid undue loss of privacy,
overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing effects to the occupiers of
93 Elton Road from the new house and garage.

The proposed external staircase of the garage will afford views of the
rear garden of 95 Elton Road approximately 9m away. However, it is
considered that this will not affect the privacy of the occupiers unduly
and that a condition could have been imposed to ensure that the cills
of the proposed rooflights in the garage building were high enough to
avoid undue overlooking.

Part of the front of the proposed house would be set directly behind
the proposed back boundary of 95 Elton Road and approximately
only 6.2m away. The back garden to be retained with 95 Elton Road
would exceed 15m in length. However, it is considered that the undue
proximity of the proposed substantial 2-storey house, with 6 first floor
front windows including 2 bedroom windows approximately only 6.2m
from the boundary, would result in unacceptable loss of amenity to
the occupiers of 95 Elton Road by reason of loss of privacy in their
rear garden and overbearing effects. This would be contrary to
policies H31 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 and H7 of the
Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

Highway safety and parking:

717

The additional access, traffic and parking will be satisfactory in
highway safety terms subject to the details being resolved by
condition and Cambridgeshire County Council construction
specification.

Other matters;

7.18 The development is far enough from the listed tunnel to avoid undue
impact on its setting.

7.19 If the application had been approved, the Environmental Protection
Officer matters regarding possible ground gasses/contamination
could be addressed by condition, as could secure cycle parking and
water conservation measures.

Conclusion:

7.20 Taking the policies and guidance and relevant representations and
material considerations into account, it is concluded that the
application should be refused.

8. RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reasons;

8.1 The proposal is not essential development in the countryside. The

proposal is not sustainable because the occupiers would be heavily
dependent upon the motor car for access to day to day services. The
proposal is therefore contrary to the guidance of The National
Planning Policy Framework (2012) and policies SS1 and ENG1 of the
East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008), H23 and En17 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, CS1

132



8.2

8.3

and CS3 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009, E2 and
P7 of the Development Management DPD Proposed Submission
2010.

The backland position of the dwelling would result in the harmful
consolidation of the existing loose-knit, predominantly linear, pattern
of development and the erosion of the space around the existing
buildings, which, with the incongruous bulk, scale and design of the
house and the incongruous size and shape of the resultant curtilages,
would significantly harm the character and appearance of the area.
The development is therefore considered to be contrary to policies
ENV7 of the East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial
Strategy (May 2008), En25 and H32 of the Huntingdonshire Local
Plan 1995, HL5 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002,
CS1 of the Adopted Huntingdonshire Core Strategy 2009 and E1 of
the Development Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010 and
contrary to the guidance of The National Planning Policy Framework
(2012) and the Huntingdonshire Design Guide Supplementary
Planning Document 2007 which seek high standards of development.

The proximity of the proposed dwelling to the proposed rear boundary
of 95 Elton Road would result in unacceptable loss of amenity to the
occupiers of 95 Elton Road by reason of undue overlooking and loss
of privacy in the rear garden and adverse overbearing effects. This
would be contrary to policies H31 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan
1995 and H7 of the Development Management DPD Proposed
Submission 2010.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Sheila Lindsay Development Management
Officer 01480 388247

133



Parish Council Reply

From: wendy grey

Sent:  10/03/2012 07:50

To: mail@huntsdc.gov.uk
Cc:

Subiject: Planning Application

1200180FUL - Erection of dwelling with double garage and car port with room
above at 95 Elton Road, Stibbington - this application was discussed at Parish
Council Meeting on 7th March 2012 - no objections were raised.

Would you please pass this information to the appropriate planning officer. Thank
you.

Wendy Gray
Parish Clerk

134



Parish Council supplementary comment: 1200180FUL

Sent: 31 March 2012 20:25
To: Lindsay, Sheila (Plan. Serv.)
Subject: Planning application 95 Elton Road

Dear Sheila

Further to you previous e-mail the councillors have made further comment:

"While the PC has no objection in principal we would comment that the
Vertical Eelevation is too high".

Wendy Gray
Parish Clerk

135



Development Management Panel
Application Ref: 1200180FUL Huntin g donshire

Location: Sibson-cum-Stibbington NG PHEiET B@ims il

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

=T :V{\m\? v

4 .ub 2 /q\,?
\ ‘\*q?iSIibbln tony ¥, 4 "’- I
H 3 'pﬁi{'" 3/119'11 4 %ML 'r _____

.)??\:3.{?”:;1 sgllea ] _,:__ _/"{;ﬁtll\)bmgfun ?\" j{% “ uﬁn L
" Ry $ Q V\’ANSFGHQ L

2 o 5, b =
‘\-s % \
JUNCTlOﬁ?"%\ Sibsan } :(\7\\/
STA 405*91?11\\A9r0d’§2mo VN
s . ,‘\\{"’. \\r'i)
% W o %
o b
A A K
CEX A

@ D)
WL

0800691FUL
Q Appeal Dismissed

" 9 0901575FUL
Dwelling Permitted
3
£

/ Legend
The Site x

2 /

Scale: 1:5000 136




M0oPYeNoelyoepUeLiISep@euAeysig
IWYEQREILD N SVEEVE BLLKD 191
PN8 93d Bnoiogieled
‘sewer 15 Budeeq peoy Bupeds @)
Q17 enoelyoly pue ubiseq smeJpuy suAeug

) 01/06/0d/¥5

A3d 133+ ‘ON 1O71d ‘ON gOr

SMEPUY'S ' A8 NMVHd Qg2 snbny  31vad

Q¥ ‘023 IWOS

ued uojieao| pue eys pesodold

FUL ONMYHd

| oosi

8[e0S Ueld 8)IS

"AVA SIN PUY N 105
XM9 83d UBno.ocsled PLoisuBA
IBUGENSPECH UOYT 56

0] uojsuBIXe pesodold
LOVHINOD

3OS 1ON Od
ANO SNOISNIANQ 030914 35N

pejued
eq 0} efipey uioLpmer
PUE LLOUDOBIG MSN

peuelel aq
0} seel] ooy §

T pumersq
0} ebpa JpueA|]

BV722Q) Joquinu 8ousdlT ‘peIasal SIUBU |y
‘W2 BAdoD umolD (0) AeAung soueURIO

QOS2 8803 Ueld UOPBOOT

137

/
e 7" NOLLONLSNOO
AN ONTEMJ MIN




AToo pyjeINLoeY Yo BPUBLBSEp@auARYS - [BW-]
IWPEQOBILLD 'ON Sraere BLLIR 'ON elel
FN§ 93d 'uBnosoqIeIed
‘sewer 15 Budeed ‘Peoy Bupieds o)

NVId d400d LSy U

m NVId d00714 ANNOED U

1 7067

T sz 1 9787 1 SLIE

Teedl

P17 eumoeNUOly pUY UBISeQ SMEIpLY SUABUS
v sas s 3
e E— —— N
oe o'k o
O T [ ook:k
0's oL o
ﬁo W
v 100 11/06/04/¥S -
ra | ovams | oo on s
[ semivsis v 1oz roN_wva |
001l I a
215 swoyena pue
S pasodoud JE— g
FUIL INMVA]|
Ao ‘g dog
X9 93d Uno-eqaiag .
woiBuGaHS POy WoH3 S6 2
1v BunpMa pasododd woo.pag -
1w "
s 1 =
470 oD Gares =0 H
ubld Uo pasmen - =
Puy suoHDAe[3 oL pappy suolsusWIO 2107 YOO v Aed
L) L }
o e 8615 TE6n 132
L }
]
NOILVATTE 30IS QU
ham
B | | [ ]
NOILYATTE dv3d NOILVATTE 30IS Siom NOILVAFTE INOYS
suols Bupey suoysypg
D% = — == 7 7 7 L L e B L B B (% @D
[ i LiLlle @ ol 0 w 0 0 51
—— fupep. =
i) . &
] suoNNW ‘spesy s
= = S|P 2uols patnius)

W bsgEZ 14 DSOOIE 990dS 40014 X0i0dy

¥




03121091 o JepUBUB|saP@auUAeys-: Bw-3
WYERREILD 'AON SV28VE 8LLIQ TON elal

N8 93d "uBnosogueled
‘sewer 35 Budesq ‘peob Buipleds o)
PI7 eamoelyaly PUY UBISE] SMAIDUY BUKBUS

,:;Em

s E— —

oe oL o
s s s [T

os oL o

100 1 1106/0S/VS
AR | ON 1S ON 107d ON 8or

SPSUPUY'S A8 NAVED 1oz »q_aa |

ool 7w |

suoyensy pue
suely afeden pasodoug

TILL ONMVED

feq ‘g d4 Jog
Xr9 93d YBnotog.iag
UoIBUqaS Peoy Lop3 56

1y sbesen pue Bupem pasododd
1ovunND

s 1o w0

AN SNOSNBWD TEEH 350

NIEN

SpIs SpIs

sualEAS1g

UBl4 Joold 4Sdig

s9.5

0Zyol

uel4 uolepunod

r-a [ ttttittestintieeststieesttietitiedititietdititietititeittti .l
] i |
BN [ — === ——— Q) [F—————————————- 1|
e i o !
N N RN |
N N RN Al
N N | N
! ” ” | 1RK | ”
! | | | |
o " " | | 1
N | IR I
S Hl o i
BN Hl i K
BN Hl i 1K
L i o N
| i | s
e IR i e
| -- I IR I
J | | | ! W 9
[E— i IR
i IR I ¢ -‘
I IR i
| IR |
N i 0 e T
N T IR |
© Y | | i
I IR i
Al IR i
e e ___ | | ____ ||
£ | ==
Lo -------------------------------—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—-—=—C gl
L | | |
e 1 7995 T 0557 T
UR)|4 JOoOl4 punoJn
b }
1 B 1
[ ‘ L L }
To7 sizz sizz 074 005z 1 050z 1
T =2

vedaz

BPvas L207

FJovarvo

0009

S

NV LHod HYD

8575

34




GREEN PAPERS FOLLOW

140



o e -, Appeal Decision e e

3 %
= onl 7, Temple Quay House
= - = . .. 2 The Square
. 3 %3 e . Site visit made on 29 September 2008 Temple Quay
ey Bristol BS1 6PN
ra P L o
* 3 =
” : R ® 0117 372 6372
)P’.f{;‘ ,‘:‘\-\‘ by Howal'd ROSE DMS DipTP MRTPI emai{:enquiries@pinslgsi.g
CrarTit o MCIWM ov.uk
an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State Decision date:
for Communities and Local Government 7 October 2008

Appeal Ref: APP/H0520/A/08/2077473
83 Elton Road, Stibbington, Peterborough, PE8 63X

The appeal is made under section 78 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
against a refusal to grant planning permission.

The appeal is made by Mr ] Marshall against the decision of Huntingdonshire District
Council.

The application Ref.0800631FUL, dated 12 February 2008, was refused by notice dated
23 April 2008.

The development proposed is the erection of a detached dwelling to replace the
commercial premises.

Decision

1.

I dismiss the appeal.

Main issues

2.

I consider that there are three main issues in this appeal. The first is whether the
proposed development would accord with adopted planning policy which places strict
controls on development in the countryside. The second, if this is not the case, is
whether there are material considerations sufficient to outweigh the conflict with policy.
The third is whether the proposal would represent a sustainable form of developrment.

Reasons

Whether the proposal would accord with policy

3.

The appeal property is within a row of large detached houses on the east side of Elton
Road a short distance south of the junction with New Lane. The row of houses is
outside the development limits of any settlement and falls within the open countryside.
The proposal is to demolish the outbuildings on the site, which are currently used for
business purposes, and to erect a 5 bedroom dwelling on the rear garden of the appeal
property which would share the existing access.

Policy H23 of the adopted Huntingdonshire Local Plan sets a general presumption
against residential development in the countryside except for that required for the
efficient management of agriculture, forestry and horticulture. The proposal is not
required for any such activity and the appellant concedes that the proposal would not
constitute essential development. I am aware that the Inspector who dealt with a
previous appeal for a similar proposal (ref: APP/H0520/A/08/2055471) found, similarly,
that the proposal would not be acceptable in the countryside and nothing has changed
in policy terms since that decision was made. 1, therefore, conclude that the proposed
development would not accord with adopted planning policy which places strict controls
on development in the countryside.

141



Appeal Decision APP/H0520/A/08/2077473

Whether there are material considerations sufficient to outweigh the conflict with policy

5.

The appellant advises, in support of the proposal, that there are six members of staff
involved in the business operated from the appeal site and that the commercial
premises include workshops, stores, offices and laboratories for seed cleaning, grading
and testing.

While the use of the premises appears to have been low-key, I recognise that it is
possible that the use could be intensified with a higher level vehicle usage than would
be generated by a new dwelling. However, the permission for commercial use of the
premises is personal and will cease at some point in the future. In the circumstances,
the advantage of removing this essentially nen-conforming commercial use from this
group of dwellings would only be of temporary benefit and, in my judgement, would
not be enough to overcome the long term visual impact of a new dwelling in this
countryside location. Consequently, I conclude that there are no material
considerations sufficient to outweigh the conflict of the proposed development with
adopted pianning policy.

Sustainability

7.

The appellant submits that there are numerous facilities in the village which make the
appeal site a sustainable location and would prevent the need for additional car
journeys. However, the site is distant from the village facilities and is not served by
public transport or footpaths connecting to the nearest village or town. The Council
indicates that the nearest public bus stop is on the Al at Stibbington, just over a
kilometre away, and that there is also a bus stop for services to Peterborough,
Stamford, Oakham and Oundle in Wansford, 1.5 km away. There are no roadside
footpaths in the vicinity of the appeal site and the national speed limit of 60mph
operates along Elton Road.

While there are facilities including pubs, a post office and chiropodist in Wansford,
other facilities such as shops and schools are further away in Elton and Peterborough.
The nature of the country roads in the area are a deterrent to walking or cycling and, in
my judgement, mean, contrary to the view of the appellant, that it is likely the new
residents would be likely to use the car to reach many facilities and services. This
would conflict with policy P3 of the Huntingdonshire Interim Planning Policy Statement
2007 which is material to my consideration of the appeal. This requires that new
development should contribute to the social and economic well-being of the district by,
among other things, limiting the need to travel and increasing opportunities to make
necessary journeys by foot, cycle or public transport. These things being so, T
conclude that the proposal would not represent a sustainable form of development.

Conclusions

9.

I find that the proposal would not accord with the development plan and there are no
material considerations which would indicate otherwise. I have taken account of all
other matters raised, including the latest bus timetables for the area and the activities
highlighted in the parish magazine but they do not change my view about the
unacceptable nature of the appeal proposal. Consequently, I have found nothing which
would outweigh the main considerations that have led me to my decision. For the
reasons given above I conclude that the appeal should be dismissed.

Howard Rose

INSPECTOR

142



Agenda Iltem 5h

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1200299FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF REPLACEMENT DWELLING AND
ASSOCIATED WORKS

Location: GREENACRES ST IVES ROAD
Applicant: MR AND MRS CURSLEY

Grid Ref: 535088 277884

Date of Registration: 01.03.2012

Parish: SOMERSHAM

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSE
1 DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This site is located in open countryside to the west of Somersham, on
the road between Somersham and St Ives. The land extends to
1.01ha, and is laid mainly to lawn although there are shrub beds and
a kitchen garden close to the dwelling, and a less cultivated area
towards the western end of the site. There is a mature hedge along
the road frontage but the other boundaries are more open. The
dwelling is located towards the eastern end of the site, and is a
bungalow built in 1932 and extended in 1937. The building measures
approximately 9m by 15m and it has a ridge height of 6m. There is a
conservatory on the rear. There are a number of out-buildings close
to the eastern boundary. There is an access into the site close to its
eastern boundary.

1.2 Development in the vicinity of the site is scattered and is largely
residential in land use although there is a public house a short
distance to the west and a farm on the opposite side of the road.

1.3 The proposal is to demolish the existing dwelling and to erect a
replacement. This will be located immediately to the west of the
existing building, and will have overall ground dimensions of 19.2m by
13.1m. The central 7.6m section will be shallower at 7.4m. The
gables will be limited to 10.1m in depth, with single storey sections on
the rear upto the full depth of 13.1m. This gives the building a gross
floor area of 380 sq,m. The eaves height will be 5.3m and the ridge
height 8m. The materials will be brick and tile but these have not
been specified in detail. The roof will be hipped.

14 The site is outside the built up area of Somersham, and the road is
classified (B1086).

2 NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social

143



role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3 PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new development
to be of high quality which complements the distinctive character and
best qualities of the local area and promotes urban renaissance and
regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

H23: “Outside Settlements” — general presumption against housing
development outside environmental limits with the exception of
specific dwellings required for the efficient management of
agriculture, forestry and horticulture.

H27: “Replacement Dwellings in the Countryside” — may be
acceptable, provided that the proposal only involves modest changes
in building size, are of good design and well related to their setting
and do not create or perpetuate a traffic hazard.

144



3.4

3.5

3.6

H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards of
privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

En17. "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the effective
operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted mineral
extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District Council
will expect new development to respect the scale, form, materials and
design of established buildings in the locality and make adequate
provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies
from the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and
viewable at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on
"Local Plan Alteration (2002)

None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and economic
issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — states that any area not
specifically identified are classed as part of the countryside, where
development will be strictly limited to that which has essential need to
be located in the countryside.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

E2: “Built-up Areas” — development will be limited to within the built-
up areas of the settlements identified in Core Strategy policy CS3, in
order to protect the surrounding countryside and to promote wider
sustainability objectives.

E5: “Tree, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid the
loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or

145



3.7

hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value, including
ancient woodland and veteran trees.
They should wherever possible be incorporated effectively within the
landscape elements of the scheme.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord with
the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1 ‘Parking
Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall be
provided to serve the needs of the development. Car free
development or development proposals incorporating very limited car
parking provision will be considered acceptable where there is clear
justification for the level of provision proposed, having consideration
for the current and proposed availability of alternative transport
modes, highway safety, servicing requirements, the needs of potential
users and the amenity of occupiers of nearby properties.

H5: “Homes in the Countryside” proposals to alter, extend or replace
existing dwellings should not: a. significantly increase the height or
massing of the dwelling, subject to the need to provide satisfactory
living conditions; b. significantly increase the impact on the
surrounding countryside; and entail development where only the site
of the previous dwelling exists or the previous dwelling has been
abandoned.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the living
conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or nearby
properties.

P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.

a. essential operational development for agriculture, horticulture or
forestry, outdoor recreation, equine-related activities, allocated
mineral extraction or waste management facilities, infrastructure
provision and national defence;

b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location is justified;

c. renewable energy generation schemes;

d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;

e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of existing
buildings in accordance with other policies of the LDF;

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental to
existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development Plan
Documents.

The SPD Design Guide is a material planning consideration.
PLANNING HISTORY

0801073FUL — erection of replacement dwelling. Refused 21st May
2008.

1200120CLPD - certificate for proposed use for extensions and
alterations to existing dwelling Approved 28th March 2012

CONSULTATIONS

146



5.1

6.1

7.1

Somersham Parish Council — Approve (copy attached).
REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbours — no representations received.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The issues in this case relate to the principle of the development, the
impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the site

and the location in general, the effect on neighbours, the highway
implications, and the impact on the trees.

The principle of the development

7.2

This site is in the open countryside for the purposes of the
Development Plan and emerging planning guidance. Current policies
are to restrict development in the countryside to that for which a rural
location is justified. However, the use of this site for a single dwelling
is long established and it is therefore considered that the erection of a
replacement dwelling would be acceptable in principle and would not
be contrary to the policies relating to the provision of new residential
development outside the built up areas of the adjacent settlements.

The impact of the development on the site and the location.

7.3

7.4

7.5

There are no overriding objections to the demolition of the existing
building as this is of no great merit and it does not make a positive
contribution to the character of the area.

In 2008, the Development Control Panel refused planning permission
for the erection of a replacement dwelling on this site, on the grounds
that the development would have a detrimental impact on the
character and visual ameity of the area due to its design, scale, form
and prominent location. The proposed footprint was to have been 188
sq.m. compared with the 190 sq.m. of the present proposal. However,
a significant difference between the two is the fact that the earlier
scheme proposed a limited amount of accommodation at first floor
level (about one third of the footprint) whereas, in the current case,
the entire building has two storeys. It is considered therefore that the
current proposal will have a greater impact on the character and
appearance of the locality than the earlier, refused, scheme would
have done.

The erection of a replacement dwelling in the countryside is subject to
the provisions of policy H27 of the Local Plan 1995, and policy H5 of
the DMDPD. Both policies impose restrictions on the amount by
which the size of the original building can be increased, in order to
protect the countryside from inappropriately large and visually
intrusive development. Policy H27 refers to “only modest changes in
building size”, whilst policy H5 states that replacement dwellings
should not “significantly increase the height and massing of the
original building”, and should not “significantly increase” its impact on
the surrounding countryside. It should be noted that the first part of
policy H5 is subject to the caveat that any proposal is subject to the
need to provide satisfactory living accommodation for the occupiers.
There is no reference in the D and A Statement to any specific need.

147



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

When assessing a proposal in the light of polices H27 and H5, due
regard must be had to the amount by which the size of the existing
dwelling can be increased by using its permitted development rights.
In this particular case, the applicant has submitted an application for a
Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use or Development for the
erection of extensions to the property. On the basis of the building’s
permitted development rights, it could be extended by:-

1) the addition of a first floor of accommodation, projecting an
additional 3m to the rear of the original structure. However, the
height of the extension should not exceed the highest part of the roof,
and the eaves should not exceed the height of the existing eaves.

2) The erection of extensions on either side of the building, providing
neither of these do not exceed half the width of the existing building,
do not have more than one storey and are not more than 4m high.

3) The addition of dormer windows to the existing roof.

In practice, this will enable the width of the building to be increased
from 8.88m to 17.76m (but only as far as the rear of the original
building and with a height limitation of 4m), and the depth of the
original building on the rear by 3m. This would include the provision of
accommodation at first floor level but with no increase in the height of
the building above either the original ridge or eaves. By comparison,
the proposed dwelling will have a width of 19.2m and a maximum
depth of 13.1. The proposed dwelling will be two storeys throughout
with an eaves height of 5.3m and a ridge height of 8m.

Notwithstanding the possibility of extending the existing dwelling
under its permitted development rights, it is considered that the
proposed dwelling will represent a substantial increase in the overall
bulk and scale of the original structure and will, as a consequence,
significantly increase its impact on the surrounding countryside. When
compared with the ridge height of the original building (approximately
6m), the height of the proposed building will be 8.0m, but the most
significant change in terms of the increase in bulk will be the addition
of a first floor of accommodation. Even if it were extended, nearly half
the original building will be limited to 4m in height. The proposed
building will be wider than the original (by 1.44m) and although it will
not be as deep (by 4.58m) this decrease in depth does not
compensate for the increase in the bulk at first floor level.

The combination of the overall increase in the height of the building
and the substantially greater bulk at first floor level represents more
than a “modest” change in the building size as referred to in policy
H27, and “significantly” increases the height and massing of the
original building as referred to in policy H5. It will not be of a “similar
scale” to the original dwelling as mentioned in paragraph 2.88 of the
HLP1995. When compared with the existing dwelling, the proposal
will have a considerably greater adverse impact on the appearance
and character of the site and the open countryside in general and it
will be significantly more dominant than the present building.

Policy H5(a) requires the proposal to be assessed against the need to
provide satisfactory living conditions for the occupiers. Need is not
defined in the policy or the subsequent text and thus it falls for each
case to be assessed on its individual merits. Whist the proposed

148



7.11

712

7.13

7.14

dwelling would provide much improved living conditions for the
applicant and his family, this matter is not considered to be an
overriding planning consideration, and the assessment of the
proposal must rely on the degree of difference between the existing
and proposed dwellings. As referred to above, the differences in this
case are considered to be significant.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal will be contrary to the
provisions of policies H27 and H5.

In design terms, the building has been broken into a series of
elements but the limited set back of the middle section of the front
elevation does not give a substantial degree of articulation to this
elevation. However, the windows are of a style sympathetic to a
dwelling in a fenland location and some variation in form has been
introduced by the lower eaves level in the central section and by the
dormer windows which bridge the walls and the roof. The number of
windows on this elevation has been limited and they do not dominate
it. Elsewhere, the windows tend to be larger but they are in proportion
with the scale of the elevations and their layout largely follows the
advice in the Design Guide. The scale and relationship of one
element with another, and the general proportions of the building are
acceptable, but this consideration does not disguise the fact that the
proposal represents a significant increase in the size of the original
structure.

There is no overall pattern to the form of the existing buildings in the
vicinity of the application site, and all the properties tend to be of an
individual design. The majority are two storey and include a variety of
different elements.

Looking at development in the area as a whole, it is considered that,
on balance, an objection to the design of this building could not be
sustained.

The effect on neighbours

7.15

7.16

The proposed building will be a substantial distance from the nearest
neighbour (52m) and the development will have only a minimal
impact in the amenities of this property. There will be no
overshadowing and, although there will be two side windows in the
first floor gable of the property, the distance between the two
properties will be such that overlooking will be insignificant.

The proposal does not conflict with policies H31 or H7.

Highway implications

717

There will be no change in the highway situation as the existing
access will be retained and the garage adjacent to this access will
continue to be used. There is ample space within the curtilage of the
site to provide two parking spaces in accordance with the
requirements of policy E10 and appendix 1 of the DMDPD.

Impact on the trees

149



7.18

The proposed development will be well clear of the trees on this site
and will not affect them. The proposal complies with policies En18
and E5.

Other issues

7.19

Sustainability — sustainability is a core principle in the NPPF, and
underpins policy CS1 of the Core Strategy. Despite being outside the
built up area of the village, the site is within reasonable distance of
the centre of Somersham, where a range of facilities are available.
The land is already developed with a single dwelling, and there is no
reason to suspect that the proposal will have a significant impact on
the natural habitat of the site or will greatly increase water
consumption or greenhouse gas emissions. The applicant intends to
use rainwater harvesting, and the sustainability of the property will be
increase by the use of efficient insulation, solar panels and ground
source heat pumps. The use of these devices will enhance the
sustainability of the development and will comply with the
requirements of policy CS1

Conclusions

7.20

7.21

7.22

8.1

1. The erection of a replacement dwelling is acceptable in principle.

2. The bulk, scale and massing of the proposal will be contrary to the
provisions of policies H27 and H5

3. The proposal will not result in a significant loss of amenity to the
immediate neighbours.

4. There are no overriding highway objections.

5. The proposal will not result in the loss of any trees from the site.

6. There are no other material planning considerations which have a
significant bearing on the determination of this application.

7. The proposal would be sustainable.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission should not be granted in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or
an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try
to accommodate your needs.

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reason:

The proposal would be contrary to the provisions of policy H27 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 and policy E5 of the Development
Management DPD Proposed Submission 2010 in that the
development, by reason of its form, bulk and massing would not
adequately respect or reflect the scale and nature of the dwelling it is
intended to replace and it would thereby, result in an over-dominant
feature which would be detrimental to, and have an adverse impact
on, the open character and rural appearance of the site and the area
in general.

CONTACT OFFICER
Enquiries about this report to David Hincks Development Management
Officer 01480 3898406

150



To: DevelopmentControl[/O=HUNTS DISTRICT
COUNCIL/OU=HDC/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=DEVELOPMENTCONTROL];

Subject: Comments for Planning Application 1200299FUL
Sent: Tue 3/13/2012 11:04:41 AM
From: developmentcontrol@huntsdc.gov.uk

Planning Application comments have been made. A summary of the comments is provided
below.

Comments were submitted at 11:04 AM on 13 Mar 2012 from Mrs Penelope Bryant.

Application Summary

Address: Greenacres St Ives Road Somersham Huntingdon PE28 3ER
Proposal: Erection of replacement dwelling and associated works
Case Officer: David Hincks

Click for further information

Customer Details

Name: Mrs Penelope Bryant

Email: somershampc@aol.com

Address: 50 High Street, Somersham, Huntingdon, Cambridgeshire PE28 3]B

Comments Details

Commenter Type: Town or Parish Council

Stance: Customer made comments in support of the Planning Application

Reasons for comment:

Comments: Councillors have no objection. The proposed dwelling is not much larger than
the current building footprint and the design fits in with the street scene.

151



Development Management Panel : "
Application Ref: 1200299FUL H U n -I-I n g d O n S h | re

Location: Somersham DISTRICT €OUNTZE CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

r ~id [ ! s /; ) T
g:'? Cﬁm % '\\‘*ﬁ"f/hé;fth Fen (, 2¥
Sb ) ' m

- e

m%/é ,
s RpA COF I sl
¢ o ‘9\1__?.‘\\' Ve ; . ]

! \ ! i ng s NS

: 7 i 3 i

! / 4 /—\/ ‘;:e,"‘-\ _,“:_—.i- L) " g ’J.

Ry R S vy [ ‘

pa o 4 \

B R A
{ ‘ ;; ;:ﬁ% B [
Somershari ; S8 "i

“Dﬁ’r}\/ ‘{i Coll LLe Selffsesiy M A
o ) Lo I L
\&b c ’f"%ﬂ;““‘%—?‘mm/,—’ﬁ} “%?Aé}' L (};

e (R oS4 4
A I el ﬁtﬁ__‘;ﬁ
7 / F
\ L o X
Pidley @ go"
Parks |
7 -‘(:'l—
\ 1/ A

i
[=]
o
<

Bomarsham .. s
Park r;?‘“ iz
Toar_ R o

T 7

Legend

rrrrrr

" 777 The site

/

Scale: 1:5000

152



S| ¢0/aN/vSeor

uolsiney :ou Bumeliq

“8lIS UO pay0aY 8q 0} SUISUBWIP iy ‘sasodind
Buluueld o} Uey) JaYIO PaJeos g J0U PInoys Buimep siyL

zree 0052:1:006:
:ejeq SIS
or

:Aq umelqg

ue|d uoiedoT pue ue|d 300|g
‘Buimesg

"d3€ 823d 'squie) 'seA| 1S
‘WBYSIBWOS ‘PY SOA| 1S
‘S810BUSBIS) 0] UOISUBIXT

Josloid 00G:} ue|d 3o0]|g

n-00-ubisapbii@uyol :rew3
0F¥81LZ 08710 :Xe4 /191
§1L613d
alysabpuque) 6YY0Z000} 4oquinu 90Usor “panissal SYbU Iy "Z10g 1’8 BLAdo) umoiy (9) Asning asubupig
108N 1S
pio4 uojes
anueny pjayase |

S92IAI9S VD [BeIN}dajIydlyY

sn'0o

uBIsag 91

pappe saas

pue pauosodas Bujjemp Mau pasodold - OF - ZL-E L - Y ASY 00GZ:| ue|d uolled01

uiebe pauopsodas Bujemp mau pesodoid - OF - 21 €61 - VY AN

—_p~

@'d Japun padojonap
mojebung Bupsixe

sejousp Ul payseq J\

4

100

Buliemp Mou
pesodoid

Apeisom panows
pue ¥oeq 1os
Bulliomp MmaN

0szhiL A ————%—

0zL " OH ' 00L 06 ' 08 0L 09 ' 05 Of  0€ 02 O
005t Tos sy oy s ' or s 0z s o §
00} * ¥ * ¥ ¥ ¥ * + + + ¥

oL 6 8 L 9 v € [3 [
0S:1 * - * * * * *

B v € [3
aleos (senew u) sieq ojeos
pajoajoud ybukdoos @ si Buimelp siyy




€0/aN/yS2oTr

uolsiney :ou Bumelq

‘8IS UO pa0aY 8q 0} SUCISUBWIP iy *sasodind
Buluueld oy Uey) JaYIO PaJeos 3 J0u pinoys Buimep siyL

cLel 00L:1L
:eeq EE
or

:Aq umeiq

suoljeAa|3 pue sue|d
mojebung Buisixg
‘Buimesg

"d3€ 8¢3d 'squie) 'SoAl IS
‘weystawog ‘pY SaA| 1S
‘S810BUS3IL) 0} UoISusIXg
j08fold

00 uBISePBI@UYOl iew3
0P¥81Z 08YL0 Xed /9L

Builsixg - ue|d 100]|4

§1L613d
alysabpuquwe)
s8N |
plog uojeg \
BNUBAY playesep | %/”
S90IAIRG QY9 [eINod)Iydly
3N'09°
T
unIsan 9 } wooipeg
leH H_ abunon
€ woolipsg
Z woolpag
— -]
5 ; uayoly
woouyleg
Aiojeatasuo)
S A ————%—
oot 0zL " OK ' 00L 06 ' 08 ' 0L 09 ' 05 Of  0€  0C  C
005 *Tos sy o T se T ob T s o "o g T
00} g+ ¥ ¥ ¥ X R
0g'l * ¥ * + ¥
B v € [3
ajeog (sexiew u)) sieq ejeog

Builsix3 - uoljeas|3 apIs

nnEh

Buiysix3 - uolleaa|3 apls

Bullsixg - uoljeAaa|] Jeay

154

Buil}six3 - uolleaa|] juol4

pajoajoud ybukdoos @ si Buimelp siyy




This drawing is © copyright protected.

T

Zeisui

oo

Side Elevation (East)

Front Elevation (North)

]

S

|

ST

]
(==

']
—

= —

A

155

Side Elevation (West)

Rear Elevation (South)

5800

7600

5800

5800

7600

5800

*

*

I

oLt

*

+

oLt

*

5800

7600

5800

5800

7600

5800

First Floor Plan

Ground Floor Plan

JLG254/NB/01

!!§§!uan

5
c
2 5
g 3
o ['4
S og
g8seo ¢
S55c 880
BE£5823
szEiias
EOmsg-w
F5g® 25
H g
N
3 <
S
o
o
2 .
oS (IR
»
c
RS
s
©
>
o
L
i}
c
®©
22
S
oo
o
L
™
©
&0
o O
cro
= »
= o
[
z2=E
[
g0 O
wg%
—
5§55
0T @
4858
80.@8
'gcl.)s—o
s Ow
g3
s, 3¢
8o T AND
25238933
SL §5~83
B EZTO = =
Lo E-o0@®
owmpeW g
aP EQ X<
gv g et
= ° 5
= w
=3
=) o
= O
[T
-1}

Architectural CAD Services




This page is intentionally left blank

156



Agenda ltem 5i

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1102077FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF REPLACEMENT ELECTRICAL SUB-
STATION AND ASSOCIATED WORKS

Location: LAND ADJACENT 11 STOW ROAD
Applicant: AMBURY DEVELOPMENTS LTD
Grid Ref: 512796 272717

Date of Registration: 16.12.2011

Parish: SPALDWICK

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1.0 DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to land to the north east of residential
properties that front Stow Road and south of properties that are set
further back in their plots. The site sits adjacent to the designated
Conservation Area for Spaldwick.

1.2 The site has an extant permission for a single storey dwelling to be
set back into the site, approved under planning reference
0803330FUL on the 9.4.09[a1], in line with the residential properties
to the north.

1.3 This proposal seeks to relocate an existing sub station that is
currently positioned close to the footpath edge. It is proposed to be
positioned at the south east of the site, between the new bungalow
and the parking spaces being provided, along the common boundary
with No. 13 Stow Road.

1.4 The dimensioned plans submitted with the application confirm the
substation will be 5.5m x 4.5m, and 2.4 metres to the highest point.

2.0 NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of

157



climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk

3.0 PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV6: "The Historic Environment" - Within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals local planning authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and, where
appropriate, enhance the historic environment of the region
including Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

e ENV7: "Quality in the Built Environment" - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

3.3 None relevant

3.4 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995)Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En5: "Conservation Area Character" - development within or
directly affecting conservation areas will be required to preserve
or enhance their character and appearance.

e En25: "General Design Criteria” - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

e H7: "Amenity" - development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

3.5 Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable

158



3.6

3.7

3.8

4.0

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.0

5.1

5.2

5.3

6.0

6.1

at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: "Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e C1: "Sustainable Design" - development proposals should take
account of the predicted impact of climate change over the
expected lifetime of the development.

e E3: "Heritage Assets" - proposals which affect the District's
heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate
enhanced.

PLANNING HISTORY

0703234FUL - erection of a dwelling and garage, refused on the
19.12.07

0803330FUL - erection of a dwelling, approved on the 9.4.09

Outline permission was granted for residential development to the
rear of 5 - 11 Stow Road on the 13.12.89, this application has now
expired.

CONSULTATIONS

Spaldwick Parish Council: recommend refusal, (COPY
ATTACHED)

County Highways Engineer: No objection raised
HDC Environmental Health Dept: No objection raised
REPRESENTATIONS

Two letters of objection have been received in response to neighbour
consultation. The objections raised can be summarised as:

e Highway safety

e Concern about future development of the land at the rear
e Health issues

159



7.0

71

15m's from patio and abutting boundary

Access to the substation through neighbours property

Noise

Devaluation of property

Previous application refused due to garage along this boundary

Refers to document attached to objection about the location of

substations close to children's play areas

e Concern about future development of the front of the site given
better access

¢ Potential flooding issues

e Comments about justification about the impact upon the

Conservation Area

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The main issues to consider here are whether the new proposed
position of the substation will impact upon heritage assets
(Conservation Area) and the character and appearance of the area,
or have a detrimental impact upon the amenities of the neighbouring
properties.

Impact upon the Heritage Assets

7.2

The substation is currently located in a fairly prominent position in the
street scene. Whilst it may not detract from the character and
appearance of the area, or indeed the adjacent Conservation Area, its
relocation to the rear of the site subject to this proposal would
improve the current situation. The proposal is not considered to have
any further impact upon the character of the area or the adjacent
conservation area. As such the proposal does not conflict with
Policies En5,and En25 of the Local Plan, ENV6 and ENV7 of the East
of England Plan, Policies C1 and E3 of the Proposed Submission
Development Management SPD.

Impact upon neighbour amenity:

7.3

7.4

7.5

The comments received from the two objectors of this development
raise concerns about a number of issues. However, the proposal
needs to be assessed against Planning Policy, in this case Policy H7
of the Development Management DPD.

The comments regarding highway safety have been addressed
below; however, the access is not being considered as part of this
application and remains as the approved plans with the previous
application under planning reference 0803330FUL. In any case the
concerns appear to be more about future development of the land to
the rear. The application as submitted is being considered here and
any future potential development proposals will be considered on
their own merits if and when submitted.

Electricity sub-stations are commonplace in residential areas and it
has been confirmed by Environmental Health Officers that
substations should not impact upon neighbours due to a continuous
humming noise as suggested. If this were the case the Environmental
Health Team would deal with any complaints under the statutory
nuisance legislation.

160



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

Whilst the issues raised about health concerns have been fully
considered, the Environment Health Officers have not objected to the
proposal and are not aware of any statutory guidance in terms of
distances between substations and domestic areas for health
reasons. Any health related issues would need to be considered by
the Health Protection Agency and can only be given very limited
weight in the consideration of this application.

Having checked the previous application, which included a garage to
the front of the bungalow now approved, it is clear from the reason for
refusal; the application was not refused due to neighbour amenity, but
concern about design and over development of the site. The
substation is of a very modest size, particularly in height and the
same reasons do not apply in this instance.

As suggested in the above paragraph, the substation will be a
maximum height of 2.4 metres, which can be mostly screened by 2
metre fencing along the boundary. Due to the size and position of the
substation, the application could not be refused in terms of causing
undue overshadowing or being over bearing in nature.

Access to the substation is a private issue between the parties
involved.

The application is considered not to conflict with the details as set out
in Policy H7 of the Development Management DPD.

The agent has submitted details on the applicant's behalf which
suggest if the application were made by the operators of the
substation it would be permitted under Part 17, Class G of the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995.
Having checked the document, it can be confirmed this is the case.

Highway Safety:

712

The County Highways engineer has not objected to the proposal as it
is unlikely to have any impact due to the like for like replacement
being considered.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and having
taken all relevant consideration into account, it is recommended that planning
permission should be approved in this instance.

RECOMMENDATION — APPROVE, subject to the following conditions:

02003 Time Limit (3yrs)

Nonstandard - colour of substation

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to Linda Morse Development Management
Officer 01480 388411

161



From: davidstowell@onetel.com

Sent: 27 January 2012 11:13

To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Planning Application 1102077FUL

Application Number: 1102077FUL Case Officer: Linda Morse

Proposal: Erection of replacement electrical sub-station and associated works
Location: Land Adjacent 11 Stow Road, Spaldwick

Observations of Spaldwick Parish Council: Spaldwick Parish Council recommends refusal for the
following reasons:

1. Radiation Hazard — There is some concern in published information that Electro Magnetic Fields
produced by electricity sub-stations can be linked to serious health problems. This has led to the view that
they should not be located close to living areas or areas where children are likely to play. The proposed
location is adjacent to the boundary of the garden of no 11 where children may be playing in close proximity.
It is also closer to the proposed new house (No 9) than the existing location is to the nearest property (No
11). The new location would therefore increase the risk of radiation hazards.

2. Access to site for required 24 hours a day — the proposed location would normally be accessed for
maintenance purposes and in an emergency via the private gravel drive serving No 11 and the proposed
new house (No 9). This would inevitably disturb the occupants of these properties particularly in the night-
time hours. Should access to the rear of the equipment be required the occupants of No 13 would also be
inconvenienced. The current location is accessed directly from Stow Road and hence similar problems do not
exist.

3.The justification given by the applicant for moving the substation is that it would improve the street scene
and allow for better visibility vehicle-to-vehicle and vehicle-to-pedestrian at the exit from the site into Stow
Road. It is the Parish Council’s view that similar improvements could be obtained by simply removing the low
level wood fence on the two external sides of the triangular gravelled area in front of the door to the main
substation enclosure. As well as addressing the neighbours’ complaints, this would also remove the risk of
disturbance which could be caused to the occupants of Nos.9 & 11 when access to the substation is required
if it were to be located where the applicant proposes.

F D Stowell
Clerk to Spaldwick Parish Council

file:////Nas2/dc_bc$/Development%20Control%200fficers/DMP%20Panel%20Reports/2012/Apr/1102077FUL/Parish%20Comments.htm[29/03/2012 10:44:57]

162



Development Management Panel

Application Ref: 1102077FUL

Location: Spaldwick

Huntingdonshire

DI'STRICT COUNZ CIL

sty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright

civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

of the Controller of Her Maje:
tion or

Survey Mapping with the permission

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecu

Reproduced from the Ordnance

Conservation Area

/] The Site

Legend
===

| I

Scale: 1:2500

[~

163



"LOG9GY 08H10 J2uoyd2qa) 002/1 3OS
*sJabouny (23fody puo w«uu«_:um< pasaLIDyY)
‘QLT SALYIDOSSY STAOLS ANAV3IH

" EY @002/1 2jo2s
10/$-5/0091 ‘o Bumoaq :
1102 ¥38W203Q 340 Wwor 8 9 y 2 0

NV ALIS QAS0d0dd 2L Bumoug

‘210 8234 ‘SAWYD ‘NOQINILNAH
AIIMQTVAS ‘AVOd MOLS ‘TT 'ON
‘04 LNV LQY

NOILY1S-8NS 40 ONILISIY QIS0O40Ud - Z ( \_ Q w l_l H m:

“w1|ddng Al1214493(3 4Aq Buisnoy p.opuDis RI9 YHM
(WGt X WG'G) UOIIDI0| UONDYS-qNG MU L0} D20 pasodo.y

i1 "o o4 payoubisap
Buipupysp.oy ‘sudd> uo sasods o) “oN 2

% ©
—

(& “Ampunoq
N 24 2742} PopaDoq 4o WA'T

AN

Nv N
CONTEY
* "3Ap [2ADJ6 pajoag ™ &

“INJOEEE0BO0 42
6002 |Hdy g panoaddo s1 buyjjamq

.~ "Ipactddo sAomybiy (a0 o4

7 3pIM WE'b 553230 Mau pasodsly e -

Uo1IDI0| 401 IDLS-GNG Bulysix3 v 47 . -




U850 UM N PId0D 10 P3SN 3G 10U Aeuws BUEID SIUL “SHOMIEN 18O Y AQ pauo 1Bufdod

$3LIS AYVONOO3S aus
v 102010013
"ON ONIMY¥A
wosian
@0y | WO SIN 3wos

VA%000L O1 dN NOILYLSENS
JOV)OVd V ONISNOH J4NSOTONT
dd9 V 404 IV.L3A HINId QYVANVLS

L

S)NIOM)SN
="

5

[poubiseq] poroiddy.
ug_| powe

a9 d
o TNI9INO

wogdussaq

aeq  |uoisian|

01-602¢

<

'ATNO ONIQYO TNNOSY34 MO4 GINOIS30 2 SONLLVHO LYHL JLON

NOISIAYEENS SYHOMLIN ¥3MOd 3N ¥IANN STEVO THL ONNOKY TIOA
SHLTIOVE OL ALIIGISNOASM ¥I3HL S1 11 HINId 3HL SOING ¥3d0T3AI0 HL RZHM
ONILLV9 40 dOL. HUM TILOVE

NIAL
LY INVTd SYSOMLIN ¥3MOd 3 OL NOLLOINNOD 0 13431 VL

“SONILYED.

*$318V0 ONNOUY VANV OL 1IN

‘SHOLOVAINOD SHYOMLIN ¥IMOd YN HO4 STLON

ANZWZOHOINIZY DGV LW

3F-3NOILO3S

WOLLOS NI 000} X 0087 133HS.
ANSWZOMOANIZS ORIEYA 24

a-aNoILO3s

WOLLOB NI 0004 X 0087 L33HS LNSWIOHOANIZY OIEVA Z4M

WOW | o
2 Suva 3L WOIL

oW (4 o

wow | wom W

I ——
won

on LHOW

4OL NI 00E X 0087 133HS. 2O Suva

£l
LWL B

S WY3E NI SHVE NIVIY 3HL OLNI 0311 38

0L 3w D B S'd SWY38 NI SHYE NIVW 310N

8

HLMY3 LNVId SYHOMLIN 3

0-0 NOILO3S

M3IA NVId ~ NOLLYANNOS

WOLLOE % dOL LH 1ve

How o HoW

S8 Y38 NI SHVE NIV 3HL 3A0BY 030V1d
38 0L 34V 40 ¥ S~ SWY3E NI S8 NIV FLON

_‘ 10 008 ® ZHPHIN S 3L WOLLNIA

S S9VE 3L WOILNI o
o

@

510 008 ® ZHN
SHva 3L WoILNAA —]

[ o
104 51 OL NOLLOINNOD 403 L131 VL HLAV3 oo ONY

AIHIIO0L GALOINNOD 38 OL HINITd 40 WOLLOE  dOL NIHLIM INFWIOHONIZY TLON )

000 [ _oosz. v

Z52y 2]

]

00es | _oose. v

52y =]

o1 ouae, oseg

Py | wbuot

4OL NI 008 X 008z 133HS _|

00 | osv o

z 20058 )

INIWZOHOSNIZY DGV b

1| st o

z 20058 H

5584/ Weaq punoin.

WOLLOE % dOL LM 1

500 adeus Whue1 | oL

Sas | ek | wew

eqwan

T

|

ATNO 30V4 SIHL NO 8V 40 dOL HLIM,
HSN13 FTONY 835 NI LSY0 3LON

10 008 ® ZHHN
[N———"suva 3 woan

WOLLOS NI 0001 X 0082
133HS INFNZOHONITY
OEYA Z4 M

\ | woLi08 % doL rmuve

6002:9998 S8 OL 3TNA3HOS LNIWIOHOSNITY

ZHN SUYE 3L TVOLLYIA

HIFGNIN 1HOddNS ONILYHO 40 MIIA LNO¥HS

G3SINVATYD 38 OL RHOMI33LS TV 310N

JIONY YNOINN 8 X 05 X 001

319NV VND3NN 0L 43aTAM T | 1140009 v NSN3 OL SWIHS WLIW
137114 3L¥1d ON3 9 X 09X 04 55 35N 'SONIXIJ MOHONY ZUW ONISN
& NOLLYONNOA 50 STV 3IS OINI

‘G3LOINNOD 38 OL HINITd 50 HOLLOB ¥ cdOL NIHLIM INFWIOHOANIZ ‘STVLIA TIN3 803
1010201040

13 'ON SNIAVAIQ SYUOMLIN HIMOd YN T3S HOLOVEINGD ISITVIOdS SHIOTINI AR
Q31531 ONV G3TIVISNI ‘G31deNS 38 OL O3MIND34 SI WALSAS ONIHLUVA G3L¥DI030 Y

¥3d073A30 A8 GILVAYOX3 ATIN4 38 OL AMLN 318Y0 O3 MHOMONNOUD.

1ONQISARS B TINTT ¥ Lv14 IV (1-2-98005 N3 S8 72:24 1S3 0L ONLLONG INTTAHIIATOS
ALISN3Q HOIH GITIVM NIML ¥313WVIQ TYNSELNI WSz 1 ~S10NG GaLLINYES

'1530%d FHL LINS 0L SRHOMLIN

3MOd N A8 Q314431 38 0L 34V SNOLLISOd AMLNZ 10N GNY S19N0 40 H3BAAN LOVX3 FHL

U3GHO WIDFAS ~ FIEVIVAY S| LINN YOV 1Y13 ¥ ¥Od NOLLIO NY.
Q318WISSY ATINA GFIAITIC ATIVNSN S1 IUNSOTON chi THL

‘Q3SINVATVO 38 OL RIOMIZALS TIV
‘ONIOOM J18VAOLLON ON HLIM 13A31 03LV3S 38 LS SONLLVRID

v. L40ddns
ONISN G31404dNS AT3UNO3S NV NOLLYANNOA 40 dOL HLIM HSN3 38 LS SONILYHD.
(S133HS 6811 X €76 ‘ON 2) S3031d OML N| GFMIND3 NILLYAO ‘N3O 010D
'S0V44NS G3LLINO HLIM AL N340 - OVRLAVO AB SONLLVSO di© G3TTNON 4330 Wiige

008y

$80L6c071 N3O

3L si
AL ANY 1v 030NY1SE0 38 LON
S30S NS T

wugog

INaWINON
INVId 3LYL17104 OL 318VIAON3H S1 SH00Q 3HL MOT3E NOLLO3S QIOHSZHHL 3HL
‘SYMOMLIN ¥2MOd YN A8 Q300N

M0 13113 10NOVdS3

.06 1¥ N340 00Q HOV3 10K OL SAYLS MO0 HLIM G3LLIZ SH00Q

‘SSONIH LLNG 1331 SSTINIVLS 40 SHIa %L NO ONNH S4000

NOLLISOd T¥WNON 3HL OL SNINMNLZY ANY Wi

‘ONIHLVE

55300V F18V0

‘stona

“ArEnISSY

'LH0ddNS ONILVAO ¥ SONILVD

‘not00

NOLLVTINA

]

MIBWIN LHOdNS ONILVAS 1108

T
SIONY VD3NN 8 X 05 X 001
01.03073M T1ONY 9 X Sy XS

062

¢vV13a 31v1d aN3

STONY WNOINN 8 X 05 X 00

FONY 9 X Sp XY

S3IY1IN3 LONA ONIMOHS g8-8 NOILO3S

00zt
Sz

ONISIY 40 318YYO S1 400 FHL FNSOTONS FHL 40 SUINHOD FHL
G31¥INSAYONS ‘SONILNNOW HLIM YHOM3NYYH J3113 NOISOTdX3 NO GILNNON S1 400%
WINISZ 4008 NO YO

XYW M3BHIL 03 LYINSAYONT ONILYHOGHOONI SNIGTNOW TTONIS Y SY OIIddnS S1 4008
56555 S1 FUNSOTONT GO Nebin QUVNVLS 40 LHOIIIA TVAOL SHL

‘SYHOM 3HL 40 L4V SV SHOMLIN HIMOG YN AS OITIVISNI ONY 030INOkNG
‘gavis N

laa T

azunDay
S GIHSNY/IISOM 50 QNYONYLS HOIH ¥ LYHL G3LON 38 GTNOHS LI ~ 13MONL 13315

v T TV 40 doL
HSINI3 30V ¥I¥4 ¥ 3QIAOMG OL G3LLAHS 38 OL SO FLFHONOD TI¥ 40 WHIOSh dOL
¥.7IY130 NNMOHS S¥ L4OddNS T9NY 13315 NI 15¥0

‘SUIANYHO WISZ X WIS IAYH OL TINF] ONNOMO IA0RY SI9T3 TYNNLXE TTY

87> 58 0L 38 TIVHS LNINIOHOANIZ Ol

38 TIvHS VA g3aER WS,
40¥3N00 IAVHOL g
‘1207 S8 0L INIW3D ONVILOd

‘ONLLSISZ JLYHANS MO JONVLSISTA JYHATNS JUNSN3 OL NOLLYNIEHOD ININZO

 HLIM Z:00S8 S8 OL "3LYDI4O0Y WO HLIM XIW LE/0E0Y GZLYNOISIA 38 0L 3LIHONOD

1207 S8 0L LN3NZ0 ONY1LNOJ ONLLSIS3 JYHATNS HO JONYLSISTH FUVHA NS FUNSN2

OLNOILYNIEWOD. 2:0038 58 OL XIN HLM 133

an 38 L8N S10dS LI0S W01

3115 NO NIONIHINOD SHHOM

ONIGTING OL HORid TVAOHAAY / INSNOD HOS SSOMLIN ¥3MOd N OL G3LLINGNS 38

OL STYS0dOd IAILYNYILTY TIV - SNOLLYONNOS IAILVNYILTY FIEVLINS NOISIA OL S|

MIINIONT VENLONKLS SIN3ITD FHL NIHL SRINSSIU SNINYIE TTRVIYA HO ONNONS

an v E

VRO 403 TLYNDIAY SIHL 10N

LV 3UNSS T ONNOYS 50 ISVIHONI 13N ¥ NO G35V SI NMOHS NOIS30 GUVONYLS 3HL

‘SNOLLYDO' 353HL MO< LNVISYA GIONNE ATIN< 3HL 351 ~ TTOHIHOR ¥ 40 WOS NIHLIM
0wy 41 218vLINS 3l0N
H1¥41004 O8Nd ¥3A0 HOYOMON3 LON 1SN SHO0Q NOLLYLSENS
S3MANOT MO SHOOT OL SSIOOY SNISINOYANOD LNOHLIM HLIMOY LNVl

3un1nd v
SNIA¥OSONY1 1408 LN3OVIOY 31 OV1S NOISI 3HL LY N3AIS 33 O1 SI NOLLYMITISNOD
‘F1BYLAIOOYNN S| ALIMNOIS HHFZ YA SSTOOY
31INS SNIXOOT SYIOMLIN ¥IMOd N THVONYLS
1034007 38 OL 3 3N0Y SSII0Y FHL NO SILVE HO SHOOT ANY MY3A IHL 40 SAYQ SO

STV TINNOSY HNOH #7
‘S1HORS T04INOD TIN4 WL JuvARid
v AVMHOI 918Nd v OL 138 0

3HL 0L HOR ¥aNOISIA
SINOLVISENS 3HL 40 NOLLYN3INO ONY NOLLISOd 3HL LVHL LNVLNOANI 1 11

‘SIONIHINOD SRIOM NOLLOMULSNOD THO438 STVAONGAY
) TIIM ¥3dOTINIA THL
‘G3LLINNIA LON 38 TIM Y34V NOLLYLSENS JH. 3ONN
¥O HONONHL SI0INNIS ¥ZHLO GNY HZLVIA SHOIITAL 'SVO ONLLYIH 40 SNINNN 3HL
‘STULINITI NI 3V SNOISNINIQ TV

‘SHIOMLIN ¥IMOd

510 WOX LNSNOD NILLIM HORid LNOHLIM O3 LLINN3d 38 TIM O3LI03S STVRIELYIV

or a3wos 3801

wid

“2UNSOIONI 4D

'INIW3DOANIZH ¥ L3HONOD ‘SNOLLYANNOA

NOILYOOT NOLLYLSENS

‘S3LON WuaND

SSUMMIHLO GILVLS ATSSIHAXT
SSTINN ¥IQUNG/ ¥3OTIAIA SINIIO AG GFAINON 36 OL HHONMSHIGTING 11¥

SILON NOLLVOIHIO3dS

1 1IVL3a 31v1d aN3

%]

S1108 ZHA VL OL

& STIOH VIa ¥ ON
(G

¥, 31ONY TVNDINN OL
Q30TIM 3LV 9X 09X 0L

NMOHS SY V38 DN 40 JQISNI
HLIM HSN13 dOLS OL SLONA 310N

z

V-V NOILO3S

v.viaa

(SL33HS 5811 X £18 ‘ON 2) S3031d OML NI Q0TS

ONILVE - N33O M10T00 ‘Z0V-RNS GALLINO HLIM 3dAL N3O - QVHLAYD
A8 SONLLYAO 49 G3QINON o330 WLUGE L¥OddNS OL JIONY HSINI

ATY9 ‘3L3HINOD OLNI ONILSYD O SONYL NO GIATAM HLIM 'ATNO 3903
NG 20 30V TYNUILNI NG L¥OdNS 843X JTONY T331S I 9 X 7 XSt

M3IA NVId ~ NOILYANNOS

00¢'

ot

S3LON 338 ~ NOLLYTIVLSNI 318v0
M3LY HOLOVHLNOO GLYNINON
HIZHL N0 SYHOMLIN ¥IMOd

1N A8 Q3TILHOVE 38 OL VIMY SIHL

0021

s

ﬂ
L

TIVL3A NOILYANNO4L OL 49 40 ONIXId

HSINI3 30V ¥IY4 301A0Yd OL GLLNHS
38 OL SOM 3LIHONOD 11V 40 W0t dOL

L

NOLLYGNNOA OL MNSOTONS o
ONRIND3S SLINOVIE ONIXIA OFTONY

AN
¥. 130338

SHIOMLIN

3O ¥N AB GITIVASNI ? O3NS LNVTd TIY

$3903 TYN3LXE OL SHIINVHO S X 57

[z (3

¥, V130 335 - SNOILO3S Z NI ONLLVHO d¥9

000€

000€

ZHN SUYE 3L TVOLLYIA

3903 %0V8 3HL OL NOILISOd SIHL WO¥ GV 38 OL - $10n

NOLLYTLLN3A NIVANIVIY OL %3O NI JNSOTONS 40 JTOHM
ONNOXNY OIMINDI ONIANYLSCRYH M0 005 30 WANINIA ¥

HLVA1004 OI8Nd 3L ¥3A0 HOVONONI
LON LSNI NOLLISOd N3O 3HL NI 00 ‘0303dWI ONI38

LNOHLIM .06 HONOBHL N3O OL SHOOT HLOB MOTTY
OL S1S1X3 JONVAIVATO INIIDI4ANS LVHL INVLHOANI S1 11

HLYA1004 O18Nd 40

ALBIVO 04 G21110 SoNLVED ¥ SuBIID

M3IA OId13INOSI ~ NOILYANNOS

FTONY BB NI LSVO.

UIBWIN LHOAANS ONILVID

114 000D ¥ SUNSNE OL SWIHS TYAIN
35N 'SONIXI4 HOHONY ZHY ONISN NOILYGNNO4 40
STIVM 301S OLN ¥38WIN 140ddNS ONLLYSD 1108

NVd ~ NOILVY1SENS 449

EGEEY

THIND3A 41 ~ LINN YNIN3L ILOWSY 40 NOLLISOd

STUANOTVIA NOLLYILNIA

L0'LO'Z010-20 13 "ON ONIMYT HLIM NOLLONNPNOD
NI GV3Y GNY SZLON 335 - SO HLMY3 ON ¥

) eI —_,———
PP H1¥d1004 onand
| i 03903 %0v8
|
i
|
i
T
i !
i g
i 2
i S
5 (e
i
| HOLIMS AH |
— 13NBvOA1 I
| 8 |
! o s o5 o1 0 !
LA 0L TG
HINHOISNVAL " !
| SIHANOTVIA
| NOLLVILLNGA
M 0008 M !
O
}

NOILVAFT3 dv3d NOILVAZT3 30IS ANVH LHO NOILVAZT3 LNOYHH NOILVAZT3 30IS ANVH 1431
%0010ve
(s 5082 SYIOMLIN ¥IMOG YN GHYONVLS L4300V OL HOLY] 3LIFIONOVAS3 GISINVATYS. e — B
P ANV OIANOT 949X S0k 3NV ORANOT 919X 0k N
[pas

SHOMINVA F3113 NOISOTdXE NO GFLNNOW LINN 5008

S3AY3 VIA NOLYILNIA L31NO. WNOLLIGAY JQIAONI
0L 054 AB AINO OV ONY INOM SONVHYIAO 400H

T3NVd HOOQ OLNI G3SSORNE NOIS HLY3A 40 ¥IONVA

165




1UBSUCO BN 10w PaIod Jo PaSN 8 Jou Al UMEIP SIYL “SHOMBN Jamod Y Aa pauno WBudog

SCYVANYLS NOILYLSENS AYYANOIIS aus

[4 1010°2010-2013

uosiep

ON ONIMYHQ

@nouddv [ WO SIN 3mos

ONIHLYY3 AT8 AH 3NIGWOD
HLIM NOILYANNO4 HINId 449
¥04 TIV13d ONIHLYY3 AYVANVYLS

EL

SHIOMIDN
JOMOd
< ")
gz_wma Hﬁﬁ uonduoseq seq  [uosen|
a9 1S
2. TNOKO | 60804 | ¢

€ NOILO3S - TYNNVW NOILLONYLSNOO
ONIHLYV3I SHYOMLIN ¥3MOd N FHL 40 SNOLLYANIWWOOIY
3HL HLIM FONVAHOOOV NI LNIWAINDT SYHOMLIN

¥3IMOd YN FHL OL (SYIHLO A8) SIAOHLOI T3 HLHYI LOINNOD *

‘ONIHL¥VI

'SHOLOVHLNOD SHNOMLIN ¥3IMOd YN ¥O4 SILON

“Wy'Z 40 HLIIA WNWINIW Y OL N3AINA
‘SONILLIA F1VINAOUddY HLIM QY10 ¥3ddOO 38 OL SA0Y HL¥YI

“3dVL ¥3ddOO Wwg X WwWsz YO $318V0 ¥IJd0D
YV AWOL X Z HO UWOZL ISN VIS OL dN STAATTLINVA HIYV3 ¥4 *

“3dV.L ¥3dd0D Wy X WWSZ ¥O $318YD ¥Idd0D
YV MWL X Z HO MWOZL ISN VAT OL dN STAATTLINVA HLIMVI HOd *

‘3dV.L ¥3dd0D WWE X WWSZ YO F18VO ¥3dd0D
QIANVHLS FVE AIWOL 3SN VI8 OL dN STIATT LINVA HIHYI MO «

300¥L03713 HLYV3
SV 03SN 38 OL 3¥V SA0Y QY10 ¥3ddOD ANV S318V0 ¥3dd0D Fuva *

“NOILYTTVLSNI LNV1d OL ¥OlMd
SHYOMLIN ¥IMOd YN OL 3dIAO¥d 38 OL SI WILSAS ONIHLYVI
3H1 40 3ONV.LSISTH FHL ONIWYIANOO NOILYOISILYFO - WHO

1 40 IONVLSISTH WNWIXVIN ¥ SAVH LSNIW WALSAS ONIHLNYI 3HL

“HANOIS3A LO3rodd
SYYOMLIN ¥3IMOd YN 3HL HLIM 3349V ANV 03SSNOSIA 38 OL
34V SNOLLISOd QO HLYV3 ¥ NYHL 34O ONIHINOIY SNOILYTIVLSNI *

SNOILYOO1 404 Nv'1d 335 ‘4OLOVHLNOD ONIHLYY3 S¥3d0T3A3a
A8 031S3L ONV Q3TIVLSNI ‘G3I1ddNS 38 OL SAOY HLYVI ON ¥

“HIHLIO0L AFLOINNOD 38 OL HSIN / ¥VEIM WOLLOE

3 dOL "LNIWCINDI SYHOMLIN ¥IMOd %N FHL OL NOILOINNOO TYNI4

3HL VIV OL SYYOMLIN ¥IMOd YN 04 13ATTHLNIT 3A08V STIVL

“Ulw WWQ09 3AVIT ‘SANVTO AHV.IINdONd ONISN WILSAS ONIHLYYI
3HL OL G3ANOSE 38 LSNW HINITd HL NIHLIM INIWIOHOSNIZY 3HL *

“313¥ONOD 40 INFWIOVd OL HORd

3NOILISOd ATLOIHHOO 4V SIA0HLOT 3 HLYYI LVHL FUNSNI

OL HOLOVYLINOO SHMOM ONNOYD FHL HLIM NOILYIOOSSY NI
Q31TVLSNI 38 GINOHS W3LSAS ONIHLYYS IHL 318ISSOd YIAIUIHM

‘W3LSAS ONIHLAVI

10201020 13 "ON ONIMYHA SHYOMLIN ¥3IMOd

YN HLIM NOLLONNFNOO NI 0¥3¥ 38 OL ONIMYA SIHL (311S 100)

HLYY3 ATVAH G3NISNOD ¥ HLIM YA000} OL dn SY3WHOISNYHL HLIM
SNOLLYLSENS LINN 04 318VLINS S| NMOHS WILSAS ONIHLNYI 3HL

*INV.LHOdWI

‘03 LLINY3d

LON 38 TIM V34V NOILYLSENS JHL ¥IANN ¥O HONOXHL SIIAYIS
Y¥3IHLO ANV ¥3LVM 'SWOOITIL 'SYD 'ONILYIH 40 ONINNNY FHL
"SIULIWITUN NI ¥V SNOISNIWIQ TV

‘SYYOMLIN ¥IMOd %N WOHS LNISNOD NILLIHM HOIMd LNOHLIM
Q3LLINY3d 38 T1IM G314103dS STYRIFLYW ¥O SNOISNIWIA A3LVLS
3HL OL NOLLYIYYA ON ONY G31vOS 38 OL LON S| ONIMVHA SIHL *

:SILON TV¥INID
‘FSIMYIHLO

TILVLS ATSSTHXT SSTINN HYOLOVHLNOO ONIHLYYT / ¥FOT1IAIA
SIN3ITO 3HL A9 GIAINOYHd 38 OL SI WILSAS ONIHLYYI FHL

‘S3LON NOILVDIHI03dS

OV
D)

DOSININIINININY,
o

V-V NOILO3S

il

—-—o

‘Ul oove

009

N/

@ VYNINEIL

HLY¥VY3 INJNCINOI OLNO JLVNINYTL
OL SYYOMLIN ¥IMOd XN "O4
13A37 HLNITd 3A08V STIVL Wwoe9 3AVIT

g-d NOILO3S

¥3HL3O0L 3LO03INNOD 38 OL
HS3W / ¥va3d WOLL08 8 dOL

IVNIING3L HILYY3
o} O3NNOD

i

‘ulw oote

Ldld
LJld
LIl

NOILYANNO4 HLIM G3TIV.LSNI
39 O ANV 13A37ANNOYO MO39
Wiwoo9 AIv1300d.L0313 HLYV3

SHANYOD ¥ 1V LV 1@
SA0Y HLYVA TIVLSNI —~

NV1d NOILVYANNO4 HLINITd 449

NOILISOd ONIHOLIMS AH HLV3NY3IANN SSYd O1 3A0¥10373 H1¥V3

SAOY ® S3A0Y LD HLYVI ONIMOHS M3IA OI413NOSI

166




Agenda ltem 5j

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1200129FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: ERECTION OF DWELLING WITH DETACHED DOUBLE
GARAGE AND ALTERATION TO EXISTING PROPERTY TO
INCLUDE PORCH LINK AND SINGLE GARAGE

Location: LAND AT AND INCLUDING 116 ST NEOTS ROAD EATON
FORD

Applicant: MR R PAYNE
Grid Ref: 517485 259808
Date of Registration: 23.01.2012

Parish: ST NEOTS

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 The application site comprises a detached single-storey dwelling with
flat roof extensions, constructed of a golden buff brick and concrete
tiles to the roof and white uPVCwindows/doors, and its garden. It is
situated within a prominent location at the junction of St Neots Road
and River Road. The site boundaries are defined by a vertical
boarding 1.8m high fence lowering to a 1.2m high fence (heights all
approx.) and a 3m hedge along the boundary with St Neots Road.

1.2 The site is adjacent to the St Neots Conservation Area; and within the
Environment Agency’s Flood Zone 2 and part of Flood Zone 3.

1.3 The proposal is for the erection of a dwelling with detached double
garage; and alteration to the existing property to include a porch link
and single garage. To enable development it is necessary to
demolish the existing flat roof element of the dwelling that comprises
a garage, study, kitchen, and w.c. The resulting accesses would be
abutting and the proposed garages would be adjoining.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

2.1 National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and

167



enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV6: “The Historic Environment” — within plans, policies,
programmes and proposals local planning authorities and other
agencies should identify, protect, conserve and where
appropriate, enhance the historic environment of the region
including Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings.

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration.

e T14: “Parking” — controls to manage transport demand and
influencing travel change alongside measures to improve public
transport accessibility, walking and cycling should be encouraged.
Maximum parking standards should be applied to new residential
development.

e WAT4: “Flood Risk Management” — River flooding is a significant
risk in parts. The priorities are to defend existing properties from
flooding and locate new development where there is little or no
flooding.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

o H31: “Residential privacy and amenity standards” — Indicates that
new dwellings will only be permitted where appropriate standards
of privacy can be maintained and adequate parking provided.

168



3.4

3.5

H32: "Sub-division of large curtilages" states support will be
offered only where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage are of a
size and form sympathetic to the locality.

H33: “Sub-division of large curtilages affecting protected buildings
or features” states the subdivision of curtilages will not be
supported where development will adversely affect the qualities of
a Conservation Area or affect trees worthy of protection.

En5: “Conservation Area Character” - development within or
directly affecting conservation areas will be required to preserve
or enhance their character and appearance.

En9: “Conservation Areas” - development should not impair open
spaces, trees, street scenes and views into and out of
Conservation Areas.

En18: “Protection of countryside features” — Offers protection for
important site features including trees, woodlands, hedges and
meadowland.

En20: “Landscaping Scheme”. - Wherever appropriate a
development will be subject to the conditions requiring the
execution of a landscaping scheme.

En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from

the

Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable

at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan

Alteration (2002)

HL5: “Quality and Density of Development” - sets out the
criteria to take into account in assessing whether a proposal
represents a good design and layout.

HL6: “Housing Density” - indicates that housing development
shall be at a density of 30-50 dwellings per hectare

HL10: “Housing Provision” — in the district should reflect the full
range of the local community’s needs by ensuring a choice in
new housing.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then

click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” - all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and

169



3.6

3.7

3.8

economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development.

CS3: “The Settlement Hierarchy” — Identifies St Neots as a Market
Town in which development schemes of all scales may be
appropriate in built up areas.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

C5: “Flood Risk and Water Management” — development
proposals should include suitable flood protection / mitigation to
not increase risk of flooding elsewhere. Sustainable drainage
systems should be used where technically feasible. There should
be no adverse impact on or risk to quantity or quality of water
resources.

E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

E2: “Built-Up Areas” — development will be limited to within the
built-up areas of the settlements identified in the Core Strategy
policy CS3, in order to protect the surrounding countryside and to
promote wider sustainability objectives.

E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District's
heritage assets or their setting should demonstrate how these
assets will be protected, conserved and where appropriate
enhanced.

E5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid
the loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value,
including ancient woodland and veteran trees. They should
wherever possible be incorporated effectively within the
landscape elements of the scheme.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord
with the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1
‘Parking Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities
shall be provided to serve the needs of the development.

H1: “Efficient Use of Housing Land” — housing developments will
optimise density taking account of the nature of the development
site, character of its surroundings and need to accommodate
other uses and residential amenities such as open space and
parking areas.

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the
living conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or
nearby properties.

St Neots Conservation Area Character Statement

SPD — Huntingdonshire Design Guide 2007

170



3.9 SPD - Huntingdonshire Landscape and Townscape Assessment

2007

4, PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 0602153FUL - planning permission granted for the erection of a
conservatory

5. CONSULTATIONS

5.1 St Neots Town Council - recommend approval (COPY
ATTACHED)

5.2 The Committee commented on the standard of plans submitted for

this application and felt that, in general, plans for larger properties
were not extensive enough

5.3 Environment Agency — no objections

54 CCC Highways — no objections

6. REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 One third party representation received objecting to loss of privacy
and access.

7. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

71 The main issues to be considered are: the principle of residential

development at the site; consideration of the resultant relationship
with neighbouring properties; impact of the proposal on the street
scene and character and appearance of the area; highways and
flooding.

Principle of development:

7.2 St Neots is defined as a Market Town where the principle of
residential development on appropriate sites is supported.

Design / Impact on the street scene and character and appearance of the
area:

7.3 Policy H32 states that the sub-division of large curtilages will only be
allowed where the resultant dwelling and its curtilage will be
sympathetic to the locality.

7.4 Policy HL5 specifically indicates that planning permission will only be
granted if the new development respects the townscape and
landscape of the wider locality, including the local pattern of streets
and spaces, and maintains open spaces, important gaps in
development, mature trees and other vegetation that contributes to
the quality of the local environment.

7.5 Policy E1 states that all development proposals shall demonstrate

consideration of the character and appearance of the surrounding
environment and the potential impact of the proposal by avoiding the

171



7.6

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

introduction of harmful development due to poor siting, scale, form,
colour or use of materials.

This is a residential area with a variety of housing types of varying
curtilages, although the general rule of oblong plots with the dwellings
situated centrally or further forward within the plot seems to
predominate. However No116 St Neots Road is uncommon in that it
is a wide corner plot (almost as wide as it is deep) in a prominent
location at the road junction of St Neots Road and River Road,
occupied by a single-storey dwelling, resulting in a sense of openness
and space where the site fronts onto River Road, but with a fence and
high hedge above where the site fronts St Neots Road and at the
junction.

It is considered that the introduction of the proposed dwelling in this
location would be uncharacteristic of the area; and would be harmful
to the street scene as it would sit significantly forward of Nos 118 —
124 St Neots Road curtailing the general feeling of spaciousness
when viewing the site and beyond (through to St Neots Road) from
Brook Street and River Road; and conversely when viewing the site
from St Neots Road and beyond (through to River Road and Brook
Street) resulting in an incongruous feature in the street scene and a
cramped appearance. This would have a detrimental impact on the
character and appearance of the adjacent Conservation Area as the
proposed development would impair the views into and out of the
Conservation Area. The development would also detract from the
character and appearance of the area and the setting of the
Conservation Area as the northeast facing side elevation in particular
would be readily visible along St Neots Road and, with eaves of the
height proposed and long dormers on a relatively shallow roof, the
dwelling does not meet the high standards of design required by local
policy and the NPPF. The SPD — Huntingdonshire Design Guide
states that ‘developments should aim to make good use of a
site...... however this objective must be balanced with the need to
respect the character of the area. The layout and form of
developments should harmonise with their surroundings’.

The existing dwelling has a ridge height of 5m, with eaves and flat
roof elements of 2.6m high. The proposed dwelling has a ridge
height of 6m with eaves 3.25m high.

The proposed garage is proposed as 9.2m long and ridge height of
4.25m.

To facilitate development it is proposed to demolish the existing flat
roof element of the dwelling comprising the garage, study, kitchen
and w.c., and replace with a triple garage and significant amounts of
hard landscaping, which would dominate the southern half of the site
and would be the focus when approaching the site from Brook Road.
The SPD — Huntingdonshire Design Guide states that ‘access and
parking arrangements should avoid cars and garages becoming
unduly prominent in the street scene. Situating parking spaces and
garages back from the building frontage can help to lessen their
visual  impact...... garages are intended to be ancillary
accommodation for a vehicle and should not become unduly
prominent features, for instance, if garages are grouped in blocks
position them so that the doors are not visible from the street’.

172



7.11

It is considered therefore that the proposal is contrary to policies
ENV6 and ENV7 of the Regional Spatial Strategy 2008, H32, En5,
En9 and En25 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, CS1 of the
Core Strategy 2009, E1 and E3 of the Huntingdonshire DPD
Proposed Submission 2010.

Amenity:

712

713

Due to the orientation of the plot in relation to the adjoining property
and those within the vicinity; as there are no first floor windows on the
rear elevation / south-east elevation of the proposed dwelling except
a roof light it is considered that it is unlikely that there would be any
undue loss of amenity to No2 River Road or the property immediately
to the north-east on St Neots Road. As there is a road between the
proposed dwelling and those on the opposite side of St Neots Road it
is considered that the first floor windows on the front elevation / north-
west elevation will not have a significantly detrimental impact upon
neighbour amenity.

The proposal does not therefore conflict with policies H31 of the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, CS1 of the Core Strategy 2009 and
H7 of the Huntingdonshire DPD Proposed Submission 2010.

Access to the site / highways issues:

7.14

7.15

Flood:

7.16

717

It is considered that the proposed access arrangements have been
contrived in an attempt to facilitate development. The development
will have no internal turning for the proposed dwelling and would
allow for vehicles to reverse onto the side road, River Road. This
occurs with other dwellings in this road and in itself is not a reason for
refusal in this location.

Residential dwellings in St Neots town centre should provide a
maximum car parking provision of up to 1 space per dwelling, whilst
all other locations require residential dwellings to provide up to 2 car
space per dwelling. As the site is out of town centre it should provide
the latter. On the application form, the total proposed (including
spaces to be retained) is shown to be 10. This far exceeds the
maximum required for the proposed and existing dwellings but is not
a reason for refusal in this location.

Whilst the land is within the Environment Agency’s Flood Zone 2 and
part Zone 3 it is in the SFRA 1:1000 year flood extent and 1:100 year
with climate change allowance flood extent. In line with current
government advice on Standing Advice with regard to flooding issues,
the Local Planning Authority is obliged to respond on behalf of the
Environment Agency using a Flood Risk Matrix.

The applicant submitted a Flood Risk Assessment in accordance with
the now cancelled PPS25. The Environment Agency reviewed the
Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) as submitted and has no objection to
the proposed development.

Conclusion:

173



718 The proposed development is considered not to be compliant with
relevant national and local planning policy as it:
- would result in a cramped form of development that would have an
unacceptable impact on the street scene and character of the area

7.19 Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
recommended that planning permission should be refused in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8. RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reason:

8.1 The proposed dwelling and garages would result in the loss of
openness, spaciousness and visual amenity at the prominent location
at St Neots Road and River Road and would result in an
unsympathetic cramped form of development that would have an
unduly adverse impact on the character and appearance of the
locality, the street scene and the adjacent Conservation Area. The
northeast facing side elevation in particular would be readily visible
along St Neots Road and, with eaves of the height proposed and long
dormers on a relatively shallow roof, the dwelling is not of the
necessary high standards of design. The proposal is therefore
contrary to Policies ENV6 and ENV7 of the Regional Spatial Strategy
2008; En25, En9, En5, H32 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995:
HL5 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alteration 2002: E1 and E3 of
the Huntingdonshire LDF Development Management DPD Proposed
Submission 2010; CS1 of the Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Submission Core Strategy 2008; guidance in the SPD —
Huntingdonshire Design Guide and the requirements of the NPPF.

CONTACT OFFICER:

Enquiries about this report to Ms Dallas Owen Development Management
Officer 01480 388468

174



€40 T a8eq

‘pauleisge Jaysn 4|10
3ony 4|10 Aq papuodas ydrumulepn 41D Ag pasodoud

UoAq 4N
NNZ 6T3d ‘s109N 1S ‘AIngsauA] ‘peoy uonod 8

Ztoz Aenuga 8

179

“IVAOYddY puswwodsy 11N4 8uluue|d | 9Shoy 01 SUOISUIXS JeaJ pue Juod) Aa103s 9|3uls TN4TTTO0CT €
‘3u1199W IX3U 3y} 940499
pawJIfu0d S S19UIged 9say3} Jo 3ulls 10exa 9yl 1eyy
paisanbal 89111WIWO) 3y) ‘v wiay Joy paljddns dew pue yoeasuado Lg
ydea3ojoyd ay3y usaamiaq sa10uaisisuodul ayl 03 ang peoy ||eyssoJd €0T 40 Yylou 9349/ 2107 Adenuga4 8
‘d3dy3i4d3aa 13@131 Suiuueld 1au1qed |NV1Sd Jo uoljef|eisul 13Q731€TTO0CT [4
auAed Y JN
.\cmsocwmzwcwyxm J0U 3J9Mm mm_tam%oa J93ue| yoj sue|d $109N 1S ‘P04
|e49uas ul yeyy 394 pue uoiiedijdde siyy Joj pal1pwigns Uo1e3 ‘peoy S109N IS 9TT SUIPN[PUI pue Je pueT
sue|d Jo pJepuels 9y} Uo PIIUSWWOI 331HWWO) 3YL
‘93eJed 9|3uls e pue yul| yosod e spnjdul
jony SN 11D Ag papuodas “uauapaen Jj|) Aq pasodoud 0} Auadoud Sunsixa 03 uonessye pue o3esed Z10T Adenugad 6
“TVAOUddV puswwoday 71N4 Suluueld | d|gnop payoeidp YuUM 3uljlamp Jo U0l T1N46¢T00CT T
sjuiesjsuo) pue (uoneussi3ay jo areq) ON
SUOI}EPUIWIIOI]Y |12UNO) UMO L uonedlddy jo adAL juedijddy pue uoneso ‘quawdojanag ON 92Ud43)3Y ueld

ZT0C YoJe|N T Aepsiny] Uuo 99nIWWo) suluue[d oyl Ag
paJapisuo) aq 03 suoijedljddy suiuue|d
[IDUNO) UMO] S109N 1S




€40 7 98eq

uosuyor g 4N
dg8
6T3d ‘SI09N 1S ‘U0D0S uole] ‘peoy peawysng T
"snowjueun uljoAn Sunsixa aoe|das 01 91e8 pue apeJisn|eq
‘Jauapuen J||D Aq papuodas ony J||J Ag pasodoud YIM [[eM AJEPUNOQ JO UOID3ID JOJ TN49500060 | CTOT Adenigaq o1
“IVAOYddV puswwoday d3y 8uluueld | uoissiwaad Suluueid  jo  juswade|day d3YE8TO0TT L
[IPMOH [JIN
"snowjueun Sul3oA dVT 6T3d ‘S109N 1S ‘9e|d WI|Suy 1S 6T
jony SIN A1 Ag papuodss “Jaysn 1D Aq pasodold agSeses pue asnoy usamjaq | CTOZ AJenigeq o7
“IVAOUddV pPUsWwodssy 71n4 Buiuue|d | Aemyjjem ul Jan0d ‘a3eded Jo doeq 1e Ajjian 4 T1N3166000¢T 9
"pauleisge 3ony J(|D YSUMUle ALT 6T3d ‘SI09N 1S ‘Peoy YdIMpues m
JD Aq papuodss ‘ysuspsen 4D Aq pasodoid Asepunoq juouy 03 ajeg |  ¢TOZ Adeniged €71 —
“IVAOUddV puswiwodssy 71N4 Buluue|d | Yyum 2dud) papJeoq 3sofd Y3iy wg Jo uoidaig T1N409T00¢T S
‘u119aW Ixau 3yl aJo43q ¢
3 ¢ SWa}| Jo 3uils JO uOoIIedI1Ie|d Ule}qo 03 43| UMOo|
‘peod ayl dn sasnoy { 31 pamoys dew ayi pue asnoy
SIYy 9pIs1no 1auiged ayy pamoys pailjddns ydesSoloyd
V "JUD3ISISUODUl  2JOM  UYDIYM SJUSWNI0P  POAIRIAM
pey aH ‘juasaitd sem Apadoud Agiesu e jo juapisal y yoeasuadQ 19
J3ysn 41D Ag papuoaas pny SsIN 411D Ag pasodoud SJO09N 1S ‘peoy SI09N 1S 8GT 0 1som 9349\ 2107 Aenuga4 8
‘g3iyy3idaa 13731 8uluueld }9ulqed Juawdinba |AY1SQ JO uolie||eisu| 13d13180T00¢T 14
sjuiesjsuo) pue (uoneussi3ay jo areq) ON
SUOI}EPUIWIIOI]Y |12UNO) UMO L uonedlddy jo adAL juedijddy pue uoneso ‘quawdojanag ON 92Ud43)3Y ueld

ZT0C YoJe|N T Aepsiny] Uuo 99nIWWo) suluue[d oyl Ag
paJapisuo) aq 03 suoijedljddy suiuue|d
[IDUNO) UMO] S109N 1S




€ Jo € a8eq

N~
N~
b
uosuyor g 4N
dd8
‘snowueun Suijon 6T3d ‘SI09N 1S ‘U0d0S uole] ‘peoy peawysng T
‘J3uap.en 4|3 Aq papuoaas Hany 4j|3 Aq pasodoud a8pay pue sa1es ‘|jem Asepunoq | CTOZ Alenigad ST
“IVAOUddV puswiwioday D34 Suluue|d | JO [eAowdd JO} DVYILS00060 JO Iuswade|day 234v¥1200CT 8
sjuiesjsuo) pue (uoneussi3ay jo areq) ON
SUOI}EPUIWIIOI]Y |12UNO) UMO L uonedlddy jo adAL juedijddy pue uoneso ‘quawdojanag ON 92Ud43)3Y ueld

ZT0C YoJe|N T Aepsiny] Uuo 99nIWW0) suluue[d oyl Ag
paJapisuo) aq 03 suoijedljddy suiuue|d
[IDUNO) UMO] S109N 1S




Development Management Panel

Application Ref: 1200129FUL
Location: St Neots

Huntingdonshire

DI'STRICT COUNZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

CRECY COURT

Plal

5

Legend

"/ /] The Site

L : Conservation Area

WENYaVe NV

29

! 5C

o = VJ
00| 7o .
=T P i astle TS
o e, N
Al i

A2}

G @ B % - - I:‘U" .-r‘,Lf\‘s? )
DDQ n SilG i i &Y= oy Y, !
; roe—= oulis NV éggg-f@zg )N
@ [ 2 ¢ G\w a’—?’r “O'r-.‘:\\}__ L:ﬂ»ug;/‘»"} /
Y R i G e
o & RS Werr (IO TN
D@ (s} ORG; AR g RN TENG o e i e 2 =
: 5 Db b @ 0
(e ] g N s
S
NHEIM CT
o v
ﬁ B D@E@ Lo /A £
S
G <§;>0«9Q. S S p
S ; é& T Ples 4
’ &
i/ Q
X [E Bowling Gree
5 R AR g 5 starfLs §
Y =]
L VRN ?
9 ) ]
N
1
Corner @
Club
Y o)
Gl
DD @ a ootball Ground
S
R
Q Playground
RV, RROAD %
/3
bély ~ 5
2/ 4
= OUSE’?OM)

m L
T EAN %

Scale: 1:2500

178



€46 6274d STV ‘NOIONILNNH 085 XOd O d ‘ALT AMN :
V6/0T/11 'ON , . ONILSIX3 NVId 40014
CI0T AMVANVT - dLvVa ‘

00T:T -d'IVOS :
: ANAV Y I - LNETTO i —

SNOLLVAFTH ANV NV'1d ¥OO'Td ONILSIXA . ) :
SEVD ‘TQI04 NOLVE ‘AVOY SLOAN LS 911 ANVT
MOTVONNE LATVHO 40 NOLLOHIA ANV MOTVONNY

ONILLSIXH O1 SNOILIAAV ANV SNOLLVIALTY agsodoyd ) == = f q

.

. ONILSIX3 NOILVAII3I M'S H ) % Hoy wooupaq wooJpag
E E LT U
= H
Bnus Buruip

woosyynq wooJpag

DNILSIX3 NOI LVA313'3'S

w3y

‘. o

afpupb

-+ __

ONLLSIX3 NOILVATIZ TN ONILSIX3 NOILLYAFIIM'N

179

B0 | = T dpe @ [l




Hd6 62dd SHNVD ‘NOUONIINNH 08¢ X049 0d ‘AlTAMN
FTA2YVS/0Z/11 'ON

CI0T AMVNONVI :dLYQq

- 0001 *9TVOS

¥bso6zL
‘wbs9zg-61}
DNILSIAA 30 (03S040dd NVd 40074

|.. L | = =
03S0dO¥d'MS
sbuno) - Apnys
: . | wooupag woospag
udydIp _ Buiuip wooJpaq '
(3S0d0N¥d NOILYA313'T'S i (@)
i | ~
I ﬂ)., ” 4 3
i J ] % __
o | =2l __
jI
) 0350d404d IN (03S0d0¥d NOILYAIIZ MN
= = =)
) — /_ ) —
. \ — ~ —_ —
- = = = —




MMV VLU DUV Y 2 INUMUINLLING L USS XU O d CALT AMN
Y¥/0T/11 "ON

Cl0Z AMVANVT :HLvd

0011 *dTVOS

HANAVA 3 YA L INATTO

SNV'Id Y0014 1S¥d ANV ANNOYO

SENVD ‘M0 NOLVA ‘avoy SLOAN IS 911 ANVT

ONILSIXH OL SNOLLIAAY ANV SNOLLVYZLTY adsododd

MOTVONNEG LITVHD 40 NOLLOHIH ANV MOTVONNE

181

1 b
. H 0005 H @In@ maN
i NYId 40074 1SHI4 - - — NV1d Y00 ONAOYD
|
_
_ N
“ 1= wooJpag
|
[ , _8 {.m L R
S _ T T -—r LAl = ——
| ﬁ _ i .
Apnys
_m H afiuno|
T Eoo.__ucm;.sw . 1 - _HU C .
o q : L MUU wooayyog S
8 E%._umamg Buipup) j wooJpag 2
e — Burul
Ll woo0Jp3q ulurp
L _ _
e s — 1]
lﬁ i uaydy Iy .
| | |
|
| |
| _ g
_ |
| | — |
- | |
T 0005 1
0oLLL




du0 0cdd SHAVY NOUDNILNIH "08S XOd O d "ALT AMN
VS/OT/11 "ON

10T AMVANVT ‘H1vd

001:1 *9TVOS

ANAVA ¥ ¥ - INAITD

SNOLLVAATE 1TV

SHNVD ‘QIOd NOLVE ‘AVOY SLOAN IS 911 ANV'T
MOTVONNL LHTVHO 40 NOLLOFYI ANV MOTVONNY | -
ONILLSIXH OL SNOILLIAAV ANV SNOLLVYILTY A43S0Od0dd

NOIIYAIIIM'S

NOILYAIN3'T'S

0005

NOILVA313"3I'N

009%

0008

0087

Enog MaN  NOLLVATTI'MN

182

2250

0SZ€

T O

6000




496 67dd STNVO ‘NOTONILLNNH ‘085S X0 O d ‘ALT AMN
- VOI/07/11 "ON

10T AIVANVT ‘d1vd

00L:1 :FIVOS

ANAVA ¥ YA L LNATTD

NOILDFS ANV NVId YOOI ‘SNOILVATTI FOVIVD
SHNVO ‘@I0d NOLVH ‘AvVOY SLOAN IS 911 ANV'T
MOTVONNL LATVHD 40 NOILOTYE ANV MOTVONNL
ONILSIXH OL SNOLLIAQY ANV SNOLLVIALTY 9SOdO¥d

i NY1d HOOT4

T

w . .
ul
g “
NV1d 4004 abpapb abpunb H yasod
lllllllllllllllllllll =
i | =
| | . e bij |
J _ NOILYA313 30IS t //_
wn _ |
. ]
2 |
: 00%
_ i
| !
! |
| |
| ]
llllllllllllllllllll 1
0026
NOILVAIT3 ¥V - NOILYATI3 30iS NOILVA3T3 LNOY
> .
WS 1 0028

|

l

H

I
|

183




440 ocdd SHNVY NOUDNILNAH 085S X009 O d ‘LT AMN
V9/02/11 "ON

C10T ANVANV( -dLVd

001:T *ATVOS

ANAVd ¥ I INFITD

dTINE MIN NVTd J00¥ ANV 911 NV'Id 4004

SEAVO ‘@404 NOLVH ‘QvOd SLOAN LS 911 ANV
MOTVONNE LHTVHD A0 NOLLOTIHT ANV MOTVONNY

ONILSIXT OL SNOLLIAAV ANV SNOLLVYALTY adsOdOyd

009%

0e08

y d 100¥
Q1Ing MIN NV1d 4004 . 9N NVId

S — |

000€

.’_
|
|
[
l
l
|
}
|
\L

— N

000

3600

\\i_\s____
\

e

184




36 629d STNVO ‘NOAONILNNH ‘085 XOH O d ‘dLT AMN
VL/0Z/11 'ON

CI10T AMVANVT -dLvVd

0011 *gTVOS

HNAV Y YA LLNATTO

NOILOFS

SENYD ‘@I0d NOLVH ‘AvOd SLOAN LS 911 ANV
MOTYONNE LATVHO 40 NOILOTIA ANV MOTVONNSE
ONILSIXH OL SNOLLIAAY ANV SNOILVIALTY A9S0d0dd

Gina maN NOILIS —l,

P

|

3DNNOT

TIVH

0,dN))

WOO0Y YIMOHS

000

ONIONYT

3250

6000

185




This page is intentionally left blank

186



Agenda ltem 5k

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1200012FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE OF LAND TO FORM CAMPING AND
TOURING CARAVAN SITE

Location: LAND NORTH OF CLUB HOUSE ABBOTSLEY GOLF AND
SQUASH CLUB LTD POTTON ROAD

Applicant: ABBOTSLEY LTD
Grid Ref: 519730 256903
Date of Registration: 27.01.2012

Parish: ABBOTSLEY

RECOMMENDATION - REFUSAL
1. DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This application relates to 2.8 hectares of land in the open
countryside approximately 2.6km from St. Neots and approximately
4.3km from the village of Abbotsley. The land is owned and used by
Abbotsley Limited as a golf practice area, as it is situated north of an
existing golf range and squash/fitness centre.

1.2 The boundary to the site comprises hedges to the north, west and
south. Along the road frontage stand tall leylandii trees. Currently, this
field is accessed from Potton Road via the access to the golf range,
to the south east of the field.

1.3 The proposal is for a change of use of the land to a camping and
caravan park. It is proposed to provide individual hardstandings for 55
touring caravans, provide an informal grassed area for additional
touring caravan pitches and a camping area. It is also proposed to
erect a wheelie bin and liquefied petroleum gas storage area. The
plan also shows 2 amenity buildings, however no elevations are
included and the applicant makes reference to these buildings being
subject of a separate application.

2. NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy

187



communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3. PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow
links to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

e ENV7: “Quality in the Built Environment” - requires new
development to be of high quality which complements the
distinctive character and best qualities of the local area and
promotes urban renaissance and regeneration

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003) Saved
policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan
2003 are relevant and viewable at http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk
follow the links to environment, planning, planning policy and
Structure Plan 2003.

e None relevant.

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

e En17: "Development in the Countryside" - development in the
countryside is restricted to that which is essential to the effective
operation of local agriculture, horticulture, forestry, permitted
mineral extraction, outdoor recreation or public utility services.

e En25: "General Design Criteria" - indicates that the District
Council will expect new development to respect the scale, form,
materials and design of established buildings in the locality and
make adequate provision for landscaping and amenity areas.

e CS8: “Water’ — satisfactory arrangements for the availability of
water supply, sewerage and sewage disposal facilities, surface
water run-off facilities and provision for land drainage will be
required.

e To09: “Caravan and Camping Accommodation” — indicates that the

District Council will support the provision of caravan and camping
sites for tourists where they are not environmentally detrimental,

188



3.4

3.5

3.6

nor adversely affect residential amenity. Satisfactory road access
and essential services are required.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

e None relevant.

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

e CS1: “Sustainable development in Huntingdonshire” — all
developments will contribute to the pursuit of sustainable
development, having regard to social, environmental and
economic issues. All aspects will be considered including design,
implementation and function of development. Including reducing
water consumption and wastage, minimising impact on water
resources and water quality and managing flood risk.

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

e E1: “Development Context” — development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of
the surrounding environment and the potential impact of the
proposal.

e ES5: “Trees, Woodland and Hedgerows” — proposals shall avoid
the loss of, and minimise the risk of, harm to trees, woodland or
hedgerows of visual, historic or nature conservation value and
these should be incorporated effectively within the landscape
elements of the scheme wherever possible.

o [EB8: “Sustainable Travel” — proposals must demonstrate how the
scheme maximises opportunities for the use of sustainable travel
modes, particularly walking, cycling and public transport.

e P7: “Development in the Countryside” — development in the
countryside is restricted to those listed within the given criteria.

a. essential operational development for agriculture, horticulture
or forestry, outdoor recreation,

equine-related activities, allocated mineral extraction or waste
management facilities, infrastructure

provision and national defence;

b. development required for new or existing outdoor leisure and
recreation where a countryside location

is justified;

c. renewable energy generation schemes;

d. conservation or enhancement of specific features or sites of
heritage or biodiversity value;

189



e. the alteration, replacement, extension or change of use of
existing buildings in accordance with other

policies of the LDF;

f. the erection or extension of outbuildings ancillary or incidental to
existing dwellings;

g. sites allocated for particular purposes in other Development
Plan Documents.

e P12: “Tourist Accommodation” - Proposals for touring caravan or
camp sites will be acceptable where:
d. the site is adjacent to an existing settlement; or
e. well-related and with good links to an existing settlement; and
f. no adverse visual impact is caused on the surrounding
landscape; and
g. the site is, or can be served by adequate water and sewerage
services; and
h. safe physical access can be achieved.
The occupation of new tourist accommodation will be restricted
through the use of conditions or legal agreements to ensure
tourist use and not permanent residential use.

3.7 Supplementary Planning Document: The Huntingdonshire Landscape
and Townscape Assessment 2007.

4, PLANNING HISTORY

4.1 There is no planning history for the land, subject of this proposal.

5. CONSULTATIONS

5.1 Abbotsley Parish Council recommends approval although
express concerns regarding the access — (COPY ATTACHED)

5.2 Environmental Health - No objection.

5.3 Cambs Fire and Rescue — Adequate provision should be made for
fire hydrants.

54 Cambs County Highways — Further information required.

55 Sport England — Do not wish to comment.

5.6 Natural England — Standing advice.

6. REPRESENTATIONS

6.1 No representations received.

7. SUMMARY OF ISSUES

71 It is considered that the issues for consideration are the principle of
the development, highway matters and impact on the open
countryside.

The Principle:

190



7.2

7.3

Policy To9 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 advises that
camping and caravanning sites should only be supported where they
are not environmentally detrimental. In 2006, the government
published the “Good Practice Guide on Planning For Tourism’.
Section 5 of the document sets out the key planning considerations,
with an emphasis on sustainable forms of development. This view is
reinforced by Policy P13 of the Huntingdonshire Development
Management DPD: Proposed Submission 2010, which specifically
advises that proposals for touring caravan or camp sites will be
acceptable where:

* the site is adjacent to an existing settlement; or

* well-related and with good links to an existing settlement; and

* no adverse visual impact is caused on the surrounding landscape;
and

* the site is, or can be served by adequate water and sewerage
services; and

* safe physical access can be achieved.

This site is in the open countryside, it is not adjacent to any
settlement. Potton Road is a 60mph road with no footpath and no
street lighting. The site is considered to be unsustainable and no
justification has been submitted setting out the need for this type of
development, of this scale, in this open countryside location. The
submitted Planning Statement states only that “The proposed plan
would ... provide support to the tourist economy area” and “The
existing facilities in the main building will be available to users of the
camping and caravan site.” For these reasons, this proposal in its
current form is considered contrary to [a3]local planning policies.

Highway matters:

7.4

7.5

Potton Road is a 60mph road. It is unclear how many vehicles would
be using the access. On the application form the applicant proposes
61 new car parking spaces, however, 55 hardstands are shown and
in addition to those hardstandings there is a grassed camping area
and an area marked ‘informal grass caravan pitches’. For that reason,
it is unclear the true number of vehicles likely to use the new access.

The applicant has failed to provide details of the visibility splay or a
tracking plan of how vehicles would use the site. However, it was not
reasonable to seek these amendments as part of this application as
they would not overcome the fundamental objection to this proposal
in principle. The failure to provide highways information reinforces
that this proposal is unacceptable.

Scale of development and impact on open countryside:

7.6

Given the remote location of this complex and further to comments
relating to principle, a camping and touring caravan site of the scale
proposed is considered detrimental to the character and appearance
of the open countryside. This view is reinforced by the long distance
views across this field when approaching from the north. The field
chosen is, visually, very prominent and it is considered that
landscaping will not mitigate the impact of the proposal, particularly
given the scale of the development proposed.

191



Conclusion:

7.7

This scheme, as submitted is unacceptable in principle and will be
detrimental to the open character and appearance of the open
countryside. The applicant has also failed to demonstrate that the
proposal will not be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety. No
material considerations have been provided to overcome these
concerns. In light of Development Plan Policies and other material
considerations, permission should be refused for the development as
proposed.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or an audio
version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try to accommodate
your needs.

8.1

RECOMMENDATION — REFUSE for the following reason:

This site lies in a prominent location in the open countryside over
2.5km to the nearest settlement, St. Neots and Potton Road is a
60mph road with no footways or cycle routes. The applicant has failed
to provide justification for the need of this type of development in such
an unsustainable location and the scale of the proposal would be
significantly detrimental to the character and appearance of the open
countryside. This proposal would be directly contrary to policy To9 of
the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995, and Policies E1, E8, P7 and
P12 of the Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995.

CONTACT OFFICER: Enquiries about this report to Clara Kerr Development
Management Officer 01480 388434

192



From: deryckirons@aol.com
Sent: 14 February 2012 00:52
To: DevelopmentControl

Subject: Recent Planning Applications in Abbotsley
Abbotsley Parish Council has considered and commented on the following planning applications:

1102126FUL - Fencing adjacent to the 17th and 18th fairways of the Cromwell Golf Course.
The Parish Council supports the provision of 7m high protective netting between the golf
course and the 'Country Homes' but shares the view of residents that the 2.4m close
boarded fence is not necessary and may appear obtrusive in this rural setting.

1200012FUL - Camping and touring caravan site adjacent to the Golf Clubhouse in Drewels
Lane/Potton Road. The Parish Council has no objection to the proposed development,
although the access arrangements may need further consideration.

Deryck Irons
Abbotsley Parish Clerk

le:////Nas2/...200fficers/DMP%20Panel%20Reports/2012/Apr/1200012FUL/ RjicglgoZOP1anning%2OApplications%ZOin%Z OAbbotsley.htm[28/03/2012 10:19:44]



Development Management Panel

Application Ref: 1200012FUL
Location: Abbotsley

Hun’ringdonshiré

DI'STRICT COUNZ CIL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322

|

"/ /] The Site

L : Conservation Area

—

W
P i ~
F* — Rectory

N-‘} 7 F‘owp‘l Fm’%\ \
¢ ”’," Statione,, M N,
et Gallow

boston
re Park oy

g . C
;Be:rford Can .

Alington ful

2

Scale: 1:10000

194



TYEL oyoma| FHAON snag
0SZL:b o5 WrA \wvia

NV1d NOILVOO1
JLIL ONIMVYA

‘anTd 4709 A3IsLo8av
‘311S ONINNVAVEVO ANV ONIdWVD

Ol 3SN 40 IONVHI d3S0d0odd
103r0¥d

oo Buuue duisioued@saunbua w3
6E6E6Y 08Y10 e
696v6Y 08Y10 1oL

MNS £23d squed
uopBununy

SoA| 1S

10045 obpug
SMO JOUBI O}

S3LON NOISIATY 3lva | A3Y




T0/¥€/11 TI/01/1€
oN ava

Mg
™ e 00mT s WIN s

LNOAYT ALIS

TUU oNikva

‘A ATISLOBEY W04

) NX9 613d ‘SaWY2

SLOAN LS 'QvOY NOLLOd

8o 4109 AF1SLO8EY LV NIVd
NVAVIYD ANV ONIdWVD 03S040dd

uuuuuuu

MNG £23d_Squin)
vopbutguni{

SaAL 4S

42245 2Bplag
SMaW Joubw 0F

2snoH qn|D 4109

2buny buialqQ

ooy ssonp |
)

Id UDADUDD Be.ﬁ, oL

o505 = &

002:7 Y24d WM Buroods oy

=Y

002:7 Buovdg yoyg pordAL

24t [paidAL

(=1

T —




Agenda ltem 5l

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

Case No: 1101884FUL (FULL PLANNING APPLICATION)

Proposal: CHANGE OF USE FROM A1 (RETAIL) TO A1 (RETAIL) AND
A5 (TAKE-AWAY)

Location: 28 HIGH STREET PE28 9JZ
Applicant: MR A ISAAC

Grid Ref: 531736 268380

Date of Registration: 22.12.2011

Parish: FENSTANTON

RECOMMENDATION - APPROVE
1 DESCRIPTION OF SITE AND APPLICATION

1.1 This property is located at the eastern end of the High Street, and is a
single storey property, last used as a retail outlet for the sale of
disability aids to the public. The building is now vacant. There is an
area of land behind the property which is used as a car park, with an
access from the High Street. This is shared with the adjoining hotel.

1.2 The property is in a mixed use area, the immediate neighbours being
a hotel (with a Thai restaurant), an office at no 26 and a nursery at no
24. The nearest properties on the opposite side of the road are
largely in residential use, apart from no 27 which is a pharmacy.

1.3 The proposal is to change the use of the building from its present A1
use (retail) to an A1 use and an A5 (hot food takeaway) use. A floor
plan has been submitted showing the proposed layout of the A5 use.
Included in the application is the proposal to install two fume
extraction units, one to be located at each end of the building and
venting to the rear, over the car park. The cowls will not exceed the
height of the existing ridge. The building has a total internal floor area
of 36.8 sq.m., of which 29 sq.m. will be used for the kitchen, with 6.5
sg.m. used as a waiting area. There is a single toilet in one corner of
the building. The applicants have commented that the proposed
change of use will not involve any major structural work.

1.4 The applicant’'s intention is to provide a takeaway where the
emphasis will on a range of foods which will promote healthy eating.
To this end, the food will be grilled or skewered, served with boiled
rice and salads as required by the customer. A home delivery service
will be offered. The business will provide seven full time jobs and
three part time ones. Car parking will be available at the rear of the
premises. It is intended to operate the business seven days per week
from 17.00 hrs to 23.00 hrs. The fume extraction system has been
designed to minimise disturbance to adjacent neighbours.

197



1.5 The site is in the built up area of the village and within the
conservation area. There is a listed building to the rear of the site (9
Bell Lane) and the road is classified (C121). Fenstanton is a key
service centre in the settlement hierarchy.

2 NATIONAL GUIDANCE

21 The National Planning Policy Framework (2012) sets out the three
dimensions to sustainable development — an economic role, a social
role and an environmental role — and outlines the presumption in
favour of sustainable development. Under the heading of Delivering
Sustainable Development, the Framework sets out the Government’s
planning policies for: building a strong, competitive economy;
ensuring the vitality of town centres; supporting a prosperous rural
economy; promoting sustainable transport; supporting high quality
communications infrastructure; delivering a wide choice of high
quality homes; requiring good design; promoting healthy
communities; protecting Green Belt land; meeting the challenge of
climate change, flooding and coastal change; conserving and
enhancing the natural environment; conserving and enhancing the
historic environment; and facilitating the sustainable use of minerals.

For full details visit the government website http://www.communities.gov.uk
and follow the links to planning, Building and Environment, Planning, Planning
Policy.

3 PLANNING POLICIES

Further information on the role of planning policies in deciding planning
applications can also be found at the following website:
http://www.communities.gov.uk  then follow links Planning, Building and
Environment, Planning, Planning Information and Guidance, Planning
Guidance and Advice and then Creating and Better Place to Live

3.1 East of England Plan - Revision to the Regional Spatial Strategy (May
2008) Policies viewable at http://www.go-east.gov.uk then follow links
to Planning, Regional Planning then Related Documents

ENV7 — Quality in the Built Environment — requires new development
to be of a high quality which complements the distinctive character and
best qualities of the local area and promotes urban renaissance and
regeneration.

3.2 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure Plan (2003)
Saved policies from the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Structure
Plan 2003 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk follow the links to environment,
planning, planning policy and Structure Plan 2003.

None relevant

3.3 Huntingdonshire Local Plan (1995) Saved policies from the
Huntingdonshire Local Plan 1995 are relevant and viewable at
www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan95

H30: “Existing Residential Areas” — Planning permission will not
normally be granted for the introduction of, or extension to, commercial

198



3.4

3.5

3.6

uses or activities within existing residential areas where this would be
likely to have a detrimental effect on amenities.

E7: “Small businesses” - will normally be supported subject to
environmental and traffic considerations.

E8; “Small scale employment generating development” — will normally
be permitted within defined environmental Ilimits subject to
demonstrated employment need, likely impact on character, amenities
and infrastructure.

S$14 — “A3 Uses” - applications for A3 uses (which at the time of the
publication of the Local Plan included hot food takeaways) will be
judged against a number of criteria.

817 “Retention of existing Shopping Facilities in Villages” — will be
supported and where necessary will encourage the dual or multi use of
commercial or other premises in order to secure some local shopping
provision.

En2: “Character and setting of Listed Buildings” — indicates that any
development affecting a building of architectural or historic merit will
need to have proper regard to the scale, form, design and setting of the
building.

EnS5: “Conservation area character” - development within or directly
affecting Conservation Areas will be required to preserve or enhance
their character or appearance.

En6: “Design standards in Conservation Areas” — in conservation
areas, the District Council will require high standards of design with
careful consideration being given to the scale and form of development
in the area and to the use of sympathetic materials of appropriate
colour and texture.

Huntingdonshire Local Plan Alterations (2002) Saved policies from
the Huntingdon Local Plan Alterations 2002 are relevant and viewable
at www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk/localplan - Then click on "Local Plan
Alteration (2002)

None relevant

Policies from the Adopted Huntingdonshire Local Development
Framework Core Strategy 2009 are relevant and viewable at
http://www.huntsdc.gov.uk click on Environment and Planning then
click on Planning then click on Planning Policy and then click on Core
Strategy where there is a link to the Adopted Core Strategy.

None relevant

Policies from the Development Management DPD: Proposed
Submission 2010 are relevant.

E1: “Development Context” - development proposals shall
demonstrate consideration of the character and appearance of the
surrounding environment and the potential impact of the proposal.

E3: “Heritage Assets” — proposals which affect the District’'s heritage
assets or their setting should demonstrate how these assets will be
protected, conserved and where appropriate enhanced.

E10: “Parking Provision” — car and cycle parking should accord with
the levels and layout requirements set out in Appendix 1 ‘Parking
Provision’. Adequate vehicle and cycle parking facilities shall be
provided to serve the needs of the development.

199



5.1

5.2

5.3

6.1

H7: “Amenity” — development proposals should safeguard the living
conditions for residents and people occupying adjoining or nearby
properties.

P5: “Local Shopping and Services” — seeks to support the provision of
local shopping and other town centre uses as defined in PPS4, within
existing built up areas of Key Service Centres, Smaller Settlements
and predominantly neighbourhood centres of Market Towns, subject to
environmental, safety and amenity considerations where it can be
demonstrated that the proposal is directly related to the role and
function of the locality; contributes towards the provision of a safe
environment and would enhance the existing provision.

P6: “Protecting Local Services and Facilities” — proposals should not
result in an unacceptable reduction in the range and availability of
premises for key services and facilities in a settlement or
neighbourhood, unless it can be demonstrated that there is no
reasonable prospect of that service being retained or restored.

PLANNING HISTORY

8701943FUL — change of use of flat to offices (26 & 28 High Street).
Approved 16th December 1987.

CONSULTATIONS
Fenstanton Parish Council — Refuse (copy attached).

Environmental Health Officer — there is insufficient information
regarding the provision of water for washing food and utensils. The
toilet leads directly into the food room. It would appear that the
proposal will not comply with the Food Hygiene Regulations. The
proposed flues should not be particularly noisy but the western one is
about 1m from a first floor window in an adjoining property. Although
the room is not in residential use there could be issues if the filters
failed or the noise generation was greater than predicted. Due to the
office use of this property, a refusal could not be supported but it is
recommended that the start time of 17.00hrs is enforceable.

HDC Transportation — No objections in principle. There are no
reasons to object to the proposal on highway grounds.

REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbours — Four representations have been received and the
following comments have been raised:-

1. There is already adequate provision for this type of use in the
village. St lves is close by with a further range of takeaways. The
proposal will reduce the amount of trade to the existing premises.

2. The proposed ventilation flues on the rear of the building will cause a
loss of amenity to adjacent properties through increased noise and
disturbance, smells and excessive heat. Cooking smells could affect
the children playing in the garden of the adjacent nursery.

3. There is inadequate thermal insulation on the wall between this
property and no 26 to prevent the spread of fire.

4. There is no parking available on the High Street and this will lead to
an increase in the use of the parking area at the rear. This will be to the
inconvenience of the existing users. The use will attract additional cars

200



71

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

7.6

7.7

to the High Street and this will add to the hazards faced by existing
road users. Parking associated with the use of the premises in the late
afternoon will conflict with parents collecting their children from the
adjoining nursery.

5. There will be an increase in litter and refuse left on the High Street.
This would have an adverse impact on the visual amenities and the
environment of the High Street.

6. The use of the access to the car park will cause problems and a
nuisance to the other users of this access, notably people visiting the
hotel and the adjoining office.

7. There will be a loss of amenity due to late night noise and
disturbance.

8. There could be a highway issue with delivery lorries visiting the site.
9. The proposal could lead to an increase in anti-social behaviour.

10. The proposed change of use will have an adverse impact on the
quality of life of people living in the vicinity of the site.

SUMMARY OF ISSUES

The issues in this case relate to the principle of the use, the effect of
the use on the character of the conservation area and the setting of the
adjoining listed building, the impact of the proposal on the amenities of
the adjoining neighbours and the highway implications of the change of
use.

The principle of the change of use

Policy E7 (HLP1995) will normally support that establishment of small
businesses subject to traffic and environmental considerations. Policy
P5 similarly supports proposal for local shopping and other town centre
uses as defined in PPS4, again subject to environmental, safety and
amenity considerations, and P6 seeks to protect local services and
facilities. In respect of this proposal, the change of use to an A5 use,
will not result in the loss of the last shop in the village, and it should not
have a detrimental impact on the overall viability or vitality of this key
service centre.

Policy S14 identifies four criteria by which applications for A3 uses
(and A4 and A5 uses) should be judged. These are:-

1. The effect on adjacent properties and nearby residential properties.
2. Car parking facilities and general highway implications.

3. The proposed opening hours and the ability to control these by
condition.

Sections 1 and 2 are considered in more detail below.

The applicant has stated the proposed opening hours, and, if consent
is granted, it would be appropriate to impose these by condition.

In land use terms, the proposal is consistent with the present pattern of
development in the area, and it should be noted that the retail use will
not necessarily be lost as a result of this proposal as the application
specifically refers to a dual A1/A5 use. It is considered that the
principle of the change of use is acceptable and that the provision of
this type of facility would be appropriate in a key service centre.

201



7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

712

713

7.14

7.15

7.16

717

7.18

Although the applicant has indicated that he would be serving healthy
foods, the application is for an open A5 use and should be considered
on this basis.

The impact of the development on the character of the conservation
area.

The physical alterations to the building are very limited and will not
have a significant impact on its external appearance. The proposed
flues will project through the rear roof slope and will not exceed the
height of the existing ridge. They will therefore be largely screened
from the public view. Overall the development will not have an adverse
impact on the appearance of the conservation area. The listed building
referred to above is a substantial distance from no 28 and the
proposed changes will not have an adverse impact on its setting.

The change of use to an A5 use will have some effect on the
“character” of the conservation area, but it is considered that this will
be limited, and will not be detrimental to the area as a whole.

The proposal complies with policies ENV7, En2, En5, En6 and E3.
The effect on residential amenities.

The impact of the proposed A5 use on the amenities of the immediate
neighbours is not easy to quantify but it will relate to increased noise
and disturbance, traffic generation, fumes and smells. In respect of
the last matter, the Environmental Health Officer has commented that
he could not support a refusal on the grounds of the impact of fumes
and smell, but has recommended that the opening hours as
requested by strictly adhered to and that a note be added to any
planning permission advising the applicant that regular maintenance
of the extraction system is essential. This is due to the proximity of
one of the flues to a window in the adjoining office[a4] premises, and
is to ensure that issues of smells and noise do not arise.

Noise and disturbance generated by the wuse itself will be
concentrated in the evening period, and will involve the activity of the
customers and the use of vehicles. There is no doubt that hot food
takeaways can involve increased noise and disturbance and hence a
loss of amenity to adjacent occupiers. However, this need not
necessarily be the case, and many operate without causing any
problems whatsoever. There is no evidence to support the contention
that this proposal will have a deleterious effect on the amenities of the
immediate properties, or would lead to an increase in anti-social
behaviour, and, whilst the concerns of the neighbours are
appreciated, it is considered that, on the basis of the evidence
available, a refusal could not be justified.

The proposal does not conflict with policies H30 and H7.

The highway implications

The number of vehicles generated by an AS use is difficult to predict
with any degree of certainty. In this particular case, the property,

unlike many of the other commercial properties along the High Street
has on site parking spaces available at the rear of the property, and

202



7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

7.23

7.24

there is a wide access serving these. The site can be reached by
public transport and it is within easy walking or cycling distance of
many properties in the village. It is anticipated that a number of the
meals will be home deliveries.

The concerns of the Parish Council, and that of local residents are
noted, and whilst it is likely that the proposal will generate a certain
amount of additional traffic, and that some of these vehicles will park
on the High Street, it is considered that the impact of any extra traffic
will not be sufficient to support a reason for refusal The applicant’s
figure of 10 parking spaces at the rear of the property more than
satisfies the requirements of appendix 1 of the DMDPD (7 spaces),
and, in this respect, the proposal complies with policy E10.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal will not have serious traffic
or parking implications.

Other issues

1. Competition — this is not a material planning consideration and the
application could not be resisted on this ground.

2. Delivery lorries — There is no evidence to support the assertion that
an A5 use would generate more delivery traffic than an A1 use would
generate.

3. Litter — the application does not refer to the provision of litter bins
on the premises. The application could not be refused if one was not
provided and it might be difficult to comply with a condition requesting
one as the location of such a bin might be on land outside the
ownership of the applicant.

4. The drawings are adequate for the purposes of the planning
application. The development would have to comply with other
legislation e.g. the 2006 Food Hygiene Regulations before it could
operate.

5. The applicant has served the required notice on the owner of the
access.

Conclusions

1. The proposal is acceptable in land use terms.

2. The development will not have an adverse impact on the character
and appearance of the conservation area.

3. Subject to a restriction on opening hours, the proposed will not
have a significant impact on the amenities of the neighbours.

4. There are no overriding highway issues.

5. There are no other material planning considerations which will
have a major impact on the consideration of this planning application.

Having regard to applicable national and local planning policies, and
having taken all relevant material considerations into account, it is
considered that planning permission should be granted in this
instance.

If you would like a translation of this document, a large text version or

an audio version, please contact us on 01480 388388 and we will try
to accommodate your needs.

203



RECOMMENDATION — APPROVE subject to the conditions to include the
following:-

02003 Time Limit (3yrs)
Nonstand change of use only
Nonstand fume extraction system
Nonstand hours restriction

CONTACT OFFICER:
Enquiries about this report to David Hincks Development Management
Officer 01480 388406

204



‘ - o /Hunhngdonshlre

bl STRICT COUNCIL

Pathfinder House, St Mary’s Street . :
Huntingdon. PE29 3TN Tel: 01480 388388
mail@huntsdc.gov.uk ' : Fax: 01480 388099
' : www.huntingdonshire.gov.uk
Head of Planning Services '
Pathfinder House
St. Mary’s Street

* Huntingdon
Cambridgeshire PE 29 3TN

Application Number: 1101884FUL Case Officer David Hincks '
Proposal: Change of use from A1 (retail) to A1 (retail) and A5 (take-away)
Location: 28 High StreetFenstantonHuntingdon

~ Observations of Fenstanton Town/Parish Council.

Please ¥ box as appropriate

‘Recommend approval because ......(please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

‘/ Recommend refusal because. .. (please give relevant planning reasons in space below)

UAHsd SEF BrracHER StreeET

No observations either in favour or a_géinst the proposal

lerk to Fenstanton I?Wanarish Council.

A7 ‘7:4«44 ~y ZocZ,

Failure to return this form within the time |nd|cated will be taken as an indication that the Town or
Parish Council do not express any opinion either for or against the application.

'205.



Re: Planning Application: 1101884FUL
Change of use from Al (retail) to Al (retail) and AS (takeaway)
28 High Street, Fenstanton,

Fenstanton Parish Council recommend refusal of the above Planning Application for
the following reasons:

1) The location of a takeaway in the High Street, at the proposed site, is

2)
3)
)
5)
6)

7
8)

inappropriate for the Village and not in keeping with a conservation area.
Delivery vehicles will cause further congestion at this point in the High Street
Although the application states that parking is available at the rear of the
premises, it is the contention of this Parish Council that patrons will park in
the High Street. Causing further congestion in an already congested area.

The Parish Council have reservations to the ownership to the access/entrance
to the rear parking area.

The increase in vehicles and parking will cause increased hazards and safety
concerns for parents collecting their children from the neighbouring Nursery at
one of the peak times of the day, from 5pm.

The drawings lack sufficient information and detail.

No indication is shown for the washing / hygienic means for preparing food.
Neighbours objections (a copy of correspondence from the Ladybird Nursery
is included for information).

206



Huntingdonshire

D

S TR

crT

C O UNC

L

Development Management Panel

Application Ref: 1101884FUL

Location: Fenstanton
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey Mapping with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office (C) Crown Copyright
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. HDC 100022322
= ©
2
T [ h

Football Ground

Play Area

Car Park

oY

Pumping Statig

& ﬂgmawew Fm /
]

@Wyke '
e
b 4 @ 8§ /5
£/ 8
/ N g | .
& & (78 -
! ? § s ~.@1 y
S~ 8 @ O
& ELLLANE 24
D,
0y 1S58 A7 /
~ o R 0 Pond h [ )\,\Qf"
o @ Q o 4 >
~YRyy 2 ) 5
Lime: g
5/ s = &
o/ 3 5
In)

QL
a
(%)
S
S
6
()
<
4
o}/
2
5
o
o
g
5
0
[

8m
8
s H/GH St 10
PH 73 Reer 14
77
The
Tudor Hotel
S
a S
Cottage
P 12.8m )
9
~ 1
i
> I
@,
] S
F Ro
0 &
5 L
Jils
) 6
Iy P
9
A

Legend

7] The site

| Conservation Area

| NN

/ AN

207

Scale: 1:2500



je Sunonp pue Adoue)

Aoy

PAYIPOIA JNOALT|

110¢/11/¥T 91e

dfL 7ad

y3noioqiaed

UOISPOOM

arenbg sV
3N Adoue)

oc \_“

£V @) 9[edg %

uopsurunyy \

7
g
UOTJBAS[D PU2 “.w
’
/
%

UoTneAd[d pud pasodoid

YOOI IO

UOUBISUL ]
10018 Y31

77

¥D (erpaur anay)
-ufs 1oAe[-nnur) sauss mopy Jadng
2L a1d

syjuow 92y} L1943 pase[dal aq p[NoYyS [qRAOWS
‘uo0qIeo pajeAnior ynm 19)j1] [sued payesyd uoqre)

Uej 9580 W) HUN J0Oy JSH

[M00 pug

WS e wdyy je
painseaw usym (punoIdoeq) gp Ot
0] §€ PI3OX3 0] JOU [[IM S[2AI] ISION

JI90US[IS FUoT W9 X WIS

wu)g 9zis Sunon(g —

ww((s dzis unon(g
-J001 9} ojul Funonp 10§ Jutod 3Ixyg

oy oSz }orq wuwpgs doy wuwgg, x Adoues wuigse

208

Juoy wuw)gz yoeq wwgps doy wrwgg,, X Adoued wuigysg

__ Joox sy oyur Sunonp 10§ jutod 3xy

So%.ﬁ Adoue) pasodoid




wodynNAdoue)

Koy

PaIIPOIN INOAR]

uoneAd[q yoeq pasodor ]

110Z/11/%2 areq

dlzzad
y3no10qI919J

UOISPOOAM

arenbg oIy ¥

N Adoue)
0c'1

€V @ 91805
uop3ununyy
UojURISU,]

199:ms Y31y

uoneAa[y yoeq 3unsixg

209




%d. . —
2z |
(—k‘b.g\)/
.«[\'
E
0
z
15 ~
I J
W
| -
F
\; v
: V
; e
g -
F
- T
7 >
) T
0
0
J z
| 1
!

WY —mS

’ Woz=Jajow 1 :9Jeag

26 8234 $an| 15 ‘Uojueysuay 199415 ySiy g7 19y

UB[J 100[3 SUNSIXg

210



80 J a_f: “Miwmy
» 2 j
(“h‘b.g
/(\}
3
0
4]
1
13
—ws-—>
al]
ol T
B
vl o
ig 0
(% 0
Y, L
o 2] ° T
=
f {-——-—-—-w_g-z____>
7
3
0
o)
v Z
VYIN S MY (a0 iy ) :
19w e

st WL WY

>

WoZ=J49)W T :3|eas

Z16 823d SIA| 1S ‘UOIURISUSS }98.1S YSIH 87 :9Y

’ Ue[d 100[{ pasodoug

211

STREET



This page is intentionally left blank

212



Agenda ltem 6

AGENDA ITEM NO.

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PANEL 16 April 2012

APPEAL DECISIONS
(Report by Planning Services Manager (Development Management))

PUBLIC INQUIRY

1. Appellant: Broadview Energy Developments Ltd
Agent: TNEI Services Ltd
Erection of 4 wind turbines, crane pads, Dismissed
access tracks and ancillary works 09.03.12
West of Bicton Industrial estate
Kimbolton
HEARING
2. Appellant: Mr N Farmer
Agent: Pegasus Planning Group

Appeals ‘A’ and ‘B’ 2.5 storey extension to
nursing home to provide additional 28
bedrooms and ancillary facilities

Cromwell House, Dismissed
82 High Street 08.03.12
Huntingdon

WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS

3. Appellant. Messrs S Chapman and J Woods
Agent: Taylor Vinters

Erection of garage block
163 Crosshall Road Dismissed
Eaton Socon 30.01.12

4. Appellant: Callisto Properties Ltd
Agent: None

Erection of entrance gates Dismissed
to an approved development 14.03.12
ATS Ltd Brook Street

St Neots

All appeal decisions can be viewed in full via Public Access. The most notable
decisions are summarised below.

213



PUBLIC INQUIRY

1.1001201FUL Erection of 4 No. wind turbines, crane pads, access

tracks and ancillary works

Land west of Bicton Industrial Estate
Kimbolton

Broadview Energy Developments Ltd

Planning permission was refused by Development Management Panel at its meeting
held on 17 January 2011 in accordance with officer advice and the recommendation of
the affected Parish Councils. The reasons for refusal were as follows:-

1.

The Environmental Assessment is incomplete because it failed to provide the
necessary information to allow proper assessment of the environmental impacts
of the development: namely 7 of the 9 requested additional Photo-montages. The
LPA cannot therefore take into consideration all the necessary environmental
information and Regulation 3 of the Environmental Impact Assessment
Regulations 1999 therefore prohibits the granting of planning permission.

Notwithstanding the lack of submitted information, it is considered that the
development would have a significant adverse effect onthe setting of cultural
heritage assets including the Conservation areas of Kimbolton, Tilbrook and
Stonely, Grade 1 and 2* listed buildings including Kimbolton Castle, Kimbolton
Castle Gatehouse, Church of St Andrew, Kimbolton, Church of All Saints Tilbrook
and Warren House. The development would also have a significant adverse
effect upon the character of the landscape as the turbines would dominate the
views of the sensitive wooded ridge that divides the valleys of the Kym and
Ellington Brooks and fail to respect existing landmark vertical features. The
significant adverse effect of the proposed wind farm on the cultural heritage
assets and character of the landscape, as a result of its dominance and visual
intrusion, is not outweighed by the benefits of the development. The proposal is,
therefore, contrary to Development Plan Policy, Development Management DPD
proposed submission 2010 and SPD’s Huntingdonshire Landscape and
Townscape Assessment 2007 and Huntingdonshire Wind power 2006.

The Inspector’s Reasons

o In respect of the first reason for refusal the Inspector considered that the
further environmental information submitted during the appeal process
provided adequate information for the proposal to be considered.

o He considers that the Council’s Wind Farm SPD provides a starting point
for decision making and its adoption is relatively recent and it provides the
most useful and relevant guidance on the relative landscape sensitivity and
turbine capacity of different areas in Huntingdonshire.

o All 4 turbines would form a conspicuous group several times the height of
the Kym valley and that turbines T2 and T4 would be dominant features
straddling the valley crest. The turbines would compete with the spires of St
Andrew’s Church at Kimbolton and All Saints Church at Tilbrook and
diminish their significance. Their precipitous siting would be clearly
perceived behind the spire of Tilbrook Church and their moving blades
would add significantly to a marked distracting and alien impact in an area
of recognised landscape quality. He concludes that the turbines would
appear unsympathetically located and conspicuously out of scale in relation
to the intimate and sensitive Kym valley landscape and the settlements
therein and that the chosen locations of Turbines 2 and 4 are directly
contrary to the advice in the SPD.

214



None

In terms of heritage assets he describes Kimbolton itself as a settlement of
very significant heritage value and that the open space of the castle
grounds is very important to the setting of the Castle and the wider
character of the town. He considers that the Grade 1 Castle and Gatehouse
are a planned composition and are a strong focal point and central feature
within the Conservation Area and that the symmetrical axis results in
additional significance to this historic townscape. The turbines would
appear to a viewer looking northwards to grow out of the town roofs in an
uncomfortable and anachronistic juxtaposition and would appear as a
significant modern intrusion in this highly sensitive historic environment. He
also describes the Castle as a significant visitor attraction with its historical
association with Catherine of Aragon and that the turbines would be so
prevalent in views that they would significantly erode and diminish that
experience.

The effect upon Tilbrook Conservation Area would be major and adverse
because of the modern industrial character of the turbines which would be
higher than the surrounding valley sides and out of character with them.
The whole development would straddle the crest of the valley and
significantly change its character.

In terms of residential amenity whilst the Inspector identifies some harm to
two residential properties he does not consider this so great as to make
these houses unacceptable places in which to live. He also concludes that
the degree of noise and disturbance caused by the appeal development
would be acceptable.

He states that the objections raised on the grounds of the impact on the
cricket pitch and wildlife would not represent reasons for refusal for the
scheme.

The Inspector concludes that while he does not underestimate the
importance of achieving significantly higher levels of renewable energy it is
not the intention of the Government that all renewable energy schemes
should be supported, irrespective of any harm that might be caused. He
recognises that renewable energy projects are by definition sustainable and
that there is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. However,
in this case the harm that would occur to the attractive countryside in the
Kym Valley by reason of the location of the turbines on the crest in direct
contravention of the adopted SPD and the most serious contributing factor
to the harm that would occur to heritage assets amounts to a very serious
objection which would outweigh the environmental and economic benefits
of the scheme and that therefore the appeal must be dismissed.

FORTHCOMING APPEALS

215



This page is intentionally left blank

216



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	3 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
	4 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT - OTHER APPLICATION
	5a Houghton and Wyton
	5b Huntingdon
	5c Ramsey
	5d Ramsey
	5e Sawtry
	5f Sawtry
	5g Sibson-cum-Stibbington
	5h Somersham
	5i Spaldwick
	5j St. Neots
	5k Abbotsley
	5l Fenstanton
	6 APPEAL DECISIONS

